STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”
The Hampton Inn and Suites
4301 Martin Way E.
Olympia, WA 98516
July 13, 2017
Please note, agenda items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair

Public Meeting — July 13, 2017

9:00 AM Welcome and Introductions Bud Sizemore, Chair
9:05 AM Executive Session
Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation
Gambling Commission Meeting will Reconvene at Approximately 11:00 AM
Tab 1 Consent Agenda David Trujillo, Director
e May 11 & 12,2017 Minutes
e New Licenses and Class III Employees
Class I1I Employees/Snoqualmie
Director’s Update David Trujillo, Director
Legislative Update Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS
Tab 2 Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe Compact Amendment David Trujillo, WSGC Director
Jerry Allen, CEO, 7 Cedars Casino & Resort Properties
Julie Lies, WSGC Tribal Liaison
Tab 3 Defaults Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney
e Arthur D. Fowler, CR 2016-01704 Class III Employee Certification Revocation
e Michael L. Harward, CR 2016-02079 Class III Employee Certification Revocation
e Arthur V. Principe, CR 2017-00527 Class III Employee Certification Revocation
e Tasha Smiley, CR 2016-01938 Card Room Employee License Revocation
o Filifili Tia, CR 2016-01835 Card Room Employee License Revocation
Tab 4 Petition for Rule Change (Ducks Unlimited) Tina Griffin, Assistant Director
Petition from Scott Eisenhauer
e WAC 230-11-087 Other Pricing Plans for Members Only Raffles
Tab 5 Request to Exceed Raffle Prize Limits Tina Griffin, Assistant Director
Request from Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments
Meeting Adjourn

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447.

P.0O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400 (360)486-3440 (800)345-2529 FAX (360) 486-3625



STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”

May Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes
Great Wolf Lodge
20500 Old Highway 99, SW
Ground Mound, WA 98531
May 11 & 12,2017

Commissioners Present:
Bud Sizemore, Chair

Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, PhD.

Chris Stearns

Ed Troyer

Ex Officios Present:

Senator Steve Conway

Senator Lynda Wilson

Representative Brandon Vick Representative David Sawyer

Staff Present:

David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director;
Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney; John Meader,
Assistant Attorney General; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Julie Anderson,
Executive Assistant

-Public Meeting-
May 11, 2017
Vice Chair Patterson called the first day of the Gambling Commission’s two-day meeting to
order at 9:40 am. She welcomed everyone to the Great Wolf Lodge and announced they would
be going immediately into Executive Session. Commissioner Patterson announced that the Public
Meeting would reconvene at approximately 11:15 am.

At 11:15 an announcement was made by Julie Anderson that Executive Session would be
extended by another 15 minutes, reconvening the Public Meeting at 11:30 am.

The May Commission Meeting reconvened at 11:45 am after the Commissioners had a short
break.

There were about 30 people in attendance.

Chair Sizemore called the May Commission Meeting back to order and introductions were
made. Chair Sizemore welcomed the new Ex Officios members, Senator Lynda Wilson and



Representative David Sawyer, and asked if they would introduce themselves and give a short
bio.

Tab 1

Squaxin Island Compact Amendment

Washington State Gambling Commission Director David Trujillo, Squaxin Island
Intergovernmental Tribal Council Liaison Ray Peters and Washington State Gambling
Commission Tribal Liaison Julie Lies presented the power point presentation for tab 1. Here is a
summary of the major changes in the proposed amendment, which is consistent with several
other tribes’ gaming compacts.

e Increases number of Class III gaming facilities from one to two.

¢ Includes the definition of “Indian lands” from the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act to align
compact definition with the Act and allow a gaming facility on qualifying land that is not
within the reservation boundaries.

e Allows tribally chartered entities wholly-owned by the Tribe to own the Class III gaming
facility.
¢ Adds the definitions of “gaming” or “gaming activity” and “gaming promotions.”

e Adds an annual reporting requirement on how problem gambling funds from Appendix
X2 were used.

e Adds eligibility, which allows the Tribe to conduct initial background checks and
temporarily license its employees to begin working immediately. The state will continue
to conduct background checks.

e Allows persons between the ages of 18 and 21 to play in accordance with applicable
liquor laws.

Commissioner Troyer moved to forward the Squaxin Island Compact Amendment
Compact to the Governor for review and final execution. Commissioner Stearns seconded the
motion. The motion passed 9-0.

Tab 2

Presentation — Problem Gambling

William “Ted” Hartwell, Associate Research Scientist, Desert Research Institute, Nevada
System of Higher Education and Sydney Smith, LPC, LADC, NCGC, Ph.D. Candidate, CEO
and Clinical Director, Rise Center for Recovery presented on Research and Community
Outreach on Problem Gambling in Tribal Communities in Nevada presented the materials for tab
2. Commissioner Stearns had suggested the Commission invite Ted and Sydney to speak at a
Commission meeting, after hearing them present at problem gambling conference he previously
attended.

Commissioner Patterson was interested in hearing more about the residential programs offered in
Nevada and the cost per resident.

Tab 3
Presentation — Tribal Community Contributions

2



Agent in Charge, Cathy Harvey and Special Agent Supervisor, Kelly Main presented the
materials for tab 3.

For 2014, the contributions were:

e $4.8 m. — Community Impact Funds (this contribution is based on table games)

e $10.6 m. — Charitable Distributions (this contribution is based on TLS/machines)
e $2.4 m. — Smoking Cessation Distributions

e $2.8 m. - Problem Gambling Contributions

Public Comment-

Maureen Greeley from Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling reminded the Commissioners
about the National Problem Gambling Conference in Portland, Or. July 19-22, 2017. She also
thanked Ted Hartwell and Sydney Smith for their presentation on Problem Gambling.

Day one of the two day meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m.

-Public Meeting-
Great Wolf Lodge
20500 Old Highway 99, SW
Ground Mound, WA 98531
May 12, 2017

Commissioners Present:
Bud Sizemore, Chair

Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, PhD.

Chris Stearns

Ed Troyer

Staff Present:

David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director;
Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney; John Meader,
Assistant Attorney General; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Julie Anderson,
Executive Assistant

Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone back for the second day of the Gambling Commission
Meeting. The meeting reconvened at 9:17 am.

There were about 17 people in the audience.

Tab 4a

Consent Agenda:

April Commission Meeting Minutes/ /New Licensees

Commissioner Stearns moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

3



Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.
The motion passed. 4:0 Commissioner Troyer was not available for the vote.

Snoqualmie Class IIT Gaming Employees Licensees

Commissioner Gray moved to approve Snoqualmie Class 111 Gaming Employees as presented.
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.

The motion passed. 3:0

Commissioner Stearns abstained. Commissioner Troyer was not available for the vote.

Director’s Update:

Director Trujillo reported on the agency’s social media presence and encouraged individuals in
the audience to “like” us on our various platforms such as Twitter, Facebook, Instagram and
LinkedIn. He mentioned Public Service Recognition Week (May 8-12) was a success at the
Gambling Commission, and the Commissioners have before them the same items that were given
to each staff member of the agency for their state service.

Director Trujillo updated the Commissioners on the Gambling Commission’s Headquarters
Building / Move status. The agency is getting closer to a final look at the building blueprints for
the agency’s smaller footprint in its current location, rather than a move to a different building.
The Gambling Commission will likely be located on floors one and three. Currently, we are on 2
Y floors.

Lastly, Director Trujillo gave a short update on the hard work Commission staff has been doing
regarding the recruitment efforts. He mentioned that recruitment is proving difficult to fill officer
positions and heard the same from other similar agencies.

Tab 4b

Legislative Update

Brian Considine presented the legislative report to the Commissioners. Brian gave a short report
on our agency request legislation and bills to follow during special session.

HB 1274, concerning the voting member requirement for charitable and nonprofit
organizations HB 1274 was voted out of the Senate 49-0 on April 11, 2017. It was signed into
law by the Governor on April 27, 2017. It will go into effect on July 23, 2017.

HB 1475, clarifying the limited authority of gambling commission officers HB 1475 was
passed out of the Senate 41-8 on April 11, 2017. It was then signed by the Governor into law on
April 25, 2017. It will go into effect on July 23, 2017.

Brian touched on Agency Adjudicative or Rule-making Authority Bills, 2SHB 1120 implements
State Auditor recommendations to Small Business Economic Impact Statements (SBEIS) used in
agency rule-making. It passed out of the Senate 49-0 and was signed by the Governor on April
19, 2017. It will go into effect on July 23, 2017.



State Government Bills

HB 1717, concerning state agency collection, use, and retention of biometric identifiers
SHB 1717 relates to biometric identifiers, including fingerprints. The bill passed the House 97-1
and the Senate 49-0. It has been delivered to the Governor, but it had not been signed yet.

Public Meeting / Public Disclosure Bills

ESHB 1594, Improving public records administration ESHB 1594: (1) identifies the topics
the current Public Records Officer training should cover; the bill passed the Senate 40-7-2 with
amendments and the House concurred on final language 80-18 on April 17, 2017. It has been
delivered to the Governor for signature.

EHB 1595, Concerning costs associated with responding to public records requests EHB
1595: (1) requires agencies to go through agency rule-making procedures before it publishes a
schedule of costs for producing public records. The bill passed the Senate 43-4-2 with
amendments and the House concurred on final language 80-18 on April 17, 2017. It has been
delivered to the Governor for signature.

Clarification of what an agency can charge a requestor when producing paper or electronic
records is a positive impact, but the agency will likely need to publish a rule identifying the
charges should it decide to charge for the production of paper or electronic records. The
remaining aspects of the bill should have either a positive or no impact to the agency.

Brian mentioned to the Commissioners that the state budget outlook remains the same. The
agency continues to expect the Gambling Revolving Account to be left whole, and does not
expect general fund appropriations for the agency at this time. He also spoke about the 2018
Agency Request Legislation. He asked Commissioners about what topics they would like to see
staff explore for possible legislation during the 2018 legislative session.

Brian will conduct a preliminary outreach to stakeholders for their input. Brian hopes to have
more concrete proposals for Commissioners’ consideration for the July Commission Meeting.
Commissioners will need to vote at the August or September Commission meeting on final
agency request legislation to be submitted to the Governor’s Office. Submissions are usually due
to the Governor’s Office by the middle of September.

Tab 5

Default

Haylee Mills presented the materials for this tab.

Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Card Room License for Christina Jimenez.
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.

The motion passed. 4:0 (Commissioner Troyer was not present for the vote)

Licensee was not present at the meeting.
Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Card Room License for Chanthoeurn Sath.

Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.
The motion passed. 4:0 (Commissioner Troyer was not present for the vote)



Commissioner Stearns wanted clarification about the charges that were against Chanthoeurn Sath
in 2013. Licensee was not present at the meeting.

Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the Card Room License for Khamphone
Mounkhoune.

Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.

The motion passed. 5:0 (Commissioner Troyer rejoined the meeting)

Licensee was not present at the meeting.

Tab 6

Petition for Rule Change
Assistant Director Tina Griffin and Mr. McNutt from Fortune Casino presented the materials for

this tab. Commissioner Stearns inquired about the pre-shuffled cards and how they are currently
ordered. Commissioner Patterson asked for reassurance as to how the system works currently
with card recognition software and what would change if this petition goes forward. Tina
reiterated that staff does have concerns with this petition and stated staff would be willing to
work with the petitioner on language on an internal controls template. This quality control
measure would assure randomness of the cards. The package staff would put together would put
some quality controls in place that would hold the manufacturer accountable for the integrity of
the cards.

Commissioner Gray moved to initiate rule-making proceedings, as recommended by staff.
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.
The motion passed. 5:0 (Commissioner Troyer rejoined the meeting)

Election of Officers

Chair Sizemore asked Commissioners for open nominations for Chair of the Gambling
Commission.

Commissioner Patterson moved to nominate Chair Sizemore to retain the chairmanship for
another year starting May 15, 2017.

Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.

The motion passed. 4:0 (Chair Sizemore abstained from voting)

Commissioner Stearns moved to nominate Commissioner Patterson as Vice Chair of the
Gambling Commission for another year.

Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.

The motion passed. 4:0 (Commissioner Patterson abstained from voting)

Other Business-
Chair Sizemore announced that he recently toured SciGames in Las Vegas and was impressed
with their LEAN management process for assembly of the machines.



Public Comment-

Director Trujillo mentioned to the Commissioners and audience that there was a visitor in the
audience that was getting college credit for attending a meeting that was following “Roberts
Rules of Order”.

Chair Sizemore announced that the next Gambling Commission meeting will be held at the
Hampton Inn and Suites in Olympia on July 13% only.

The second day of the Gambling Commission meeting adjourned at 10:36 a.m.



Washington State Gambling Commission
Pre-Licensing Report
House-Banked Public Card Rooms

Part |
Licensing/Organization Information

Type of Approval Premises/Trade Name/Address
House-Banked Card Room Great American Casino
Date of Application 22406 Pacific Hwy S

Des Moines, WA 98198

October 17, 2016

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name License Application # [Business Phone #
Great American Casino — Des Moines, LLC 67-00334 (253) 480-3000
Address Liquor License:
14040 Interurban Ave S X Yes [No

Tukwila, WA 98168

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION

Description/Class Exp. Date License Number(s)
House-Banked Card Room - 15 tables 03/31/2018 67-00334
COMMISSION STAFF
Licensing Specialist . |Special Agents
Bill Russell, Licensing Unit Donna Khanhasa, Licensing Unit
Keith Wittmers, Regulatory Unit

Background/Structure

General Information:

The State of Washington Secretary of State’s Office issued a Certificate of Formation to Great American
Casino — Des Moines, LLC, on June 24, 2016.

On September 7, 2016, Great American Casino — Des Moines, LLC, doing business as Great American
Casino, applied for a house-banked card room license with 15 tables.

Ownership Information:

Great American Casino — Des Moines, LLC

| Title | Name | Ownership % |
LLC Manager Great American Gaming Corporation 100%

Great American Gaming Corporation

I Title | Name | Ownership % |
President Rod Baker 0%
Secretary Terrance Doyle 0%

Shareholder Great Canadian Gaming Corporation 100%




Great Canadian Gaming Corporation (Publicly Traded*)

I Title | Name | Ownership % |
President, CEO Rod Baker 0%
Secretary, COO Terrance Doyle 0%
Controller Radoslaw (Radek) Kielar 0%
Mgr, Finc. Acct. Svitlana (Sveta) Krasalymova 0%
Asst. Corp. Sec. Chindavone (Yvonne) Phinith 0%
Director Neil Baker 0%
Director Larry Campbell 0%
Director Mark Davis 0%
Director Thomas Gaffney 0%
Director Karen Keilty 0%
Director Peter Meredith 0%
Shareholder Ridge Capital Amalgamated 6.59%
Shareholder Burgundy Asset Management 18.08%
Shareholder BloombergSen, Inc. 10.98%
Shareholders <5% ownership 63.45%

Total 100.00%

*Great Canadian Gaming Corporation is publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol
GC.

Licenses Held in Other Jurisdictions:
Great Canadian Gaming Corporation’s subsidiaries hold licenses in:
e Washington - Great American Everett, Great American Lakewood, and Great American Tukwila and

e British Columbia, Ontario, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick.

Part Il :
Licensing Investigations Summary

A Special Agent from the Commission’s Licensing Unit conducted criminal records investigations and
financial investigations focusing on funding sources and beneficiaries for suitability in accordance with RCW

9.46 and WAC 230. The investigations found:

No unreported people or businesses involved (i.e. substantial interest holders);

No undisclosed ownership or undisclosed involvement in other activities/businesses;
All funding sources were disclosed; and

All substantial interest holders qualify.

A complete inspection and review was conducted of the accounting records, bank statements, and
contracts and agreements of Great American Casino at their premises in Des Moines and accounting office
in Tukwila. In addition, the agent verified the funding sources, reviewed the financial records and discussed

licensing requirements.

Source of Funds:
This start-up business was funded by a loan from its parent company and licensed service supplier, Great

American Gaming Corporation.




Part i
Pre-Operational Review and Evaluation Summary

A Special Agent from the Commission’s Regulation Unit completed an on-site Pre-Operational Review
and Evaluation (PORE). The purpose of the PORE is to determine that the gambling operation complies
with the requirements of RCW 9.46 and WAC 230. The review found that the following are in compliance:

Nature, size, and scope of gambling operations;

Regulations for the operation and management of gambling;

Forms and recordkeeping;

Surveillance and security; and

Internal controls for surveillance, security, accounting, and the gambling activity.

The applicant proposes to operate the following games:

Fortune Pai Gow Poker

Dragon Bonus Baccarat
Ultimate Texas Hold ‘Em
King’'s Bounty

Blazing 7’s

Mini Baccarat

Part IV
Staff Recommendations

Based upon the licensing investigation and the PORE, staff recommends licensing Great American Casino —
Des Moines, LLC, doing business as Great American Casino, as a house-banked card room to operate up to
15 tables in accordance with the wagering limits of WAC 230-15-140.

Prepared By Slgnatur Date
Tina Griffin, Assistant Director % C-2%17
Licensing, Regulation & Enforcement Division




HOUSE-BANKED PUBLIC CARD ROOM REPORT

Current House- Banked Locations Operating 49
License
Commission Expiration License
Licensee City Approval Date Date Tables Org # #

ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT SPOKANE Mar 13,2014 | Dec31,2017 | 7 |00-23112 |67-00325
ALL STAR CASINO SILVERDALE | Jan 14,1999 | Jun30,2017 | 15 |00-18357 |67-00058

SPOKANE
BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD ROOM il 5y Jan 10,2013 | Sep30,2017 | 15 | 00-22440 |67-00321

EAST

7 % |

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENATCHEE S IATCHEE | ©¢t10,2002 | Dec 31,201 10 | 00-11170 |67-00183
CARIBBEAN CARDROOM KIRKLAND Aug 13,2009 | Mar31,2018 | 9 |00-21882 |67-00285
CASINO CARIBBEAN YAKIMA Mar 14,2002 | Dec31,2017 | 15 |00-17603 |67-00093
CASINO CARIBBEAN KIRKLAND Nov 15,2005 | Sep 30,2017 | 15 | 00-20427 |67-00238
CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD LAKEWOOD Apr 8,1999 | Dec31,2017 | 12 |00-17414 |67-00020
CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO EAST Apr 9,2015 | Dec31,2017 | 11 |00-23386 |67-00328

WENATCHEE ; ;
CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO SHORELINE Sep 9,2010 | Jun30,2017 | 15 |00-22132 |67-00303
COYOTE BOB'S CASINO KENNEWICK | Jul 10,2009 | Mar31,2018 | 13 | 00-21848 |67-00282
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO IIIMOUNTLAKE TERRACE ¥§RUR"QCL2KE Jul 10,2009 | Mar31,2018 | 15 | 00-21849 |67-00283
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO PASCO Jul 10,2009 | Mar31,2018 | 15 | 00-21847 |67-00281
EMERALD DOWNS AUBURN May 11,2017 | Mar31,2018 | 15 | 00-23814 |67-00335
FORTUNE CASINO TUKWILA Oct 8,2015 | Aug31,2017 | 12 | 00-23465 |67-00329
FREDDIE'S CLUB RENTON Jan 8,2015 | Sep30,2017 | 15 | 00-23339 |67-00327
GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO SHORELINE May 13,1999 | Dec 31,2017 | 15 | 00-17610 |67-00016
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOINES DES MOINES Mar 31,2018 | 15 | 00-23795 |67-00334
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT EVERETT Nov 12,1998 | Dec31,2017 | 15 | 00-19513 |67-00194
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOOD LAKEWOOD Aug 14,2003 | Jun30,2017 | 15 | 00-19258 |67-00184
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA TUKWILA Jan 15,1998 | Sep 30,2017 | 15 | 00-12554 |67-00012
HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO LACEY Jul 12,2001 | Jun30,2017 | 15 | 00-17579 |67-00091
Compiled by WSGC Revised 6/22/2017 Page 1 of 3

i



Current House- Banked Locations Operating 49
License
Commission Expiration License
Licensee City Approval Date Date Tables Org # #

IRON HORSE CASINO AUBURN Jan 9,2003 | Dec 31,2017 15 | 00-19477 |67-00192
JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIESTA CD RM RICHLAND Nov 12, 1998 | Dec 31,2017 12 | 00-15224 |67-00006
LANCER LANES/REST AND CASINO CLARKSTON Nov 13,2008 | Sep 30,2017 9 | 00-21681 |67-00276
LAST FRONTIER LA CENTER Feb 11,1999 | Sep 30,2017 15 | 00-11339 |67-00055
LILAC LANES & CASINO SPOKANE Jul 12,2007 | Jun 30,2017 12 | 00-21305 |67-00267
LUCKY 21 CASINO WOODLAND Oct 8,2013 | Jun 30, 2017 15 | 00-22918 |67-00322
MACAU CASINO LAKEWOOD Jul 12,2007 | Mar 31,2018 15 | 00-20428 |67-00239
MACAU CASINO TUKWILA Jan 12,2012 | Sep 30,2017 15 | 00-22573 |67-00319
NOB HILL CASINO YAKIMA Sep 12,2001 | Dec 31,2017 7 | 00-13069 |67-00173
PALACE CASINO LAKEWOOD LAKEWOOD Jan 14,1999 | Dec 31,2017 15 | 00-16542 |67-00028
PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUNGE MOSES LAKE | Aug 13,1998 | Jun 30, 2017 12 | 00-02788 |67-00004
RC'S SUNNYSIDE Nov 18,2004 | Sep 30, 2017 9 | 00-20298 |67-00232
RED DRAGON CASINO ¥'§RUR“££KE Aug 11,2011 | Jun 30,2017 | 10 | 00-22459 |67-00315
RIVERSIDE CASINO TUKWILA Aug 14, 2003 | Jun 30, 2017 15 00;19369 67-00187
ROMAN CASINO SEATTLE Feb 10,2000 | Mar 31, 2018 15 | 00-17613 |67-00057
ROXY'S BAR & GRILL SEATTLE Nov 18,2004 | Jun 30, 2017 12 | 00-20113 |67-00231
ROYAL CASINO EVERETT Sep 9,2010 | Jun 30, 2017 15 | 00-22130 |67-00301
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK BOTHELL Sep 9,2010 | Jun 30, 2017 15 | 00-22131 |67-00302
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON RENTON Sep 9,2010 | Jun 30, 2017 15 | 00-22134 |67-00305
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC SEATAC Sep 9,2010 | Jun 30, 2017 15 | 00-22128 |67-00299
SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY BELLINGHAM | Aug 12,1999 | Jun 30, 2017 9 | 00-16759 |67-00038
THE GETAWAY CASINO WALLA WALLA | Mar 11, 2016 | Jun 30, 2017 8 | 00-23485 |67-00332
THE PALACE LA CENTER Apr 9,1998 | Jun 30, 2017 15 | 00-16903 |67-00010
UBET CASINO LONGVIEW Oct 8, 1998 | Jun 30, 2017 11 | 00-17449 | 67-00039
WILD GOOSE CASINO ELLENSBURG | Apr 8,2004 | Dec 31,2017 7 | 00-20009 |67-00212
WIZARDS CASINO BURIEN Feb 11,2010 | Dec 31, 2017 15 | 00-21998 | 67-00287
Compiled by WSGC Revised 6/22/2017 Page 2 of 3

A



Current House- Banked Locations Operating 49
License
Commission Expiration License
Licensee City Approval Date Date Tables Org # #
ZEPPOZ PULLMAN Nov 13,2008 | Mar 31, 2018 6 00-18777 |67-00209
Licensed, But Not Operating 2
License
Commission Expiration License
Licensee City Approval Date Date Tables Org # #
NEW PHOENIX LA CENTER Mar 12, 1998 | Mar 31, 2018 1 00-12650 |67-00005
PALACE TUKWILA TUKWILA Jul 14, 2016 Sep 30, 2017 12 | 00-23304 |67-00333
Compiled by WSGC Revised 6/22/2017 Page 3 of 3



COMMISSION APPROVAL LIST
(New Licenses & Class III Gaming Employees)

July 2017
Index
PAGE

NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS & COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES................ 1-4
DISTRIBUTOR REPRESENTATIVE. ..ot 5
MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE ..o, 5-7
NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER..........ococviiiiii 7
SERVICES SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE ......ccoivviiiiicin, 8-9
PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE . : i couinsn oo s vwmwnn s v vwussn s 57 wsmmsns s s gowwisnns 9-20
CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE ..ottt 21-38

PAGES: 38

Based upon the licensing investigations, staff recommends approving all new Licenses and
Class III employees listed on pages 1 to 38.




DATE: 06/22/2017

ORGANIZATION NAME
FILE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 1 of 38

PREMISES LOCATION

BINGO
ELIZABETH BLACKWELL PTSA 2.8.54 3225 205TH PL NE
00-23880 01-02734 A SAMMAMISH WA 98074
FOE AUX 03865 1319 GOLDEN AVE
00-09370 01-02340 A OROVILLE WA 98844
RAFFLE
ASSISTANCE LEAGUE OF EVERETT 5107 EVERGREEN WAY
00-23915 02-20732 B EVERETT WA 98203
BPOE 02560 9701 54TH AVE NW
00-06243 02-08152 A GIG HARBOR WA 98332-8542

CROHNS & COLITIS FOUNDATION NW CHAPTER
00-23917 02-20734 B

EASTSIDE FOOTBALL CLUB
00-23899 02-20725 E

EDMONDS COMMUNITY COLLEGE FNDN
00-22589 02-09141 C

ELIZABETH BLACKWELL PTSA 2.8.54
00-23880 02-20714 A

FLEET RESERVE ASSN 00029
00-00137 02-20737 B

FVHS BOOSTER CLUB
00-23919 02-20735 A

GRANITE FALLS BOOSTERS
00-23935 02-20745 B

INLAND NW LAND CONSERVANCY
00-23902 02-20726 A

INTERNATIONAL DROP IN CENTER
00-23934 02-20744 E

KING'S WAY CHRISTIAN SCH/1ST CHR OF GOD
00-21494 02-08845 C

LOVE IN THE NAME OF CHRIST OF MASON COUNTY
00-23930 02-20741 B

9 LAKE BELLEVUE DR 203
BELLEVUE WA 98005

7490 80TH PL SE
MERCER ISLAND WA 98040

20000 68TH AVE W
PICNIC POINT-NORTH LYNNWO

3225 205TH PL NE
SAMMAMISH WA 98074

521 SNATIONAL AVE
BREMERTON WA 98312

12300 NE FOURTH PLAIN BLVD SUITE
VANCOUVER WA 98682

1401 100TH ST NE
GRANITE FALLS WA 98252

13905 N RIVERBLUFF LN
SPOKANE WA 99208

7301 BEACON AVE S
SEATTLE WA 98108

3300 NE 78TH ST
VANCOUVER WA 98665-0656

221 W RAILROAD AVE STE 10
SHELTON WA 98584



DATE: 06/22/2017

ORGANIZATION NAME
FILE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

PREMISES LOCATION

Page 2 of 38

RAFFLE

MIDDAY CHARITY FOUNDATION/ ROTARY CLUB OF GIG H
00-23916 02-20733 C

NATT ASSOC OF WOMEN BUSINESS OWNERS
00-22060 02-09003 A

SAFI FOUNDATION
00-22767 02-09214 B

SALMON CREEK HOSPITAL FDN
00-23945 02-20750 B

SEATTLE CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
00-23909 02-20729 C

SEATTLE OPERA
00-00368 02-00164 C

SEATTLE THEATRE GROUP
00-23891 02-20718 C

ST. CATHERINE OF SIENA PARISH SCHOOL
00-23907 02-20727 B

STEAMBOAT ISLAND COOPERATIVE PRESCHOOL
00-23920 02-20736 A

THURSTON COUNTY 4-H COUNCIL
00-23958 02-20755 B

TRI-STATE STEELHEADERS
00-23892 02-20719 B

VASHON IS ROWING CLUB
00-23938 02-20746 C

VFW 04278/SCHICK-OGLE
00-23908 02-20728 B

VOICE OF VASHON
00-23954 02-20753 C

2704 42ND ST NW
GIG HARBOR WA 98335

7526 N CEDAR RD
SPOKANE WA 99208

51004 CONCRETE-SAUK VAL

CONCRETE WA 98237

5557 NE 86TH AVE
VANCOUVER WA 98662

6901 SAND POINT WAY NE
SEATTLE WA 98115

1020 JOHN STREET
SEATTLE WA 98109-5319

911 PINE ST
SEATTLE WA 98101

8524 8TH AVE NE
SEATTLE WA 98115

6240 41ST AVE NW
OLYMPIA WA 98502

5033 HARRISON AVE NW
OLYMPIA WA 98502

1922 GARDEN ST
WALLA WALLA WA 99362

8936 HARBOR DR
VASHON WA 98070

518 NE COUTRYSIDE DR
VANCOUVER WA 98684

12502 SW 148TH ST
VASHON ISLAND WA 98070

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TAB NONPROFIT

BPOE 00318 .
00-00647 05-01533 B

318 GOLF COURSE LP
SELAH WA 98942-1926



DATE: 06/22/2017

ORGANIZATION NAME
FILE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 3 of 38

PUNCHBOARD/PULL-TABCOMMERCIAL STIMULANT

BIG MARIO'S 4350 LEARY WAY NW
00-23893 05-21475 A SEATTLE WA 98107
BLEACHERS PUB 8560 GREENWOOD AVE N
00-23941 05-21483 A SEATTLE WA 98103
DANNY'S TAVERN 120 W BROADWAY AVE
00-23832 05-21459 K + MOSES LAKE WA 98837
DONNA'S BAR & GRILL 112 RAMSEY WAY
00-23921 05-21478 A TOLEDO WA 98591
DUFFY'S PUB N GRUB 8459 MAIN STREET
00-23889 05-21474 A DRYDEN WA 98821
ENTIAT PUB N GRUB 14481 US HWY 97A
00-23922 05-21479 A ENTIAT WA 98822
FLYING TOMATO ITALIAN GRILL 10224 198TH ST CT E
00-23869 05-21468 A GRAHAM WA 98338
HIGHLANDER STEAK HOUSE & LOUNGE 30319 SR 706 E
00-23883 05-21472 A ASHFORD WA 98304
MT SI PUB 45530 SE NORTH BEND WAY
00-23852 05-21466 A NORTH BEND WA 98045
NEPPEL'S DOCKSIDE PUB 204 W BROADWAY AVE
00-23876 05-21469 A MOSES LAKE WA 98837
NOPAL MEXICAN FAMILY RESTAURANT & BAR 6104 PORTAL WAY
00-23900 05-21476 D FERNDALE WA 98248
PAPA BEAR'S RESTAURANT & LOUNGE 207 MAIN AVE
00-23924 05-21480 A MORTON WA 98356
RAZZALS BAR AND GRILL 3528 168TH ST NE
00-23948 05-21486 G ARLINGTON WA 98223
COMBINATION LICENSE
LOUISA MAY ALCOTT PTSA 23913 NE 69TH PL

00-19603 08-00111 A REDMOND WA 98053



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 4 of 38

ORGANIZATION NAME
FILE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

DISTRIBUTOR
AMERICAN GAMING & ELECTRONICS INC 223 PRATT ST
21-00304  21-00304 C HAMONTON NJ 08037

SERVICE SUPPLIER LICENSE

LUCKY ACES CASINO DEALER SCHOOL LLC 4111 S MERIDIAN STE 206
00-23887 26-00344 PUYALLUP WA 98373
NATIONAL TABLE GAMES 4424 FAIRFIELD ST
00-23904 26-00346 METAIRIE LA 70002
NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO 301 DRUM POINT RD

00-23679 26-00337 BRICK NJ 08723

COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT GAMES

BOWLERO LANES 3852 STEILACOOM BLVD SW

00-23926 53-21494 A LAKEWOOD WA 98499

PREMIER AMUSEMENTS INC 6420 WULIGER WAY

00-23906 53-21493 F NORTH RICHLAND HILLS TX 761

WILD WAVES 36201 ENCHANTED PKWY

00-23897 53-21492 D FEDERAL WAY WA 98003
PUBLIC CARD ROOM (65)

DONNA'S BAR & GRILL 112 RAMSEY WAY

00-23921 65-07475 ) D TOLEDO WA 98591

NEPPEL'S DOCKSIDE PUB 204 W BROADWAY AVE

00-23876 65-07469 B MOSES LAKE WA 98837

PUBLIC CARDROOM - HOUSE BANKED

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOINES 22406 PACIFIC HWY S
00-23795 67-00334 15 DES MOINES WA 98198



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 5 of 38
PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME

LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION
NEW APPLICATIONS

DISTRIBUTORREPRESENTATIVE

BRIONES, DARRYL B
22-01242

CAMITAN, ARNEL JESUS P
22-01243

CAOILI, BERNIE R
22-01244

CASTANEDA-CORTES, ADAN
22-01224

CORTINA, NELSON F
22-01245

GARCIA, MIGUEL G
22-01132

SIVANISH, MARCUS P
22-00753

JCM GLOBAL
LAS VEGAS NV 89119-3728

JCM GLOBAL
LAS VEGAS NV 89119-3728

JCM GLOBAL
LAS VEGAS NV 89119-3728

AMERICAN GAMING & ELECTRONICS
HAMONTON NJ 08037

JCM GLOBAL
LAS VEGAS NV 89119-3728

JCM GLOBAL
LAS VEGAS NV 89119-3728

SPOKANE PULLTAB & BINGO SUPPLY
SPOKANE WA 99202

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

AYRE, MICHAEL J
23-02399

BORRERO, MARTIN
23-02408

BRATAGER, JAMES A
23-02409

CARIDINE, ROBERT K
23-02412

COLOMA, NEPHTALI B
23-02420

DA SILVA SOUSA PESSOA, RUI F
23-02421

DODD, CHRISTOPHER P
23-02426

DOMSCHINE, ERNEST J II
23-02403

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

BALLY TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

BALLY TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

GALAXY GAMING
LAS VEGAS NV 89119

BALLY TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89118



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 6 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

EMPLOYER'S NAME

NEW APPLICATIONS

PREMISES LOCATION

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

DUNCAN, CALEB R
23-02415

DUVALL, KENNETH R JR
23-02431

ELLINGSON, DAVID A
23-02428

EUSTACE, KERN D
23-02416

FERNANDEZ-DOUGLAS, KACIE S
23-00323

GOMEZ, DAVID E
23-02425

GOMEZ, LUIS A
23-02423

GRAVILLE, JEREMY V
23-02413

HAMMOND, MICHAEL R
23-02410

HIPOLITO, FELIX P JR
23-01348

KREBS, MICHAEL S
23-00912

KULP, RYAN A
23-02417

LAUGUICO, TOMASITO D
23-00695

MANICKE, MEINO J II
23-02429

MARSEE, MICHAEL T
23-02424

MILLER, STACEY L
23-02406

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

EVERI GAMES INC.
AUSTIN TX 78746

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89119

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

BALLY TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

EVERI PAYMENTS INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89113-2175

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 7 of 38

PERSON'S NAME _ EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION
NEW APPLICATIONS

MANUFACTURER REPRESENTATIVE

MONTALBANO, PARKER D
23-02427

NOBLE, SETH R
23-02407

PATTERSON, MICHAEL D
23-02432

RIVERA, RONNIE J
23-01273

SANTOS, CHRISTOPHER M
23-02419

SHULZ, DONALD F JR
23-02411

VELEZ, KEANNA M
23-02422

WATERS, DAVID B
23-02414

WOLCOTT, TIMOTHY T
23-02418

GENESIS GAMING SOLUTIONS INC
SPRING TX 77386

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

ARISTOCRAT TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89119

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

BALLY TECHNOLOGIES
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

IGT
LAS VEGAS NV 89113

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY INC
LAS VEGAS NV 89118

NON-PROFIT GAMBLING MANAGER

ALLEN, MARJORY A
61-04594

OSTERBERG, GARETH D
61-04639

STANTON, MICHAEL L
61-04497

WALTON, BRIAN L
61-04640

WARTCHOW, MICHAEL A
61-04567

AMERICAN LEGION 00097
BREWSTER WA 98812

LOOM 00996
PORT ANGELES WA 98362

VFW 02100
EVERETT WA 98201

ROTARY CLUB/COLUMBIA CENTER
KENNEWICK WA 99336

FOE 02069
SEDRO WOOLLEY WA 98284



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 8 of 38

PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

SERVICES SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE

ABELY, MICHELE A
63-00787

BUSTOS, ENRIQUE
63-00773

CAREY, MATTHEW
63-00782

CARROLL, ROBERT J JR
63-00772

CAZARES, ANTONIO R
63-00775

FONDA, BRIAN
63-00794

GENTLES, BENJAMIN D
63-00792

GITLEN, VALERIE S
63-00786

GONZALEZ, RICHARD
63-00641

GUTKOWSKI, JOHN J
63-00780

HOULE, GRANT A
63-00788

KOSTOVA, GERGANA N
63-00785

MARTINGANO, ROBERT S JR

63-00783

MORRELL, CHRISTOPHER D
63-00781

MUKUL, NIDHI
63-00779

OLSON, BENJAMIN E
63-00442

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS
ROCKLIN CA 95677

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS
ROCKLIN CA 95677

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 9 of 38

EMPLOYER'S NAME
PREMISES LOCATION

SERVICES SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE

PARIS, JOSEPH A
63-00790

POLLOCK, FRANCIS J III
63-00777

RIDGWAY, JIM B
63-00793

ROESLER, JOHNPAUL L
63-00784

ROSA, MARK R
63-00789

RUDD, VICTOR D
63-00791

SANDOZ, DAVID E
63-00776

STARKEL, MICHAEL E
63-00774

TOMLINSON, DAVID B
63-00771

ZARN, JENNIFER L
63-00778

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

NORTH AMERICAN VIDEO
BRICK NJ 08723

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS
ROCKLIN CA 95677

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS
ROCKLIN CA 95677

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

SALISHAN-MOHEGAN LLC
VANCOUVER WA 98660

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

AL SAMMARRAIE, MOHAMMED A

68-34234

ARNONE, JESSICA M
68-34274

BAIL YU
68-34285

BEISSE, JOSEPH R
68-34186

BENEDICT, TRAVIS L
68-34233

LILAC LANES & CASINO
SPOKANE WA 99208-7393

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIEST
RICHLAND WA 99352-4122

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

UBET CASINO
LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024

CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO
EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 10 of 38

EMPLOYER'S NAME
PREMISES LOCATION

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

BISHOP, BRYAN R
68-34290

BORQUEZ, EZRA R
68-34196

BOULET, GREGORY A
68-34308

BRAULT, JAIMIE J
68-34158

BRIGHTMAN, ERIC J
68-34230

BRORNH, SOKVEASNA
68-33521

BROWN, ELYSE J
68-34208

BROWNE, DANIEL C
68-34292

BURRESS, CHRISTIAN A
68-34235

CALIMLIM, RONALD N
68-26532

CAVANAGH, AMY E
68-34168

CHEN, SHUFEN
68-33304

CHHOR, SRENG K
68-34173

CHILCOTE, ZACHERY T
68-34264

CHUN, DANIEL S
68-34207

CLARK, THANHPASOHN S
68-34237

BLACK PEARL RESTAURANT & CARD
SPOKANE VALLEY WA 99206-471

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO
LACEY WA 98516

LAST FRONTIER
LA CENTER WA 98629-0000

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

ROMAN CASINO
SEATTLE WA 98178

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY
BELLINGHAM WA 98225

PALACE CASINO LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499-8434

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804

ROMAN CASINO
SEATTLE WA 98178

UBET CASINO
LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENAT
EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802

FREDDIE'S CLUB
RENTON WA 98055

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198



DATE: 06/22/2017 ' Page 11 of 38
PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME

LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION
NEW APPLICATIONS :

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

CONE, MICHELLE M
68-34162

COUCKE, JEFFERY T
68-34198

COYLE, MARLO M
68-08338

CZERNIECKI, BENJAMIN J 111
68-34199

DALTON, BRIAN E
68-34291

DAVIES, RUSSELL W
68-16096

DAVIS, KELSEY M
68-34300

DAVIS, TARAH M
68-07857

DAY, JACQUES A
68-34185

DEAN, SCOTT P
68-34248

DEL REAL, OSVALDO
68-34231

DIERKING, CRYSTAL A
68-09476

DO, VINH T
68-34275

DORRIS, CRYSTAL D
68-34303

DUNHAM, STEVEN M
68-34176

DUPRIS, JOSEPH J
68-31835

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIEST
RICHLAND WA 99352-4122

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

LILAC LANES & CASINO
SPOKANE WA 99208-7393

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON
RENTON WA 98057

ALL STAR CASINO
SILVERDALE WA 98383

HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO
LACEY WA 98516

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIEST
RICHLAND WA 99352-4122

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

UBET CASINO
LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024

ZEPPOZ
PULLMAN WA 99163

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT
SPOKANE WA 99208

EMERALD DOWNS
AUBURN WA 98001

FREDDIE'S CLUB
RENTON WA 98055



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 12 of 38

PERSON'S NAME _ EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

DUPRIS, SHAY R
68-34206

EASTLAND, LORENZO J
68-34272

EDGAR, TRISTON J
68-34167

FAORO, THOMAS J
68-34160

FILI, ASOIVA
68-34184

FISCHER, EVAN L
68-34178

FUKUOKA, ANTHONY T
68-30282

GALLEGOS, KRISTY L
68-34201

GEESMAN, ALEXANDRA V
68-32477

GILBERT, MEGAN K
68-17448

GILTNER, NANCY R
68-31492

GONZALEZ, EMILY A
68-34200

GREEN-ROBINSON, LAVON F
68-28614

GUERRA, VALERIE L
68-34282

GUILD, JOSHUA ]
68-29959

GUTIERREZ, ANGEL R
68-34228

FREDDIE'S CLUB
RENTON WA 98055

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804

GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO
SHORELINE WA 98133

UBET CASINO
LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024

CASINO CARIBBEAN
YAKIMA WA 98901

CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO
SHORELINE WA 98133

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY
BELLINGHAM WA 98225

ROYAL CASINO
EVERETT WA 98204

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804

ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT
SPOKANE WA 99208

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIEST
RICHLAND WA 99352-4122

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

IRON HORSE CASINO
AUBURN WA 98002

CASINO CARIBBEAN
YAKIMA WA 98901



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 13 of 38

EMPLOYER'S NAME
PREMISES LOCATION

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

HAGEN, CORTNEY M
68-33508

HARPEL, STEVEN J
68-34223

HARPER, RYAN C
68-34166

HARRELL, GLENDA J
68-34222

HEATH, ROBERT A
68-34202

HENSLEIGH, HEATH P
68-16875

HICKMAN, KALEN M
68-34289

HING, SOTHARORTH
68-34293

HOLIDAY, LARK A
68-34165

HUA, LONG Y
68-34286

HUMMEL, KENNETH R
68-15796

HUMPHREY, ANDREA G
68-34305

HUNTER, ANGELA R
68-34251

HUNTER, JEFFREY A
68-12815

IATA, LEPE JR
68-32140

IVES, MONAY A
68-34169

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

WILD GOOSE CASINO
ELLENSBURG WA 98926

MACAU CASINO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

ROXY'S BAR & GRILL
SEATTLE WA 98126

UBET CASINO
LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024

ROYAL CASINO
EVERETT WA 98204

CASINO CARIBBEAN
YAKIMA WA 98901

RIVERSIDE CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98168

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC
SEATAC WA 98188

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

WILD GOOSE CASINO
ELLENSBURG WA 98926

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

MACAU CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98188-2437

MACAU CASINO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 14 of 38

EMPLOYER'S NAME
PREMISES LOCATION

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

JACOBS, KRISTINE A
68-19839

JENNEN, MARISSA D
68-32327

JENNINGS, COLLEEN E
68-08092

JOHN, FALISHA M
68-34253

JOHNSON, BLAIR S
68-31020

JONES, SAMUEL C
68-28731

KANG, JENNIFER M
68-34215

KANG, SARIGO A
68-34171

KELLEBREW, RU
68-34284

KHAMSINGRATSOMBAT, JOSHUA N
68-34226

KHARUFEH, JAMILA A
68-34273

KLUEGER, ELIZABETH A
68-34267

LA, JULESON
68-22709

LAY, THEARA
68-34227

LAZUKIN, ANTON V
68-29886

LEOTA, VAIMAGALO A
68-34163

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT
SPOKANE WA 99208

GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO
SHORELINE WA 98133

WIZARDS CASINO
BURIEN WA 98166-2524

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804

RED DRAGON CASINO
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

PALACE CASINO LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499-8434

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC
SEATAC WA 98188

HAWKS PRAIRIE CASINO
LACEY WA 98516

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO
SHORELINE WA 98133

ROXY'S BAR & GRILL
SEATTLE WA 98126



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 15 of 38
PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME

LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER ‘ PREMISES LOCATION
NEW APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

LIM, SREYLEAP
68-34280

LUKE, JACLYN R
68-26102

LUTGEN, JEFFREY A
68-34259

MACDONALD, CRAIG A
68-11182

MANALO, CHRISTY LYN C
68-34204

MARCHENA, NATHAN A
68-34270

MASK, JEFFREY D JR
68-34155

MCCLURE, SCOTT W
68-34240

METZ, CHRISTOPHER J
68-34191

MILNER, SCOTT D
68-11033

MOORE, JAYME L
68-31349

MUSE, NAQUEIA M
68-34197

NEIL, ZACHARY W
68-34212

NELSON, HAYLEE D
68-34287

NGET, THIDA
68-34250

NGETH, BOPHEAK
68-34170

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

CASINO CARIBBEAN
KIRKLAND WA 98034

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON
RENTON WA 98057

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY
BELLINGHAM WA 98225

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/LAKEWOO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

WIZARDS CASINO
BURIEN WA 98166-2524

JOKER'S CASINO SPORTS BAR & FIEST
RICHLAND WA 99352-4122

CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO
SHORELINE WA 98133

GOLDIE'S SHORELINE CASINO

SHORELINE WA 98133

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK
BOTHELL WA 98012

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

WIZARDS CASINO
BURIEN WA 98166-2524

LILAC LANES & CASINO
SPOKANE WA 99208-7393

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 16 of 38

PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

NGUYEN, ANH D
68-34277

NGUYEN, APRIL B
68-34192

NGUYEN, DAIT
68-07462

NGUYEN, DUNG N
68-10192

NGUYEN, HIEU T
68-34307

NUTTALL, IAN G
68-34195

ONG, STEVEN N

68-34254

ORDONA, RACHELE M
68-22963

PACHECO, SUSAN A
68-34276

PATRICK, DELANEY K
68-34187

PATTEN, ZACHARY L
68-34244

PATTERSON, JOHN O
68-34261

PHAM, HAI B

68-26499

PHELPS, JARID R
68-34245

PHENG, GOSALL P
68-34283

PIERCE, AMY L
68-30920

FORTUNE CASINO

B TUKWILA WA 98168
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
B DES MOINES WA 98198
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
B DES MOINES WA 98198
RED DRAGON CASINO
B MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804
ROXY'S BAR & GRILL
B SEATTLE WA 98126
CLEARWATER SALOON & CASINO
B EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802
SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/RENTON
B RENTON WA 98057
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
B DES MOINES WA 98198
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
B MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804
CASINO CARIBBEAN
B YAKIMA WA 98901
CASINO CARIBBEAN
B , YAKIMA WA 98901
LILAC LANES & CASINO
B SPOKANE WA 99208-7393
SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY
B BELLINGHAM WA 98225
THE PALACE
B LA CENTER WA 98629

LUCKY 21 CASINO
B WOODLAND WA 98674

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
B DES MOINES WA 98198



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 17 of 38
PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

POE, CORINNA P
68-30966

POOLE, JESSICA A
68-34247

PRECIADO, AURELIO R
68-34295

PUTNAM, SHELLEY J
68-34210

REIN, CASSIDY C
68-22133

ROS, RIDA
68-20509

RUTHERFORD, JESSE C
68-04023

SAMPHAO, DENG
68-31159

SAMPHORS, SEREYOUT
68-34310

SAN MARTINEZ, GABRIELA
68-34313

SCARVER, JOHN R
68-34306

SCOTT, JASON J
68-29482

SCUITO, MAYA S
68-34271

SENG, PHONNARA
68-30996

SIE, CHEANICK
68-34262

SMART, KYLE N
68-25609

THE PALACE
LA CENTER WA 98629

CASINO CARIBBEAN
YAKIMA WA 98901

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO
PASCO WA 99301

LAST FRONTIER
LA CENTER WA 98629-0000

CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO
SHORELINE WA 98133

MACAU CASINO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

FORTUNE POKER
RENTON WA 98057

RIVERSIDE CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98168

MACAU CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98188-2437

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

LANCER LANES/REST AND CASINO
CLARKSTON WA 99403-2219

FORTUNE CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98168

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO
PASCO WA 99301 '



DATE: 06/22/2017 ; Page 18 of 38

PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

SMITH, JOHN T
68-30108

SOK, MAO
68-34073

SON CHAU, JENNY
68-34216

SPURLIN, WILBUR S II
68-34203

STEVENS, JOSEPH A
68-34236

SUPOINT, SOCRATES
68-34281

SWAGERTY-HARTMAN, JADE V
68-34241

TALAMONI, CHEA S
68-05457

TATE, KRISTIM
68-18462

THIP, RAKTHY
68-21682

THOR, MALLISHA G
68-34211

TOWNSEND, JARON F
68-29322

TRAN, DEMO
68-34159

TRAN, HUONG D
68-34174

TRUONG, TUAN M
68-34172

VAN ZANDT, ZACHARY D
68-34190

BUZZ INN STEAKHOUSE/EAST WENAT
EAST WENATCHEE WA 98802

EMERALD DOWNS
AUBURN WA 98001

RIVERSIDE CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98168

UBET CASINO
LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

ROYAL CASINO
EVERETT WA 98204

ACES CASINO ENTERTAINMENT
SPOKANE WA 99208

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

MACAU CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98188-2437

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

MACAU CASINO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/SEATAC
SEATAC WA 98188

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

WIZARDS CASINO
BURIEN WA 98166-2524



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 19 of 38

PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION
NEW. APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

VAN, RANICA S
68-33522

VANDERPOL, LIA B
68-34209

VANN, CHANBORA
68-34217

VARNEY, PARLEY L JR

68-34218

VASQUEZ, KYLE D
68-34214

VIRRUETA, LETICIA
68-32792

VO, JUNIOR V
68-34242

VO, MARIA C
68-34243

VO, QUY D
68-34175

WAFER, AARON M
68-30533

WALKER, JACK D JR
68-10414

WANG, WEIZHI
68-34246

WARD, JEWLIAN W
68-34297

WATSON, LILA M
68-21587

WEISS, BEVERLY G
68-34164

WESTRY, RONALD T
68-34301

ROMAN CASINO
SEATTLE WA 98178

SLO PITCH PUB & EATERY
BELLINGHAM WA 98225

RIVERSIDE CASINO
TUKWILA WA 98168

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT
EVERETT WA 98204

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/EVERETT
EVERETT WA 98204

SILVER DOLLAR CASINO/MILL CREEK
BOTHELL WA 98012

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
DES MOINES WA 98198

CHIPS CASINO/LAKEWOOD
LAKEWOOD WA 98499

PAPAS CASINO RESTAURANT & LOUN
MOSES LAKE WA 98837

GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
TUKWILA WA 98168

FREDDIE'S CLUB
RENTON WA 98055

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO/PASCO
PASCO WA 99301

LUCKY 21 CASINO
WOODLAND WA 98674

CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804

MACAU CASINO
LAKEWOOD WA 98499



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 20 of 38

PERSON'S NAME EMPLOYER'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER PREMISES LOCATION

NEW APPLICATIONS

PUBLIC CARD ROOM EMPLOYEE

WETMORE, DENISE J
68-09256

WHITE, CHARLES E
68-34249

WHITEHOUSE, ERIC J
68-34183

WILLIAMS, AARON P
68-34269

WILSON, RYAN S
68-34177

WINTER, JAMIE N
68-34265

WOLFF, MATTHEW E
68-34188

WU, HELEN Y
68-34225

WU, HUIYUN
68-34157

YAN, KING K
68-34205

YAN, PINGPING
68-34257

YOST, JOEL M
68-34252

ZHANG, QILIN
68-34263

ZHOU, LIPING
68-34189

ZUMWALT, AMY L
68-34299

MACAU CASINO

B TUKWILA WA 98188-2437
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
B MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804
UBET CASINO
B LONGVIEW WA 98632-3024
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO I/MOUNTLAK
B MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804
CRAZY MOOSE CASINO II/MOUNTLAK
B MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 9804
LAST FRONTIER
B LA CENTER WA 98629-0000
RC'S
B SUNNYSIDE WA 98944
‘ GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/TUKWILA
B TUKWILA WA 98168
RIVERSIDE CASINO
B TUKWILA WA 98168
GREAT AMERICAN CASINO/DES MOIN
B DES MOINES WA 98198
LUCKY 21 CASINO
B WOODLAND WA 98674
LAST FRONTIER
B LA CENTER WA 98629-0000
. LUCKY 21 CASINO
B WOODLAND WA 98674
CLUB HOLLYWOOD CASINO
B SHORELINE WA 98133
THE PALACE
B LA CENTER WA 98629



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 21 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

CHEHALIS CONFEDERATED TRIBES

JOHNSTON, MICHAEL R KOSLOSKIE, TAMARA L
69-42527 69-42597

MACNEILL, MICHELLE A MAGNESS, TAWNYA R
69-42409 69-42410

MCDERMOTT, MICHAEL T PICKERNELL, WILSON E
69-38403 _ 69-13245

RUBY, MARISSA L SNELL, VIOLET L
69-31797 69-24318

YOUCKTON, OWEN T

69-42319

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES
ABRIL, DARRICK A ADOLPH, LEWIS JR
69-42253 69-42412
ANDREWS, JORDAN L BARR, ROGER D
69-42383 69-42413
BOYCE, ROBERT F Il BOYCE, WAYNE L III
69-35077 69-34747
BUCKNER, ANN M CAPIL, BLANCA E
69-42569 69-42375
CHAPA, ANTONIO J CHEER, TIFFANY A
69-32949 69-34376
CREE, ROBERT T DILLS, CORY A
69-42570 69-42252
FLETCHER, CANYON T GOEBEL, RANDALL J

69-42376 69-37570



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 22 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS IIT GAMING EMPLOYEE

COLVILLE CONFEDERATED TRIBES

HOWARD, ROBERT C
69-31718

JIM, NICHOLAS B
69-42572

KRAUSE, JOSEPH J
69-42379

MADRID, RUDY J
69-42373

MORRIS, CAMERON R
69-42384

PALMANTEER, SHAMRAE S
69-42382

RIDGLEY, ANASTASHIA A
69-42571

SPOTTED ELK, ROSA M
69-42380

WALSH, CONRADO E
69-42254

WHITE, CHANDLER P
69-42490

AALVIK, KATRINA L
69-42457

ALVAREZ, VERA Z
69-42496

HUERTA, MARCOS
69-42374

KEATON, KARA A
69-42574

LEBON, JACOB D
69-42411

MCBRIDE, SARINA R
69-42472

ORNELAS, JONATHON L
69-42381

PARFAIT, STACEY L
69-42377

SCHIRMER, RANDOLPH D
69-34725

SUAREZ CRUZ, ROBERTO C
69-42378

WEED, ARIAUNA W
69-42471

YAZZIE, LISA D
69-42573

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

AGA, KOURTNEY A
© 69-42404

AN, SUYEON
69-42232



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 23 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE
ANDERSON, KIMBERLY K AVANTS, CATHY S
69-42278 69-42424

BAUTISTA, MARK JASON G BAYER, KRISTINA L
69-42420 69-42280

BEARDEN, BRADLEY D JR BECKER, HEATHER A

69-42219 69-25502
BENSON, TASHA S BERTI, MARYNA S
69-42176 69-42063

BEVARD, AVERY M
69-42281

BRASUELL, JAE-LEA M
69-42313

BUSCH, TIMOTHY J JR
69-42602

CHENET, BRITTANY J
69-42405

CRAPE, ALISHA L
69-42558

DAVIS, DANR IV
69-42450

DICKERSON, SAMUEL N
69-42342

DYE, MICHELLE D
69-42579

BOSTROM, JENNIFER L
69-42427

BRYANT, KIMBERLY J
69-42525

CARROLL, TRAVIS E
69-42501

COMAN, APHENA A
69-42283

CRUZ-PANTOJA, IVAN M

69-42315

DEYO, JACY A
69-42605

DUNNE, JOHNNY J
69-42494

EDWARDS, SCOTT A
69-42279



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 24 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

ELLIOTT ANDERSEN, AEDYN J ENGLISH, JASON L
69-42559 69-42419

ESPINOZA, DIANE E ESTES, CHRISTY L
69-42230 . ‘ 69-42462

EVERIDGE, JESSICA D EVERILL, BONNIEBELLE D
69-42580 69-42277

FARRIS, ASHLEY A FINCHER, GEORJEAN M
69-42578 69-42563

FLANAGAN, BRIAN R FLETCHER, JASMINE B
69-42264 ’ 69-42216

FRANTZ, SHANNON L GODSIL, THOMAS P
69-42343 69-22768

GONZALES, CASSIDY S GONZALEZ, AUNDRAYA R
69-42333 69-42224

GONZALEZ, MICHAEL J GOUDGE, JESSICA J
69-42603 69-42272

GREVER, CHRISTOPHER 8§
69-42292

HIGGINS, JESSICA M
69-42227

HORNE, LOUIS F
69-42448

ILYUSHCHENKO, MASKIM O

69-42262

HEBRON, ARA D
69-42217

HOKE, NICHOLAS J
69-42275

IHANDER, JAMES S
69-42506

IVEY, TAMARA L
69-42460



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 25 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

JOHNSON, ALEXANDER R
69-42598

JONES, KATY E
69-42560

KEEVY, ARISTA V
69-42461

KONAHAP, IRENE B JR
69-42403

LABITAD, MELVEN G
69-42317

LEHNER, PATRICK B
69-42526

LUCAS, ABIR S
69-42493

LUO, ZHENG
69-42349

MADSEN, ASHLEY L
69-42330

MCCARTT, SAMUEL E
69-42332

MCCLENAN, CHAWNCY R
69-42270

MCRAE-ALSTON, COURTNEY L
69-42213

JOHNSON, SHAYNA L
69-42497

KEENE, KAMI L
69-42334

KEITH, KELSEY L
69-42577

KREIS, RACHEL E
69-42524

LAMONT, DONALD R
69-42600

LEONARD, HEATHER S
69-42522

LUKESH, JEFFREY B
69-42228

LYBBERT, BRIANDE B
69-42561

MASHCHENKO, YELENA N
69-42401

MCCARTT, ZACHARY L
69-42314

MCGRATH, LEIGH C
69-42226

MCSWAN ERICKSEN, HANNAH J
69-42423



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 26 of 38

'CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

MCWILLIAMS, MELINDA M MOILANEN, PATRICIA A

69-42585

MOORE, STEPHANIE M
69-42495

NASTRI, REBECCA L
69-42268

ORTHMANN, ROBERT J
69-42467

PADDOCK, ADRIENNE M
69-42312

PARKER, LETA M
69-42258

PERRY, KELLY J
69-42421

PFLUG, CHRISTOPHER R
69-42533

PICKERING, SHERRY R
69-42425

REDINGER, LAUREEN M
69-42466

ROUSH, CALEB E
69-42306

SAGUCIO, MELISSA A
69-42273

69-42564

MORRIS, JENNIFER A
69-42406

NAYLOR, JAMIE L
69-42458

OTIS, ALEXANDER M
69-42304

PAOLO, LYNN M
69-42276

PAVLOVA, ANGELINA A
69-42556

PETTIT, KELSEY R
69-42499

PHILLIPS, MICHAEL R
69-42606

PRICE-MORRIS, HAYDN
69-42532

ROGERS, CYNTHIA L

- 69-42222

RUVALCABA, ANTHONY M

69-42601

SALE, JOSHUA J
69-42344



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 27 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE

SATTLER, CHRISTOPHER S
69-42329

SCULLY, SAMANTHA A
69-42259

SINGLETON, DIONDRA D
69-42266

SMITH, BRANDY G
69-42498

ST GEORGE, GINA M
69-22623

STEPHENSON, KIM L
69-42449

STIRLING, YEILIN P
69-42261

STOUT, SHAUNA M
69-42557

SYLVIA, TRUDY L
69-42400

TAYLOR, HAILEE A
69-42469

TRAVIS, RACHAEL L
69-42604

VELKINBURG, CATHARINE M
69-42599

SCHMITT, GUY L
69-42399

SEIFERT, DARCI J
69-42274

SISSAC, HENRY S
69-42584

SMITH, JOSHUA A
69-42582

STANBERRY, TATIANA B

69-42465

STINSON, JUSTIN E
69-42331

STONE, RICHARD L
69-42225

STRATTON, KYLE R
69-42336

TARI, KAMON M III
69-42555

THIEL, ZACHARY W
69-42500

VANRIPER, KRISTINA M

69-42581

WALDOW, ERIN G
69-42468



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 28 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS IIT GAMING EMPLOYEE

COWLITZ INDIAN TRIBE
WATROUS, DANIEL M WILLIAMS, RACHAEL L
69-42464 ‘ 69-42337
WYFFELS, BRANDI N YANCEY, CODY W
69-42422 69-42293

JAMESTOWN S'KLALLAM TRIBE

CARNEIRO, ALINE B ‘ GONZALES, JOSE M
69-42512 69-42478
HAABALA, HOPE A POTTER, ALEXANDRA M
69-42518 69-42596

KALISPEL TRIBE
ANTHONY, ARLOA L ARTHUR, DEBORAH L
69-42609 69-42514
BLACKMORE, RENEE K DUONG, WILSON P
69-42393 69-42595
GILL, ADRIAN D GLENN, KALIM
69-36206 69-42429
GRABER, SAMUEL M HARNASCH-SINGER, JARAMY C
69-42428 69-42395
KNIGHT, JAMES W KUMMER, KYLIE N
69-42594 69-42510
MCCOY, ADRIENNE R MCKEEN, ROBERT G
69-42394 69-42610
MORRISSEY, ALEXANDER E PEREZ, MICHAEL A

69-42513 69-23017



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 29 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

KALISPEL TRIBE

PETERSON, MATTHEW M
69-42470

STEPHENS, NATHAN R
69-42309

VOSE, SKYLA E
69-42303

ADDLER, LISA A
69-16376

ANTALAN, TONY L SR
69-18256

BROWN, ERIC W
69-42201

CHARLES, GEORGE A JR
69-16445

FOLSOM, DYLAN E
69-42345

JULIUS, VERA A
69-42267

NUNEZ-HERNANDEZ, MARIA G

69-33816

AALONA, BRITTANY P
69-42356

PLUMB, PHYLLIS Y
69-42430

STOOPS, STEPHANIE L
69-42547

YEAGER, STEVEN H
69-42302

LUMMI NATION

ALLEY, MIKIKO E
69-28109

BEGAY, HEATHER M
69-42432

CARTER, MOERICE
69-42503

DAVIDSON, AUSTIN M
69-16096

GREGET, PATRICIA Y
69-26509

METCALF, BRYCE L
69-42202

PLATT, THOMAS R
69-42346

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

AQUINDE, ROCKY C
69-09918



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 30 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

MUCKLESHOOT INDIAN TRIBE

BOYD, SABRINA U
69-11907

DALE, ALYSSA R
69-42550

HA, LAWRENCE
69-42607

ISSERLIS, WARREN
69-42446

LEOTA, DEBORAH L
69-42445

MCSHANE, TAMMY L
69-42552

MILNE, JULIA B
69-42589

REED, LEMZY
69-42529

SEMANA, MAGGIE L
69-23649

TECUMSEH, ROBERTA J

69-42326

ARELLANO, BRANDON M

69-42476

CASSIDY, JASON A
69-42475

CLARK, ADJANAYA I
69-42396

GIAUQUE, JORDAN B
69-42554

HELMS, NICHOLAS J
69-42355

KEENER, JULIA Q
69-42447

MCCRORY, DUSTIN A
69-42553

MILNE, ELIZABETH C
69-42551

PHONESAITHIP, SARAH L

69-42528

SALWAY, JUSTION
69-42327

TALAGA, TITILUPE S
69-42328

WILLIAMS, BRANDI L
69-42300

NISQUALLY INDIAN TRIBE

BROYLES, ELIZABETH A

69-42593

DEUSEN, ANDREW C
69-27271



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 31 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

NISQUALLY INDIAN TRIBE
DURAN, VICTOR H FURFEY, SHAWN M
69-42364 69-42474

GIFFIN, VICTORIA D
69-42367

KOTORAKOS, CATHERINE E

69-42592

MADISON, TANYA L
69-42481

MOWITCH, LA LONIM
69-42480

SEIFERT, TAMIE S
69-38104

SON, SOVAN V
69-42366

ZAMUDIO, VICENTE
69-42358

ANDERSON, CHARMAINE F

69-42540

FITSEMONS, MARIA C
69-42322

MORRIS, ADAM S
69-42539

RUSTON, CHLOE J
69-42321

JUMALON, PIANETTE
69-42365

LORENZO, ARLYN R
69-42361

MCCOMAS, MEGAN V
69-42362

OLOUGHLIN, JAMES G
69-30977

SMARTLOWIT, ROBIN J
69-36316

WHITE, KATHRYN S
69-42359

PORT GAMBLE S'KLALLAM TRIBE

CASKEY, PAMELA B
69-38453

HANKIN, JESSICA K
69-24058

QUASNE, WILLIE J
69-42538

TREVAN, ERIC S
69-42320



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 32 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

WEAVER, JULIE-ANN M
69-42541

ARNOLD, CYNTHIA A
69-42619

BOGNOT DIEHL, MARIEL R

69-42519

HAGGARD, NATALIE D
69-42536

MILLER, THOMAS T IV
69-42323

SCHMITT, JAMES R
69-42535

SMITH, HELEN G
69-42623

STONER, KELSEY R
69-42296

WARD, RAYANNE M
69-42588

BURRILL, MICHAEL G
69-42440

CLAYTON, REBBECA L
69-42287

PORT GAMBLE S'KLALLAM TRIBE

PUYALLUP TRIBE OF INDIANS

BLACK, TYSON P
69-42587

GUIEB, BHONIJOE C
69-42622

JORDT, OLIVER R
69-42546

RAYBURN, JESSE R
69-29855

SHIELDS, TINA N
69-42488

STEPHENS, MELISSA J
69-42347

TA'ALA, FIAMAMA T
69-42509

QUINAULT NATION

CARCAISE, RONALD G
69-42371

DE BLOIS, WILLIAM H JR
69-18759



DATE: 06/22/2017 ‘ Page 33 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

QUINAULT NATION

DINEEN, ALICIA J
69-42613

GREENE, AMANDA S
69-42544

HOLLIDAY, SHANNON R
69-42372

KRISE, STACEY L
69-42543

RITNER, ROY R JR
69-42439

MC NEIL, CORY W
69-42443

WEST, JERRY L JR
69-42444

BOYER, ASHLEY K
69-42234

KIEFFER, CHARLIE L
69-33024

QUINN, TIMOTHY E
69-42235

WILLIAMS, SHAHNOA L
69-42398

FILION, KENNETH B
69-42370

HALL, PHILLIP T
69-14100

HORM, CHRISTOPHER J
69-42545

MACASIEB, STEPHANIE R
69-42438

THOMAS, DESTINY R
69-42437

SKOKOMISH TRIBE

SHEPARD, RYAN A
69-21723

SPOKANE TRIBE

DOUGHERTY, SARENA N
69-42542

MARTIN, RENEE K
69-42456

THOMPSON, KAREN K
69-28053

WILLIAMSON, CHARLEE M

69-42515



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 34 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS IIT GAMING EMPLOYEE

SQUAXIN ISLAND TRIBE

BARLOW, RICHARD R
69-36841

CASTRO, RICHARD A
69-42483

CONOR, JEREMIAH P
69-42240

COREY, STEVEN G
69-42455

DAVIS, HAYLEE J
69-42534

FREEMAN, BRITTANY C
69-42453

HICKS, ALIECIA M
69-42614

KELLY, KAYLA M
69-42243

MCGILL, SUMMER B
69-42590

SCHROFF, GABRIEL G
69-42299

SWEITZER, JORDAN D
69-42454

WICKMAN, WALLACE W
69-42591

BLAKE, BRIAN S
69-30038

CLARK, BRYANJ
69-42255

CONWAY, KRISTOFER H
69-42241

DAVENPORT, MALEAHA A

69-42239

DEARDEUFF, PATRICK J
69-42452

GLAVIN, COURTNEY L
69-42238

JOHNSON, BENJAMIN J
69-42436 '

MC CLUNG, DAVID E
69-42237

RAGSDALE, JULIE D
69-42415

SEQUAK, MARTIN R
69-42242

WARD, SAPPHIRE P
69-42505

WILKERSON, JOSEPH W
69-42282



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 35 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

STILLAGUAMISH TRIBE

ANDREWS, JEANNIE C
69-42576

DILL, KAITLYN N
69-42517

JOHNSON, ASHLEY N
69-42295

PASSMORE, KAREN A
69-42417

SAUNDERS, CHERYL A
69-42451

VOS, KRISTINIA R
69-42575

BROWN, DEREK M
69-42568

COROOK, RECHIE S
69-42621

FARFAN, ERLINDA J
69-42433

NIGRO, NICHOLAUS J
69-42477

BELISLE, MEGAN B
69-42507

GRANROTH, LAUREN A
69-42567

LIDSTER, KATHLYN L
69-42611

RESETAR, GARY J JR
69-42416

SNYDER, RONDA L
69-42386

SUQUAMISH TRIBE

COOPER, ANTONIO S JR
69-42511

DRY, PAULINE J
69-42548

LINNE, ASHLEE J
69-42608

TREVINO, CODY A
69-42256

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY

CLADOOSBY, DOROTHY A DAY, JASONT
69-42387 69-42482



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 36 of 38

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNITY

IGNACIA, MARIA
69-42357

PLATT, THOMAS R
69-42346

TEJADA, RIGOBERTO
69-42487

BANISTER, FLOYD R JR
69-16888

CARR, ELIZABETH A
69-42431

HANSON, MICHELLE M
69-42521

HERRON-HOPKINS, STEVEN M
69-42562

JAMES, THOMAS R
69-42368

JOE, LAURIE E
69-09576

LOSIK, AUSTIN J
69-42586

MORRIS, ROBERT J
69-42311

NIELSEN, CECIL E
69-42531

NORMAN, JARVIS L
69-42612

STRATTON, COLTON J
69-42414

THE TULALIP TRIBES

BLEECKER, ARLENE M
69-42325

DUNN, RYAN E
69-42492

HARRIS, YVONNE H
69-42504

HUFF, MICHELLE D
69-42369

JAURON, SYBIL E
69-42263

JONES-CHARLES, TRENTON D
69-42390

MITCHELL, ANTHONY L
69-27370

NIEHAUS, COREY D
69-42491

OLIVERIA, JIM S |
69-42318



DATE: 06/22/2017 Page 37 of 38

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

THE TULALIP TRIBES

ROSENGREN, MARCI L
69-42233

TOM, MARJORIE C
69-20631

WALL, MICHELLE R
69-42520

ZAYAS, MICHELLE D
69-42305

BAILEY, TAYLOR H
69-42549

DEAN, KIMBERLY A
69-42308

LUNDGREN, TRUDY C
69-42508

MERCER, CATHERINE A
69-42284

STEWART, SHARON E
69-37528

ALVISO, CHRISTIAN O
69-42388

BLOOM, JOSHUA M JR
69-42391

TOLLIVER, CARLTON A
69-37903

TORRES, JESSICA L
69-42463

WATTS, MATTHEW E
69-42206

UPPER SKAGIT INDIAN TRIBE

BURIN, ALANJ
69-00519

FERGUSON, BRIAN E
69-42479

MCGUIRE, SUSAN R
69-42441

SERNA, JACOB R
69-42310

WEBB, MONIQUE G
69-42285

YAKAMA NATION

AMBROSE, PHILLIP L III
69-42389

CANTU, MARTIN A
69-42307



DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME
LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER .

Page 38 of 38

NEW APPLICATIONS

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

GEORGE RANDALL, LEANDER H
69-42291

GUNNIER, LEAH E
69-30572

ISAAK, DELORES M
69-42351

PRATHER, CHENOA N
69-42354

QUILL, KAREN S
69-11318

SAM, EDWARD K
69-42155

SANDOVAL, JOE A
69-42353

TANEWASHA, KELLEE M
69-42435

WALLAHEE, ROBERTA L
69-23093

WHITE, CHARLES T
69-42294

WONG, GRACIA L
69-08036

YAKAMA NATION

GONZALEZ, RITA M
69-42290

IBANEZ CORTES, HUGO F
69-42620

LOMBERA, VICENTE
69-42289

PRICE, HALEY E
69-42288

SALDANA, MARTIN IV
69-42392

SANCHEZ, MARIO A JR
69-42434

TAKESGUN, ANNIE M
69-42352

TEWEE, CARISSA L
69-34095

WHEELER, LLOYD W
69-42350

WHITE, SASHEEN L
69-38063



COMMISSION APPROVAL LIST
(Class III Gaming Employees)

July 2017
Index
PAGE
SNOQUALMIE CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE ...........cccoeeevt.0. 1
PAGES: 1

Based upon the licensing investigations, staff recommends approving all new Class
III employees listed on pages 1.




DATE: 06/22/2017

PERSON'S NAME

LICENSE ISSUE NUMBER

NEW APPLICATIONS

Page 1 of 1

CLASS III GAMING EMPLOYEE

BOYKEN, ERIN L
69-42565

DUNLAP, TROY M
69-24626

FU, XINGBO
69-42618

LOMAX, ISAIAH R
69-38036

SOK, MONY
69-42348

ZHANG, LIQIN
69-42616

SNOQUALMIE TRIBE

CHEA, KIMNY B
69-42617

EKLOF, LINDSAY K
69-42484

JECK, NELSON N III
69-42485

SCOTT, JASMINE D
69-42615

YU, CHIJ
69-31141

ZHONG, HENG
69-42566



Summary of the Jamestown S’Klallam Compact
Proposed Compact Amendment

The Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe and State have reached a tentative agreement on a new Compact amendment,
which would supersede the original Compact, signed in 1993, and all previous amendments. The new Compact
is intended to reflect modernized regulatory practices, reduce duplication between Tribal and State regulators,
and clarify the roles of each party.

The following is a summary of the modifications:

Recitals This section was revised to remove outdated language referencing the Tribe’s plans for a
gaming facility (which opened in 1995).

Definitions This section was updated to add some defined terms and remove terms no longer contained
in the Compact.

Two Gaming Facilities The amendment authorizes a second gaming facility on lands within or
contiguous to the Tribe’s Land Consolidation Plan. The Tribe does not have current plans for a second
facility, but have requested this change in the event they would like another facility in the future.

Authorized Games This section replaces a list of specific games with language allowing the Tribe to
operate any Class Il table games authorized for play pursuant to game rules approved on the effective
date of this Compact.

Licensing/Certification/Registration

o Tribal gaming employees will continue to be licensed by the Tribe, which is primarily responsible
for conducting background investigations. Tribal gaming employees shall not have any gambling
convictions or felonies relating to fraud, misrepresentation, deception or theft within the last ten
years.

0 The Tribal Gaming Agency must register new or renewing employees with the State online or by
mail and provide the employee’s application, investigative report, photo, criminal history, and
fingerprint results.

o State certification of employees is replaced with registration verification, the State’s process to
determine whether the individual is of good character, does not pose a threat to the public or the
regulation of gaming, and is likely to conduct gaming activities according to the Compact. If the
State verifies that an individual is eligible for employment, their registration with the State will be
valid for three years and is not transferrable to other tribal casinos or house banked card rooms.

0 The State will conduct an annual comparison review to ensure all licensure criteria have been met.

o0 Manufacturers, distributors, service suppliers and certain financiers are still required to be licensed
by the Tribe and certified by the State.

Standards of Operation The original Compact provided for the minimum standards of operation and
management to be set out in Appendix A. The proposed Compact incorporates the Tribe’s current
internal controls that were approved by the Tribal Gaming Agency and concurred with by the State
Gaming Agency, as the minimum operating standards. Other Compact sections, including gaming
operations departments and surveillance requirements, will also be addressed in the Tribe’s internal
controls. The Tribe may make changes to its internal controls, but only with the State’s concurrence.

Tribal Gaming Agents (TGAs) Revises original Compact language requiring a TGA to be present at
the gaming facility during all hours of operation. A TGA will be present in the gaming facility as set out




by the Tribal Gaming Code and the Tribe’s internal controls to perform the Tribal Gaming Agency’s
responsibilities under the Compact. No changes in hours will be implemented until the State has
commented or 30 days has passed, whichever occurs first.

e Problem Gambling The Tribe will provide information annually about problem gambling education,
awareness, and treatment program services for tribal lands and surrounding communities. The Tribe and
the State will work together to share information related to problem gambling best practices.

e Sanctions and Civil Fines The Tribe and State have agreed to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding to define the schedule of fines and sanctions the Tribe or State may levy against a
gaming employee or the gaming operation.

e Appendices
e Appendix D - Gaming Station Transfer Agreement. In the event the Tribe opens a second gaming
facility and operates more than 60 tables, the Tribe must enter into this agreement to lease class 111
gaming stations from another Tribe.

e Appendix E — Keno Standards. This is a new appendix to clarify keno standards and include them
under the Compact.

e Appendix W — Provide a framework to review and approve a wide area progressive connected to the
Tribal Lottery System.

e Appendix Y - Provide the basic core requirements for electronic gaming devices that either allow
players to compete for a number from a predetermined set of numbers, each associated with a
specific outcome, or in a pooled wagering system whereby prizes are awarded from a wagering pool.

e Appendices X. X2, and X2 Addendum relating to Tribal Lottery System operation.

The Compact Approval Process

e The Gambling Commission Director sends notification about the proposed Compact to the Governor,
Legislature, Local Government Officials, and others.

e A designated committee from each house of the Legislature must hold public hearings within 30 days after
receiving the proposed Compact. During the legislative session this period is extended to 45 days.

e The Gambling Commission will hold a public hearing during the July 13, 2017, Commission meeting and
must vote to forward the proposed Compact to the Governor or return it to the Director for further
negotiations.

e The Tribal Chairman and the Governor will consider and, if they concur, sign the Compact.

e The Tribe will forward the final Compact to the U.S. Secretary of the Interior for review and signature,
followed by publication in the Federal Register.



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE TRIBAL-STATE COMPACT
FOR CLASS 11l GAMING BETWEEN
THE JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE AND THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

INTRODUCTION

The JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE (hereafter “Tribe”) and the STATE OF
WASHINGTON (hereafter “State”) entered into a Class 111 gaming compact (hereafter
“Compact”) on February 19, 1993, pursuant to the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988
(hereafter “IGRA”). At the request of the Tribe, the Tribe and State subsequently entered into
negotiations for further amendments to the Compact. This document represents the parties’
agreement to supersede the original Compact as previously amended in its entirety. The parties
believe the conduct of Class I11 gaming under the terms and conditions set forth below will, from
a regulatory perspective, benefit the Tribe and the State and protect members of the Tribe and
citizens of the State consistent with the objectives of IGRA.

COMPACT AMENDMENT

This Class 111 Tribal-State Gaming Compact and its appendices supersedes the original Tribal-
State Gaming Compact entered on February 19, 1993, as amended, in its entirety.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe and the State of Washington have
executed this Sixth Amendment to the Compact.

THE JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE STATE OF WASHINGTON
BY: BY:

W. RON ALLEN JAY INSLEE

Chairman, Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe Governor

DATED: DATED:




TRIBAL — STATE COMPACT
FOR CLASS |1l GAMING

BETWEEN THE

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe

AND THE

State of Washington



Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe — State of Washington
Class 111 Gaming Compact

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUGTION ..ottt sttt st b et e et e e sab e e nbeesbeeebeeeneaennes 1
INTENT STATEMENT ..ottt sdb ettt e e e sbe e ne e nns 1
PARTIES .ttt et eabr e eR e e b et e bt e e e e e beennneenneeanneas 1
RECITALS .ottt dE e R b e bttt e s be e e st e e s n e e be s be e e nneennneeneesnneas 1
DECLARATION OF POLICY AND PURPOSE .......cccoi st 2
l. LI LI T ST U PP PPRTPPR 4
1. DEFINITIONS ...ttt ettt ettt e e kb sttt e e sb e e bt e e st e e sbeeesteenbeeanbeenree e 4
[1. NATURE AND SCOPE OF CLASS HI GAMING ...ioeoiiiiiiieeieeeee e 7
A. Location of the Gaming FaCility ...........c.ccoveiiiiiiie e 7
B. Ownership of Gaming Facilities and Gaming Operation ...........ccccceeveviveveciiesnennenn, 7
C. CONSEIUCTION ...ttt n e nn e 7
D. Public Health, Safety and Environmental Protection .............cccocvevvvivenviinivnnnsnnn 7
E. AICONOIIC BEVEIAGE SEIVICE.......ccuiiiiiiiiiieiieiee e 8
F.  Community CONEIDULION ........coiiiiiiiiiiceecee e 8
G. FOrmS OF PAYMENT ..ottt 9
H.  Size of GamiNg FIOOT.........coiiiiiie e 9
I.  Number of Gaming StAtiONS .........ccceiiieiieieiieie e 9
J. Wagering LIMITALIONS .......c.coiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 9
K. HOUIS OF OPEIAION ....ouviiiiiiiiiiieiieeee bbb 9
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017

Class 111 Gaming Compact Page i



L. PrONIDITEA ACHIVITIES .oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 9

M. Prohibition 0N IMINOTS .........ooiiiiiiii e 9
N.  Prohibition 0N FIr€AIMS .........cciiiiiiiiici e 10
O. Acceptance of Electronic Benefits Cards From the State of Washington ............... 10
V. CLASS I GAMING ACTIVITIES. ... 10
A.  AUthorized Class T GamMES.........cooeiiiriiieiiiees st 10
B.  Class H Table GAMES. ........oooiiiiiiieiiie e st 11
C.  LOMEry-tyPe GaIMES ......ooieieiiiiiiieitie ettt sbr ettt ettt be e ae e bbe s e sbe e eeeenee e 11
D. Punchboards and Pull Tabs - Separate LOCAIONS .....cccoeieeiiiiiiieiieie e 11
V. LICENSING AND REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS. ..o 12
A, GaMING FACHITIES ....cuviiiieiee st et et sae e e e reenaeaneenne s 12
B, NEW FACHITIES ...ttt 12
C. Manufacturers and Suppliers of Gaming SErVICES........ccovvrvervriiereeresiesieeree e 12
D FINANCIEIS ittt bttt ettt bbbt b bbbt 12
E. Tribal Application FOIMS........ccooiiiiiiiece e 13
F.  Gaming EMPIOYEES.....cciiuiiiiieiecie ettt ettt esre e nre e 13
G, 1dentifiCation CAIOS..........coeiveiriiriiiees e 13
VI. TRIBAL LICENSING AND STATE REGISTRATION.....ccocoiiiiiiiiiee e 13
A, Tribal GaAMING LICENSES .....coiiiitiitiitisiieieeee ettt 14
B. Respective Roles for Background Investigations for Tribal Gaming Employee
Licenses and State RegiStration ..........ccccoveveiiieirere e 14
VII.  STATE CERTIFICATION ...ttt st 19
A. State Role for Issuing State Certification of Manufacturers and Suppliers of Gaming
Services and FINANCIEIS. ......ccuoiriiiirieeeise s 19
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017

Class 111 Gaming Compact Page ii



B. Grounds for Revocation, Suspension, or Denial of State Certification.................... 19
C. Right to Hearing for Revocation, Suspension, or Denial of State Certification...... 20
D. Summary Suspension of State CertifiCation ............ccoooveiiiiiiiiinie i 21
E. Submission to State AdMINIStrative PrOCESS..........ccuieireiririenieiiiieseee e 21
VIIl. FEES FOR STATE GAMING EMPLOYEE REGISTRATION AND SUPPLIER,
MANUFACTURER, AND FINANCIER CERTIFICATION ......ccciusiiiiiiiiicieeeiee 21
IX. TRIBAL ENFORCEMENT OF COMPACT REQUIREMENTS ........cccooiiiiieiieee 22
A, Tribal REQUIALION ... st nne s 22
B.  Tribal Gaming AQENCY ......coveieiieiieeieeiesdeesseaeestaesteseeseesteeseesseesssanasineesseeneesseesees 22
C.  Tribal Gaming AGENTS. ......uiiiieieieieiie st sbeenr ettt sttt b b see e 23
D.  INVESTIGALION. .....cuiiiiiiitiitiitieisir ettt b ettt ettt n bbb 23
E.  Reporting Of VIOIAtIONS. ..........iiiiiei et ettt 23
F.  Tribal Problem-Gambling Program ..c........ccccoevveviiiieieeie e 23
X. COOPERATIVE ENFORCEMENT OF COMPACT REQUIREMENTS...........ccee. 24
A. State Gaming Agents — MONITOFING .. ......covveverieiiee e seesie e ee e e 24
B.  ACCESS 10 RECOMS .ottt bbb 24
Ci INVESTIZAIIONS ..ttt ettt bbbt 25
D. Tribal Gaming Agency Access to State Gaming Agency Records...........ccccceuenen, 25
E. Cooperation With Tribal Gaming AgGENCY.......cccveruiiieieirieiieie e 25
XI. STANDARDS OF OPERATION ... .ottt 26
A. Adoption of Standards of Operation and Management ............ccccocceveveveeresiesnenne. 26
B. Additional Operation REQUIFEMENTS .........ccoiiriiiiiiisieieee e 27
C.  RUIES OF the GAMES .....ocuiiiiiiiiee e 28
D.  Minimum Supervisory REQUITEMENTS .......c.ccuiiierieiieieeiesiiesiee e 28
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017

Class Il Gaming Compact Page iii



T = =Yoo (0 R Rz (=1 1[0 o 29

XIL JURISDICTION L.ttt ettt b et e e ssne e nbeesmbeenbeennneen 29
AL CrimMINAL IMAIEIS ... 29
B, CIVII LTS ... 30
C. Sanctions and CiVil FINES........ccccooiiiiiiiii e 30
D. Limited Application OF State LaW.........cceveiiiiieriicie e iiee e 30
E. Preservation of Tribal Self-Government.............c.ccitiinniiiiien e, 30
F.  Law Enforcement COOrdiNation...........c.cooiiesiimimeieiieieiesiesie et 31

XII. REIMBURSEMENT FOR REGULATORY EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE STATE

GAMING AGENCY .otk e sttt e st e st e e bt e nbeenteesanaenes 31
XIV. DISPUTE RESOLUTION ...ttt abe et stes et essaeesaeesnnessbeesnneens 31
AL INETOTUCTION. ...t bt ottt 31
B. Dispute Resolution AREINAtIVES .....cciiviiiiieiicesec e 31
C. Limited Waiver of Sovereign IMmUNILY ............ccccvevieiiiiieie e 33
D, RETEIENCES ... ittt ettt 33
XV.  REMEDIES . ... . ettt b e bbb e nbe e see e ee e 34
A:  Injunction AQaINSE the STATE...........ccoiiiiiiieee e 34
B. Injunction Against the Tribe, the Tribal Gaming Operation, or any Individual...... 34
XVI. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY oot 34
XVIIl. EFFECTIVE DATE, DURATION, AND AMENDMENTS ........cooiiiiieeee 34
A, EFTECHIVE DALE ... 34
B, TEIMINALION......oiiiiiiiiee et r et ne e 34
C.  Subsequent NEGOTIATIONS. ......ccueiveriirieiiesiieiiee ettt 35
D. Enactment of COMPACT PrOVISIONS........cccoiiiiiiiiieiie et 35
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017

Class 111 Gaming Compact Page iv



E. Revision of State RegUIALIONS...........coeiiiiiiiiiiiiieccee e 35

F.  Change Of State LaAW.......cocuiiiiiiiieiiee ettt 35
G. Clarification, Amendments, and Renegotiations ...........ccoovvveieiienienninie e 35
XV NOTICES ...ttt ettt e et e e s bt e s b e e b e enn e e nneeanne e ree e 37
XEX. SEVERABILITY Lot 37

APPENDIX C- SATELLITE (OFF-TRACK) WAGERING ON HORSE RACES
APPENDIX D - CLASS 11l GAMING STATION TRANSFER AGREEMENT
APPENDIX E - KENO STANDARDS

APPENDIX W - WIDE AREA PROGRESSIVE

APPENDIX X - TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEM

APPENDIX X2 - TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEM

APPENDIX X2 ADDENDUM

APPENDIX Y - REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRONIC GAMING DEVICES (EGDS)

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page v



INTRODUCTION

This CLASS 11l TRIBAL-STATE GAMING COMPACT is entered into pursuant to the Indian
Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-497, codified at 25 U.S.C. §§ 2701-2721 and 18
U.S.C. 88 1166-1168 (hereafter IGRA or Act).

INTENT STATEMENT

This Class 11l Tribal-State Gaming Compact supersedes the original Tribal-State Gaming
Compact entered on February 19, 1993, as amended, and is hereby stated as set forth below and
pursuant to the appendices attached hereto.

PARTIES

This Class 111 Tribal-State Gaming Compact is made and entered into by and between the
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe (hereafter Tribe), a federally recognized Indian Tribe, possessed of
all sovereign powers and rights thereto pertaining and the State of Washington (hereafter State),
a sovereign state of the United States, with all rights and powers thereto pertaining.

RECITALS!

An understanding of the unique nature and characteristics of the Tribe and its people as well as
the location of the Tribal Lands provided the background against which the Tribe and the State
negotiated this Compact to govern the conduct of Class 111 Gaming on Tribal Lands.

A. The Tribe has a unique history that is reflected in its current outlook, successes and
approach to new opportunities. The Tribe’s history is permeated with the theme of self-
determination and self-reliance. In 1855, the Tribe entered the Treaty of Point No Point
(Treaty). In the late 1800°s the Tribe resisted pressure from the federal government to
move to the Lower Elwha or the Skokomish Reservation. To preserve their cultural and
community independence they raised $500 and, as a community, purchased 500 acres of
land on Dungeness Bay, in an area now known as Jamestown. The intense belief in self-
determination has directed the decisions and actions of the community and the Tribal
government.

The “RECITALS” section of this Compact was prepared by the Tribe as an introduction to the
Tribe and its governmental process. However, the State has no independent basis for verifying
the facts contained within the RECITALS.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 1



. The Tribe obtained federal recognition in 1981, resulting in the acknowledgement of the
Tribe’s Treaty rights and the authority to operate and negotiate as a sovereign in
government to government settings. During the recognition process, the Tribal
community worked to crystallize the goals and visions for their government and
community. The outcome of this process was the development of a clear strategic plan
and documentation of the community’s goals.

. The Tribe confronts a unique situation regarding land acquisition. When the Tribe
received federal recognition a reservation was not established for the Tribe and its
citizens. All land owned by the Tribe has been purchased by the Tribe since 1983. When
the Tribe was recognized in 1981, the Federal Government also recognized the need for
the Tribe to have a process for identifying and acquiring land, and having it declared as
reservation land. Without an existing land base or reservation, a suitable method for land
conversion was necessary.

. Through a five year process involving agency, area and central offices of the Bureau of
Indian Affairs (BIA) and the Department of the Interior, input from local governments
and other Indian tribes, the BIA Portland Area Director approved a land consolidation
plan for the Tribe, under authority delegated to him by the Secretary of the Interior. The
Tribe is the only Tribe in Washington State authorized to identify land sites to be
converted into reservation status under the terms of a land consolidation plan. This plan
identified areas of cultural, historical, environmental and economic development interest.
The consolidation plan area extends roughly from Port Angeles to Sequim Bay, to Port
Townsend and to Brinnon.

. The Jamestown Reservation originally consisted of approximately nine usable acres. The
Reservation is located in the northwestern part of Washington State, on the Olympic
Peninsula, approximately seven miles east of the city of Sequim and some distance from
the State’s major population centers.

. The Tribe contracts with the Clallam County Sherriff’s Office for law enforcement
services on the Tribal Lands and has built a fire station on trust land that it leases to the
local fire district. These steps were taken to ensure the safety of patrons and employees at
the Tribe’s Gaming Facilities and the surrounding community.

DECLARATION OF POLICY AND PURPOSE

The Tribe and the State recognize and respect the laws and authority of the respective parties.

The Congress of the United States has enacted into law IGRA, Pub. L. 100-497, 25 U.S.C. 8§
2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. 881166-1168, which provides in part that a Tribal-State Compact may
be negotiated between a Tribe and a State to govern the conduct of certain Class 111 Gaming
activities on Tribal Lands within the State if the Gaming activity is not specifically prohibited by
federal law and is conducted within a State which does not, as a matter of criminal law and
public policy, prohibit such Gaming activity.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 2



The Tribe and the State have negotiated the terms and conditions of this Compact in good faith
so as to provide for mutual governmental purposes and to provide a regulatory framework for the
operation of certain Class 111 Gaming, which is intended to: (a) ensure the fair and honest
operation of such Gaming activities; (b) maintain the integrity of all activities conducted in
regard to such Gaming activities; (c) prevent unsavory and unsuitable persons from having any
direct or indirect involvement with Gaming activities at any time or in any capacity; (d) establish
and maintain responsible accounting practices and procedures; (e) maintain effective control
over the financial practices related to Gaming activities, including establishing the minimum
procedures for internal fiscal affairs and the safeguarding of assets and revenues and reliable
recordkeeping; (f) prevent cheating and fraudulent practices; and (g) protect the health, welfare
and safety of the citizens of the Tribe and of the State.

The Act provides that an Indian Tribe may conduct Class 111 Gaming as provided in IGRA; and
The Tribe and the State of Washington have mutually agreed that the conduct of Class 111
Gaming under the terms and conditions set forth below will benefit the Tribe and protect the
citizens of the Tribe and of the State consistent with the objectives of the Act.

The parties hereto deem it to be in their respective best interests to enter into this Compact.

A principal goal of federal Indian policy is to promote tribal economic development, tribal self-
determination and a strong government to government relationship.

The State recognizes the Tribe’s sovereign rights to control Gaming activities on Tribal Lands as
provided by the Act and this Compact.

It is the policy of the Tribe to exercise and retain its rights to regulate Gaming activities upon its
Tribal Lands for the purposes of encouraging Tribal employment, economic and social
development, and funding of Tribal services while ensuring the fair and lawful operation of
Gaming and the prevention of corrupt and criminal influences. Per 25 U.S.C. § 2710(b)(2)(B),
the Tribe will utilize net revenues generated by Gaming to fund tribal government operations or
programs, to provide for the general welfare of the Tribe and its citizens, to promote tribal
economic development, to donate to charitable organizations, or to help fund operations of local
government agencies.

This Compact shall govern the licensing, regulation and operation of Class 111 Gaming conducted
by the Tribe on Tribal Lands located within the State.

The State and the Tribe are empowered to enter into this Compact due to their inherent power to
contract and pursuant to IGRA and State law.

In consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Tribe and
the State enter into the following Compact.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 3



. TITLE

This document will be cited as “Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe — State of Washington Gaming

Compact.”

Il. DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Compact:

A.

“Act” or “IGRA” means the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, Pub. L. 100-497, 25
U.S.C. 82701 et seq.

“Applicant” means any Individual who has applied for a tribal license, State
Certification, or Gaming Employee Registration, whether or not such license,
certification, or registration is ultimately granted.

“Cash Equivalent” means a treasury check, personal check, travelers check, wire
transfer of funds, money order, certified check, cashier’s check, a check drawn on the
Tribal Gaming Operation payable to the patron or to the Tribal Gaming Operation, or
a voucher recording cash drawn against a credit card or charge card.

“Class 111 Gaming” means all forms of Gaming as defined in 25 U.S.C. § 2703(8) and
authorized under Section 1V of this Compact.

“Closed Surveillance System” means a recording system with a collection of
surveillance cameras in which live signals are viewed and/or recorded within the
system and are not publicly distributed or accessible.

“Compact” means the Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe — State of Washington Gaming
Compact and Appendices, as stated herein.

“Electronic Gambling Device” means any device or mechanism the operation of
which a right to money, credits, deposits or other things of value may be created, in
return for a consideration, as the result of the operation of an element of chance and
any device or mechanism which, when operated for a consideration, does not return
the same value or thing of value for the same consideration upon each operation
thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, “Electronic Gambling Device” does not
include a “Class Il Gambling Device.”

“Gaming” means staking or risking something of value upon the outcome of a contest
of chance or a future contingent event not under the person’s control or influence,
upon an agreement or understanding that the person or someone else will receive
something of value in the event of a certain outcome.

“Gaming Code” means the Jamestown Tribal Ordinance approved by the National
Indian Gaming Commission pursuant to IGRA and codified in Chapter 7 of the

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 4



Jamestown Tribal Code, as amended and any regulations adopted by the Tribe
thereunder.

C. “Gaming Employee” means any person employed in the operation or management of
the Gaming Operation, whether employed by or contracted by the Tribe or by any
person or enterprise providing on or off-site services to the Tribe within or without
the Gaming Facilities regarding any Class 111 Gaming, including, but not limited to,
gaming operation managers and assistant managers; accounting personnel; security
and surveillance personnel; cashier supervisors; dealers; box men; floormen; Pit
bosses; shift bosses; cage personnel; collection personnel; gaming consultants;
management company employees, officers, and Principals; and any other natural
person whose employment duties require or authorize access to restricted areas of the
Gaming Facilities not otherwise opened to the public.

D. “Gaming Employee Registration” means the process conducted by the State Gaming
Agency to determine, from the State’s perspective, if a person is of good character,
honesty and integrity; his or her prior activities do not pose a threat to the public or to
effective regulation of this Compact; and that he/she is likely to conduct Class IlI
Gaming activities in accordance with this Compact.

E. “Gaming Facility” or “Gaming Facilities” means the building or buildings or
portions thereof in which Class 11l Gaming occurs as authorized by this Compact.

F. “Gaming Operation” or “Tribal Gaming Operation” means the enterprise or
enterprises operated by the Tribe on Tribal Lands for the conduct of any form of
Class Il Gaming in any Gaming Facility.

G. “Gaming Services” means the providing of any goods or services to the Tribe directly
in connection with the operation of Class 111 Gaming in a Gaming Facility, and
involving restricted areas or access. Goods or services include, but are not limited to,
equipment, maintenance, management or security services for the Gaming Facility.

H. “Gaming Station” means one Gaming table of the general size and scope as
commonly used in Nevada.

l. “Independent Accountant” means a professional accountant suitably qualified and
sufficiently independent to act as auditor of the Tribal Gaming Operation.

J. “Individual” means, but is not limited to, natural persons and business entities
including business sole-proprietorships, partnerships, corporations, joint ventures,
organizations and associations.

K. “Internal Controls” means the internal operational system or internal procedure of the
Gaming Operation designed to promote efficiency, safeguard assets, and avoid fraud
and error.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017

Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 5



L. “Local Law Enforcement Agency” means any law enforcement agency in the vicinity
of the Gaming Operation that has jurisdiction to enforce local and state laws within
the Tribal Lands, or is subject to the terms of a cross-deputization agreement.

M. “National Indian Gaming Commission” or “NIGC” means the Commission
established pursuant to Section 5 of the Act, 25 U.S.C. § 2704.

N. “Net Win” means the total amount of Gaming Station income (gross Gaming
revenue), i.e., the difference between the total amount wagered or played and the
amounts repaid to winners.

0. “Pit” means the area enclosed or encircled by an arrangement of Gaming Stations in
which Gaming Facility personnel administer and supervise the games played at the
tables by the patrons located on the outside perimeter of the area.

P. “Principal” means with respect to any enterprise: (i) each of its officers and directors;
(ii) each of its principal management employees, including any chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or general manager; (iii) each
of its owners or partners, if an unincorporated business; (iv) each of its shareholders
who own more than ten percent of the shares of the corporation, if a corporation; and
(v) each person other than a banking institution who has provided financing for the
enterprise constituting more than ten percent of the total financing of the enterprise or

project.
Q. “RCW” means the Revised Code of Washington, as amended.
R. “State” means the State of Washington, its authorized officials, agents and

representatives.

S. “State Certification” means the process utilized by the State Gaming Agency to
ensure that entities required to be certified are qualified to hold such certification in
accordance with this Compact.

T. “State Gaming Agency” means the Washington State Gambling Commission.

U. “Tribal Gaming Agency” means the Tribal Gaming Commission or such other agency
of the Tribe as the Tribe may from time to time designate by written notice to the
State as the single Tribal agency primarily responsible for regulatory oversight of
Class 111 Gaming as authorized by this Compact. No employee of the Gaming
Operation may be a member or employee of the Tribal Gaming Agency.

V. “Tribal Lands” means Indian lands as defined by 25 U.S.C. § 2703(4)(A) and (B),
subject to the provisions of 25 U.S.C. 8 2719, which lands are subject to the
jurisdiction of the Tribe.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 6



“Tribal Law Enforcement” means any police force established and maintained by the
Tribe pursuant to the Tribe’s powers of self-government to carry out law enforcement
within the Tribal Lands.

“Tribe” means the Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe, its authorized officials, agents and
representatives.

“WAC” means the Washington Administrative Code, as amended.

I11.  NATURE AND SCOPE OF CLASS 11l GAMING

A. Location of the Gaming Facility

The Tribe may establish two (2) Gaming Facilities, to be located on Tribal Lands within
or contiguous to the boundaries of the Tribe’s Land Consolidation Plan approved by the
Bureau of Indian Affairs on July 10, 1989, for the operation of any Class I11 Gaming
authorized pursuant to this Compact.

B. Ownership of Gaming Facilities and Gaming Operation

The Gaming Operation, including all Gaming Facilities, shall be owned by the Tribe.
The Tribe may, if it chooses, contract for management of the Gaming Facilities and
Gaming Operation. Any such contract shall subject the manager to the terms of this
Compact, including annual State Certification and licensing.

C. Construction
Any Gaming Facility will comply with all applicable tribal and federal regulations,
including by way of example: zoning, building, environmental review and water quality
protection.

D. Public Health, Safety and Environmental Protection

The number of persons permitted in any Gaming Facility will not exceed the number
authorized by applicable fire and building codes. The Tribe shall make provisions for
adequate emergency accessibility and service. The Tribe shall comply with and enforce
standards no less stringent than those contained in the following laws, regulations and

codes:

(1) Indian Health Service public health standards.

(2) All Federal laws establishing minimum standards for environmental protection.

(3) Applicable Environmental Protection Agency program standards and National
Environmental Policy Act requirements.

(4) Federal water quality and safe drinking water standards.

(5) Uniform Building Code, including codes for electrical, fire and plumbing.

(6)
(7)

Public health standards for food and beverage handling in accordance with U.S.
Public Health Service requirements.
Tribal Codes regarding public health, safety and environmental protection standards.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 7



E. Alcoholic Beverage Service
Standards for alcohol service within the Gaming Facilities shall be subject to applicable
law or applicable agreement between the Tribe and Washington State Liquor and
Cannabis Board.

F. Community Contribution

(1) The Tribe recognizes that activities directly and indirectly associated with the
operation of its Gaming Facilities may impact Local Law Enforcement Agencies,
emergency services, and other services and place an increased burden on them. The
Tribe hereby agrees to establish an Impact Mitigation Fund for purposes of
providing assistance to non-Tribal Law Enforcement, emergency services, and/or
service agencies (including those agencies responsible for traffic and transportation,
as well as those that provide services to support problem or pathological gambling)
showing demonstrated impacts by the Class I11 Gaming Facilities. The Tribe agrees
to withhold and disburse up to two percent (2.0%) of the Net Win from Gaming
Stations within the Gaming Facilities, except as otherwise excluded under the
provisions of this Compact, for the Impact Mitigation Fund. Except as provided in
Appendix X2, Section 14.1, no Tribal Lottery System gaming device revenues,
proceeds from a nonprofit station as authorized under Section I11(l), Class Il gaming
revenues, or non-gaming revenues, such as, but not limited to, food, beverage,
wholesale or retail sales, shall be included, with the two percent (2.0%) as set forth
in this section.

(2) A committee consisting of a representative of the Tribal Council; a representative
from the county in which the Gaming Facility is located; and a representative of the
State Gaming Agency shall be established. The makeup of this committee may be
altered by mutual agreement of the Tribe and State Gaming Agency, if necessary.
The committee shall execute a Memorandum of Understanding containing
committee rules of order, Impact Mitigation Fund distribution procedures, and
establish set factors to be used to determine demonstrated impacts. Unless all
committee members agree otherwise, the committee shall meet at least once every
twelve (12) months to discuss the following: 1) impacts within the county,
neighboring cities, and on the Tribal Lands; 2) services provided by the Tribal and
other agencies; and 3) the distribution of the Impact Mitigation Fund.

(3) The recipients of the Impact Mitigation Fund shall be paid within thirty (30) days
following the meeting of the committee.

(4) Sections (2) through (3) above may be altered upon written agreement between the
Tribe and the impacted jurisdictions. A copy of such agreement shall be provided
to the State Gaming Agency upon request.

(5) Either the State Gaming Agency or the Tribe may request a re-evaluation, and
possible adjustment of the community contribution based upon impacts being
different than anticipated. In the event the State and Tribal Gaming Agencies
mutually agree, the community contribution shall be adjusted at that time.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 8



G. Forms of Payment
All payment for wagers made in authorized forms of Class 111 Gaming conducted by the
Tribe on its Tribal Lands, including the purchase of chips for use in wagering, shall be
made by cash, Cash Equivalent, credit card or personal check.

H. Size of Gaming Floor
The actual size of the Class 111 Gaming Floor within the Gaming Facility shall be
determined by the Tribe.

l. Number of Gaming Stations
The maximum number of Class 11 Gaming Stations shall not exceed seventy-five (75)
Gaming Stations within one Gaming Facility and a total of fifty (50) Gaming Stations
within a second Gaming Facility plus, at the option of the Tribe, one (1) additional
Gaming Station (“the nonprofit station”) for every twenty-five (25) Gaming Stations
allowed in a Gaming Facility. The proceeds from all nonprofit stations shall be dedicated
to support nonprofit and charitable organizations and their activities located within
Clallam County or the State of Washington. For purposes of determining “proceeds”
from a nonprofit station only, proceeds shall mean the pro rata net profit of the nonprofit
station. The Tribal Gaming Code shall require regulations to be adopted concerning the
types of bona fide nonprofit and charitable organizations or types of projects of such
organizations that shall be supported by a nonprofit station. PROVIDED, that the Tribe
is required to obtain transfers of Class Il1 Gaming Station authorization from another
Tribe which has entered into a compact with the State for the use of Class 11l Gaming
Stations, as defined in this Compact for any Class 111 Gaming Stations, except for
nonprofit stations, beyond sixty (60) in total for all Gaming Facilities. PROVIDED
FURTHER, that the transfer of Class |11 Gaming Station authorization from another
Tribe shall be effectuated through the use of a “Class 111 Gaming Station Transfer
Agreement” substantially in the form appended hereto as Appendix D of this Compact.

J. Wagering Limitations
Wager limits shall not exceed five hundred dollars ($500).

K. Hours of Operation
Operating hours shall be determined by the Tribe.

L. Prohibited Activities
Any Class Il Gaming activities, electronic facsimiles of Gaming activities, and
Electronic Gambling Devices that are not specifically authorized in this Compact are
prohibited.

M. Prohibition on Minors
No person under the age of eighteen (18) shall participate in any Gaming activities
authorized by this Compact, or be employed in any Gaming Operation, or be allowed on
the Class 111 Gaming floor during actual hours of operation. PROVIDED, that such age
limitation shall not apply to an individual accompanied by an adult for the specific and

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 9



limited purpose of proceeding directly and immediately across the Gaming area for
legitimate non-gaming purpose, with no Gaming area loitering or Gaming participation
by the underage person or accompanying adults. Persons between the ages of eighteen
(18) and twenty (20) may patronize and participate in Class |11 Gaming activities offered
by the Tribe in its Gaming Facilities, so long as such patrons do not purchase or consume
alcoholic beverages on the premises in accordance with Washington State liquor laws or
an applicable written agreement between the Tribe and Washington State Liquor and
Cannabis Board.

N. Prohibition on Firearms
The possession of firearms by any person within the Gaming Facilities shall be strictly
prohibited, and the Gaming Operation shall post a notice of this prohibition near any
entrance to the Gaming Facilities. This prohibition shall not apply to authorized agents
of the Tribal or State Gaming Agencies. This prohibition shall also not apply to Local
Law Enforcement or Tribal Law Enforcement agencies authorized by federal law, tribal
law or by a cooperative, mutual aid or cross-deputization agreement.

0. Acceptance of Electronic Benefits Cards From the State of Washington.
The Tribe shall ensure that all cash dispensing outlets, including without limitation,
automated teller machines (ATM) and point of sale machines located within the Tribe’s
Gaming Facility or Facilities, shall'not accept Electronic Benefits Cards.

IV. CLASS Il GAMING ACTIVITIES

A.  Authorized Class Il Games
The Tribe may conduct, subject to the terms and conditions of this Compact, any or all of
the following games:

1) Keno; subject to Appendix E;
2 Satellite (Off-Track) wagering on Horse Races, subject to Appendix C;
3) Tribal Lottery Systems operated in conformity with Appendix X or X2;

4) Sports Pools, on regularly scheduled athletic contests, of one hundred (100)
squares wherein each square is sold for not more than ten ($10) dollars and all
proceeds, less a tribal administrative charge of no more than 50 cents for each $10
wagered, are awarded as prizes. All other provisions of RCW 9.46.0335 shall be
applicable;

(5) The sale of Washington State lottery tickets on the Jamestown S’Klallam Indian
Tribe Reservation shall be subject to the provisions of RCW 67.70, WAC 315,
and the Tribal Gaming Code;

(6) Any Electronic Gambling Device, as defined herein and the Johnson Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1171, and as set forth in Appendix Y to this Compact; and

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 10



@) Tribal Lottery System Wide Area Progressive operated in conformity with
Appendix W.

B.  Class Ill Table Games
1) The Tribe may offer any Class 111 table game authorized for play in the State of
Washington pursuant to the game rules approved at the time of the effective date
of this amended Compact.

2 For any modification to currently authorized Class 111 table games or Class |11
table games that are subsequently authorized for play inthe State of Washington,
the Tribe shall provide the game regulations to the State Gaming Agency at least
thirty (30) days prior to the time play shall begin. If the State takes no action
within the thirty (30) days, the Tribe shall begin offering the game. If a dispute
arises between the Tribe and the State with respect to issues of the legality of the
game, rules of the game, manner of play, or training or enforcement associated
with regulation, the State and Tribal Gaming Agencies shall meet and resolve the
dispute prior to the time play of that game can begin. If either party believes, after
negotiations have commenced, that a resolution by the parties cannot be achieved,
then either or both parties shall be entitled to have the dispute resolved pursuant to
the dispute resolution provisions of Section XIV below.

3) For any other Class 111 table games authorized for play in Nevada and played in
accordance with applicable Nevada rules, the Tribe shall provide the game
regulations to the State Gaming Agency at least thirty (30) days prior to the time
play shall begin. PROVIDED, should a dispute arise, the game shall not be
utilized until the dispute is resolved in accordance with Section XIV.

C. Lottery-type Games
For games including keno-type games, instant tickets, or other lottery-type games
authorized for play for any purpose by any person, organization, or entity in the State of
Washington that are not otherwise treated as Class 1l gaming in Washington pursuant to
25 U.S.C. 8 2703(7), the Tribe will submit the proposed rules, manner of regulation and
manner of play to the State Gaming Agency at least sixty (60) days prior to time play
shall begin. If the State takes no action within the sixty (60) days, the Tribe may begin
offering the game. PROVIDED, should a dispute arise, the game shall not be utilized
until the dispute is resolved in accordance with Section XIV.

D.  Punchboards and Pull Tabs - Separate Locations
In addition to the games authorized by Section IV(A), the Tribe may utilize punchboards
and pull tabs in its Gaming Facilities and at other locations under the jurisdiction of the
Tribe subject to regulation and licensing by the Tribe and operated in a manner consistent
with the sale of punchboards and pull tabs under IGRA.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 11



V. LICENSING AND REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

A. Gaming Facilities
The Gaming Facilities authorized by this Compact shall be licensed by the Tribal Gaming
Agency in conformity with the requirements of this Compact and the Gaming Code prior
to commencement of operation.

B.  New Facilities
Verification that the Compact and Gaming Code requirements have been met for any new
or additional Gaming Facilities, or for expansion of an existing Gaming Facility shall be
made by the Tribal Gaming Agency and State Gaming Agency, through a joint pre-
operation inspection scheduled at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled opening to
the public. If a Gaming Facility fails to meet such requirements, the Tribal or State
Gaming Agency must send a written and detailed non-compliance letter and report to the
Tribe and the manager, if any, within seven (7) working days after completion of the
inspection. If the Tribal and State Gaming Agencies do not agree on whether a Gaming
Facility meets the requirements, the agencies will meet within seven (7) working days
from receipt of the non-compliance letter and work together to resolve concerns. If a
dispute regarding this inspection cannot be resolved by the Gaming Agencies within sixty
(60) days, the parties may seek resolution pursuant to Section X1V of this Compact.

C.  Manufacturers and Suppliers of Gaming Services
Each manufacturer and supplier of Gaming Services shall be licensed by the Tribal
Gaming Agency and shall be certified by the State Gaming Agency prior to the sale of
any Gaming Services to the Tribe. If a supplier or manufacturer of the Gaming Services
or goods is currently licensed or certified by the State of Washington to supply goods or
services to any other Tribe in the State, it shall be deemed certified to supply the same
goods or services to the Tribe for the purposes of this Compact. The licensing and
certification shall be maintained annually after the initial certification. In the event a
manufacturer or supplier demonstrates that their anticipated profits from sales will be
below the cost of obtaining a State Certification, it may apply for an abbreviated form of
State Certification known as a special sales permit. Firms or representatives providing
professional legal and accounting services, when licensed by the Washington State Bar
Association or the Washington State Board of Accountancy, will not be subject to State
Certification, and the Tribe will determine if a license is required. In the event a
manufacturer or supplier provides or intends to provide less than $25,000 worth of
Gaming Services or goods annually, the licensing and certification requirements may be
waived upon the mutual agreement of the Tribal and State Gaming Agencies.

D.  Financiers
Any party who extends or intends to extend financing, directly or indirectly, to a Gaming
Facility or Gaming Operation shall be subject to the annual certification and licensing
requirements of the State Gaming Agency and the Tribal Gaming Agency. Such party
shall be required to obtain State Certification before executing the financing agreement
and annually thereafter as long as the financing agreement is in effect. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, these licensing and certification requirements do not apply to financing

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 12



provided by a federally regulated commercial lending institution, the Tribe, or the federal
government. Federally regulated commercial lending institutions are those regulated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation, the United States Federal Reserve System, the National
Credit Union Administration and the Washington State Department of Financial
Institutions.

E.  Tribal Application Forms
All Applicants required to be licensed by the Tribe shall complete forms furnished by the
Tribal Gaming Agency that, at a minimum, shall include complete name, aliases, social
security number, date of birth, current address, and information relating to the
Applicant’s complete criminal history, as well as all civil or administrative violations of
gambling laws or regulations.

F.  Gaming Employees
Every Gaming Employee shall be licensed by the Tribal Gaming Agency prior to
commencement of employment and as outlined in Tribal Gaming Code. Every Gaming
Employee must be registered with the State Gaming Agency and shall have their Gaming
Employee Registration verified by the State Gaming Agency. The Tribal Gaming
Agency shall provide a list of licensed and temporarily licensed Gaming Employees to
the State Gaming Agency during the annual comparison review in the 4" quarter of each
calendar year. The Tribal Gaming Agency shall include the licensee’s complete name,
aliases, social security number, and date of birth in its submission to the State Gaming
Agency.

G.  Identification Cards
The Tribal Gaming Agency shall require all Gaming Employees to carry on their person
at all times identification cards issued by the Tribal Gaming Agency which include the
Gaming Employee’s photo, first name, an identification number unique to the
individual’s tribal license, a Tribal seal or signature, and a date of expiration.

VI. TRIBAL LICENSING AND STATE REGISTRATION
Gaming Employee Registration requires the Tribal Gaming Agency to demonstrate Tribal
licensing expertise without substantial or repeated, material discrepancies in conducting Gaming
Employee background investigations. In order to qualify for Gaming Employee Registration, the
following criteria must be met:

The Tribe has operated Class I11 Gaming and the Tribal Gaming Agency has licensed
Gaming Employees for at least 20 years; and

The Tribal Gaming Agency regulations are regularly reviewed and updated; and

The Tribal Gaming Agency director has demonstrated active involvement with licensing
denial, suspension, and revocation in accordance with the Tribe’s Gaming Code; and

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 13



The Tribal Gaming Commission has demonstrated a history of active involvement in the
licensing process and license appeal hearings; and

Tribal Gaming Agency licensing staff are fully versed in the Judicial Information System
(J1S) including the Superior Court Management Information System (SCOMIS) or
equivalent systems; and

Tribal Gaming Agency licensing staff reviews all Gaming Employee information
provided in JIS, FBI records, and Lexis Nexis reports or equivalent systems.

The Tribe meets all of the criteria above.

A Tribal Gaming Licenses
1) The Tribal Gaming license is valid at the Tribe’s Gaming Facilities only and is
non-transferable.

(2 The Tribal Gaming Agency, pursuant to the laws of the Tribe, may summarily
suspend any Tribal license if the continued licensing of a person or entity
constitutes an immediate and potentially serious threat to the public health, safety
or welfare.

3) Tribal Gaming Employees shall be licensed by the Tribal Gaming Agency in
accordance with the Gaming Code.

4) If Class 11 and Class Il1 Gaming activities are combined in a Gaming area in a
Gaming Facility, the parties agree that this could impact the regulatory scheme
established under this Compact. In such event, the Class Il Gaming Employees in
such area shall be registered with the State Gaming Agency as if they were Class
111 Gaming Employees.

(5) Tribal license fees for manufacturer, financier and/or supplier of Gaming Services
will be set by the Tribal Gaming Agency.

(6) In order to ensure a qualified work force is maintained throughout the State in all
areas of Class Il Gaming as well as in all other types of gambling authorized in
the State, the Tribal Gaming Agency will forward to the State Gaming Agency a
copy of the final disposition of any administrative action or legal proceeding
taken by the Tribal Gaming Agency against a Tribal Gaming licensee.

B. Respective Roles for Background Investigations for Tribal Gaming Employee Licenses
and State Registration
1) Tribal Gaming Agency

a) The Tribal Gaming Agency will be responsible for the issuance of all
Tribal Gaming Employee licenses.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 14



b) The Tribal Gaming Agency shall be primarily responsible for conducting
background investigations for all Applicants for Tribal Gaming Employee
licenses. Each Applicant for a Tribal Gaming Employee license shall
submit the completed application along with the required information and
fees to the Tribal Gaming Agency. Each completed application shall
include the Applicant’s fingerprint card(s), current photograph, and any
other information required by the Tribal Gaming Agency.

C) The Gaming Operation shall not hire, or continue to employ a Gaming
Employee, and shall terminate any Gaming Employee, if the Tribal
Gaming Agency determines that the Applicant or Employee:

I. Has been convicted of any offense related to gambling, or any
felony (excluding juvenile convictions) relating to fraud,
misrepresentation, deceptione¥ theft, or physical harm to an
individual within the past ten (10) years;

ii. Has provided materially false statements or information on his or
her employment application or misstated or otherwise attempted to
mislead the Tribe or the State with respect to any material fact
contained inthe employment application;

ii. Is a member or associate of organized crime or is of notorious or
unsavory reputation; or

iv. Has a reputation, habits or associations that might pose a threat to
the public interest or to the effective regulation and control of
Gaming, or create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair, or
illegal practices, methods and activities in the conduct of Gaming
or the carrying on of the Tribal and financial arrangements
incidental thereto.

d) It is intended that Applicants and Gaming Employees have the continuing
burden to satisfy all doubts as to their fitness. Where doubt remains, an
Applicant or Gaming Employee is not entitled to be hired or to remain
employed.

e) Nothing herein shall be interpreted to prevent the Tribal Gaming Agency
from considering juvenile convictions in a suitability determination, nor
shall be interpreted to excuse the Applicant of its obligation to disclose
juvenile convictions or arrests.

f) Additionally, the Tribal Gaming Agency shall not grant an application for
a license unless it is satisfied that the Applicant’s prior activities, criminal
record (if any), reputation, habits, and associations do not pose a threat to
the public interest of the Tribe or the State or the effective regulation and

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 15



control of Gaming pursuant to this Compact, or create or enhance the
dangers of unsuitable, unfair or illegal practices, methods, and activities in
the conduct of Gaming or the carrying on of the Tribal and financial
arrangements incidental thereto.

9) When the Tribal Gaming Agency has completed its investigation of the
Gaming Employee Applicant and has issued a temporary license, it will
within five (5) business days:

I. Register on-line with the State Gaming Agency a new or renewing
Gaming Employee or notify the State Gaming Agency of a Change
of Name and pay the respective fees; or

ii. Mail a Gaming Employee Registration with respective fees.

iii. The registration will include the Tribal Gaming Agency’s
investigative report; the Applicant’s personal information; results
of the investigation; a current photograph; FBI fingerprint check
results; JIS results or its electronic equivalent, and the applicable
fees to the State Gaming Agency.

h) The Tribal Gaming Agency will use the State Gaming Agency’s on-line
process to notify the State Gaming Agency when a Gaming Employee is
no longer licensed by the Tribal Gaming Agency.

(2 The State Gaming Agency

a) The State Gaming Agency will conduct a verification of Gaming
Employee Registrations that are received either online or by paper
application.

b) The State Gaming Agency will complete the verification and notify the
Tribal Gaming Agency if the results indicate the person may be
unqualified pursuant to this section of this Compact. If the State Gaming
Agency does not object, the Gaming Employee Registration will expire
three (3) years from the date of the Gaming Employee Registration, or
upon notification of a tribal license revocation, or the person is no longer
licensed by the Tribal Gaming Agency, whichever occurs earlier.

C) The State Gaming Agency retains the right to conduct an additional
verification of Gaming Employee Registration of any Gaming Employee
at any time. There will be no additional cost to the Tribe.

d) The State Gaming Agency’s Gaming Employee Registration is valid at the
Tribe’s Gaming Facilities only and is non-transferable.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 16



e) For verification of Gaming Employee Registration, the State Gaming
Agency may consider any prior criminal conduct or current probationary
status of the Applicant or holder of certification and the provisions of
RCW 9.95.240 and of Chapter 9.96A RCW shall not apply to such cases.

f) The Gaming Employee Registration will also include information as
authorized under RCW 9.46.210(4) and as defined in RCW 10.97.030.

)] The State Gaming Agency may find a person to be unqualified under the
provisions of RCW 9.46.075 and rules promulgated thereunder. The State
Gaming Agency may also find a person to be unqualified if such person
has engaged in an activity contrary to the public interest, including but not
limited to the following:

I. Who because of prior activities, criminal record, if any, or
reputation, habits and associations poses a threat to the effective
regulation of Gaming or creates or enhances the chances of unfair
or illegal practices, methods and activities being used in the
conduct of the Gaming activities permitted pursuant to this
Compact;

ii. Has violated, failed or refused to comply with the provisions,
requirements, conditions, limitations or duties imposed by any
provision of a Tribal-State Compact;

iii. Has failed to provide any information reasonably required for
Gaming Employee Registration;

iv. Has failed to reveal any fact which the person knows or should
reasonably know is material to Gaming Employee Registration;

V. Has furnished any information which is untrue or misleading in
connection with receiving Gaming Employee Registration;

Vi. Has had a Gaming license suspended for a year or longer, revoked
or denied during the twelve (12) months prior to the date of
registration with the State Gaming Agency; is currently on
probation imposed by any jurisdiction; or has demonstrated a
willful disregard or failed to comply with the requirements of any
Gaming regulatory authority in any jurisdiction, including offenses
that could subject the Individual or entity to suspension, revocation
or forfeiture of any Gaming license; or

vii.  Has demonstrated a willful disregard or failed to comply with the
requirements of any Gaming regulatory authority in any

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 17



jurisdiction, including offenses that could subject the person to
suspension, revocation or forfeiture of any Gaming license.

h) The State Gaming Agency will work with the Tribal Gaming Agency
when determining a person may be unqualified for Gaming Employee
Registration.

i) If a person may be unqualified for Gaming Employee Registration, the
materials compiled by the State Gaming Agency will be available to the
Tribal Gaming Agency at the State Gaming Agency office upon request,
subject to any constraints imposed by the State Gaming Agency’s
accreditation as a law enforcement agency and status as a member of the
Association of Law Enforcement Intelligence Units.

)] The State Gaming Agency will conduct an annual comparison review in
the 4" quarter of each calendar year to include random sampling of
Gaming Employee applications to demonstrate all the criteria for licensure
and Gaming Employee Registration as set forth in this Compact have been
met.

3 Tribal Gaming Agency and State Gaming Agency

a) A licensed employee seeking renewal of their Gaming Employee license
or re-registering with the State Gaming Agency shall update information
originally submitted, as requested, on the appropriate renewal forms, but
shall not be required to re-submit historical data already available to the
Tribal Gaming Agency or State Gaming Agency. A Gaming Employee
that has applied for renewal may continue to work under the expired
Tribal license until the Tribal Gaming Agency or State Gaming Agency
takes action on the renewal application.

b) For persons found to be unqualified at any time they are registered by the
State Gaming Agency, the Tribal Gaming Agency and State Gaming
Agency will work together to determine if the person should work for the
Tribe’s Gaming Facilities in a position that requires a Gaming Employee
License. If the Tribe can show extenuating circumstances why a person
who does not meet all criteria should be further considered, the Tribal
Gaming Agency may waive, through a conditional Gaming Employee
License, certain criteria if the waiver does not pose an appreciable risk to
the public or the lawful operation of the Gaming Facilities or meet the
criteria under Section B (1) c).

C) If, after working with the Tribal Gaming Agency, the State Gaming
Agency still finds the person unqualified, the State Gaming Agency will
provide written notice to the Tribe itemizing the objections. The Tribe,
however, will make the final decision whether to issue a license or

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 18



continue employment of the person. The State Gaming Agency’s Gaming
Employee Registration of the person will be limited to the Tribe only and
the Tribe will continue to register the person with the State Gaming
Agency as long as the person is employed by the Tribe in a Class 111
Gaming position.

VIl. STATE CERTIFICATION

A. State Role for Issuing State Certification of Manufacturers and Suppliers of Gaming

Services and Financiers

1) The State Gaming Agency shall be primarily responsible for conducting
background investigations for all Applicants for financier, manufacturer and/or
supplier of Gaming Services certification and their representatives. Each
Applicant for a financier, manufacturer and/or supplier of Gaming Services Tribal
Gaming license shall submit to the Tribal Gaming Agency the completed
application along with the required information and fees, as set by the Tribal
Gaming Agency. In addition, each financier, manufacturer and/or supplier of
Gaming Services and their representatives shall apply for State Certification and
shall submit the completed application along with the required information and
fees to the State Gaming Agency. Each completed application shall include the
Applicant’s fingerprint card(s), current photograph, and any other information
required by the Tribal Gaming Agency. For Applicants who are business entities,
these provisions shall also apply to Principals of the entity and their spouses who
must be able to meet the same State Certification requirements and who may be
required to submit this information.

2 Upon completion of the necessary background investigation, the State Gaming
Agency shall either issue a State Certification to the financier, manufacturer,
and/or supplier of Gaming Services or deny the application based on criteria set
forth in this Compact or State law and regulations.

3) Each manufacturer, and/or supplier of Gaming Services shall obtain a State
Certification prior to issuance of a Tribal License and before the sale or
installation of any Gaming goods, except as provided under Section V(C).

4) If a financier is licensed by the State Gaming Agency, it will be deemed certified.

B. Grounds for Revocation, Suspension, or Denial of State Certification
(1)  The State Gaming Agency may deny, suspend, or revoke a State Certification
under the provisions of RCW 9.46.075, and rules promulgated thereunder, for any
reason or reasons it deems to be in the public interest. In addition, these reasons
shall include, but shall not be limited to when an Applicant or holder of an
eligibility determination or State Certification or Principal of an entity:

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 19



b)

Is determined to be a person who because of prior activities, criminal
record, if any, or reputation, habits and associations poses a threat to the
effective regulation of Gaming or creates or enhances the chances of
unfair or illegal practices, methods and activities being used in the conduct
of the Gaming activities permitted pursuant to this Compact;

Has violated, failed or refused to comply with the provisions,
requirements, conditions, limitations or duties imposed by any provision
of a Tribal-State Compact;

Has failed to provide any information reasonably required to investigate
the application for eligibility verification or State Certification;

Has failed to reveal any fact which the Applicant or holder knows or
should reasonably know is material to such application;

Has furnished any information which is untrue or misleading in
connection with such application; or

Has had a Tribal or State Gaming license or certification revoked or
denied during the twelve (12) months prior to the date the State Gaming
Agency received the application; is currently on probation imposed by any
jurisdiction; or has demonstrated a willful disregard or failed to comply
with the requirements of any Gaming regulatory authority in any
jurisdiction, including offenses that could subject the Individual or entity
to suspension, revocation or forfeiture of any Gaming license. The Tribal
Gaming Agency will forward to the State Gaming Agency a copy of the
final disposition of any administrative action or legal proceeding taken by
the Tribal Gaming Agency against a Tribal license issued to a financier,
manufacturer and/or supplier of Gaming Services.

2 For the purpose of reviewing any application for State Certification or for
considering the denial, suspension or revocation of any State Certification, the
State Gaming Agency may consider any prior criminal conduct or current
probationary status of the Applicant or holder of certification and the provisions
of RCW 9.95.240 and of Chapter 9.96A RCW shall not apply to such cases.

3) The State Gaming Agency will consult with the Tribal Gaming Agency prior to
denying State Certification when the Tribe is considering using the financier,
manufacturer or supplier of Gaming Services.

C. Right to Hearing for Revocation, Suspension, or Denial of State Certification

Any Applicant for State Certification or holder of a State Certification shall be entitled to
notice and a full hearing on any action by the State Gaming Agency which may result in
the revocation, suspension, or denial of State Certification. The notice and hearing will
be conducted in accordance with the procedures contained in the applicable provisions of

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 20



VIII.

Chapter 9.46 RCW, Chapter 34.05 RCW and Chapter 230-17 WAC. The State may, at
its discretion, defer such actions to the Tribal Gaming Agency. Nothing herein shall
prevent the Tribal Gaming Agency from invoking its own disciplinary procedures and
proceedings at any time. The Tribe shall have the right to appear and present argument
and/or evidence in any hearings held pursuant to this section. Nothing herein shall be
interpreted to preclude the Tribe from invoking the dispute resolution provisions of this
Compact to challenge a State Gaming Agency decision to revoke, suspend or deny State
Certification.

Summary Suspension of State Certification

The State Gaming Agency, pursuant to the laws of the State, may summarily suspend
any State Certification if the continued State Certification constitutes an immediate and
potential serious threat to public health, safety or welfare.

Submission to State Administrative Process

Applicants for State Certification agree by submitting such application to submit to State
jurisdiction to the extent necessary to determine qualification to hold such State
Certification, including all necessary administrative procedures, hearings and appeals
pursuant to RCW 9.46, WAC 230-17, and the State Administrative Procedure Act, RCW
34.05.

FEES FOR STATE GAMING EMPLOYEE REGISTRATION AND SUPPLIER,
MANUFACTURER, AND FINANCIER CERTIFICATION

State Gaming Employee Registration
Fees for State Gaming Employee Registration and renewal will be as follows:

(@) Initial Three-Year Gaming Employee Registration - $185.
2 Three-Year Gaming Employee Registration renewal - $150.

3) Registration and renewal fees may be adjusted by mutual agreement three years
from the adoption of this amended Compact, or at any time thereafter.

Comparison Review

State Gaming Agency licensing personnel and Tribal Gaming Agency representatives
will conduct an annual Gaming Employee comparison review. This review will ensure
that State Gaming Agency and Tribal Gaming Agency Gaming Employee records agree
to one another. The Tribe will reimburse the State Gaming Agency for the actual time it
takes for the comparison review. This comparison review will be conducted remotely.
Any discrepancies found will be resolved by the Tribal Gaming Agency and notification
provided to the State Gaming Agency. Unresolved discrepancies will be resolved in
accordance with Section VI1.B(3) of this Compact. The Tribal Gaming Agency and the
State Gaming Agency will update their respective records as needed.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 21



C. Alternative Fee Agreements
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Compact, the Tribal Gaming Agency and the
State Gaming Agency may enter into a Memorandum of Understanding regarding fees.

D. State Certification of Suppliers, Manufacturers and Financiers
The fees for initial and the renewal of State Certification shall be determined pursuant to
WAC 230-05 for service suppliers, manufacturers and their representatives.
PROVIDED, should actual costs incurred by the State Gaming Agency exceed the stated
fees, those costs will be assessed to the Applicants during the investigation process.
Payment in full to the State Gaming Agency will be required prior to beginning the
investigation for the issuance of State Certification.

IX. TRIBAL ENFORCEMENT OF COMPACT REQUIREMENTS

A. Tribal Regulation
The ultimate responsibility for ensuring the regulation, control and integrity of the
Gaming activities authorized by this Compact will be that of the Tribe and/or its
delegated designee. The Tribe will provide for and oversee or delegate the following
functions:

1) Enforcement of all relevant laws and regulations in the Gaming Facilities;
(2 Ensuring the physical safety of patrons in the Gaming Facilities; and

3) Ensuring the physical safety of personnel employed by the Gaming Operation.

B. Tribal Gaming Agency
The primary responsibility for the on-site regulatory compliance of the Gaming
Operation authorized by this Compact, and for the enforcement of such compliance on
Tribal Lands will be that of the Tribal Gaming Agency. No employee of the Gaming
Operation will be a member or employee of the Tribal Gaming Agency.

As part of its structure, the Tribal Gaming Agency will perform the following functions
or ensure that they are being performed by the Tribe or its designee, as related to the
regulation and integrity of Gaming:

1) Ensure the physical safeguarding of Gaming assets transported to and from the
Gaming Facilities and cashier’s cage department;

2 Protect the patrons’ and the Gaming Facilities’ property from illegal activity;

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 22



(€)) Temporarily detain persons who may be involved in illegal acts, for the purpose
of notifying law enforcement authorities; and

4) Record, in a permanent and detailed manner, any unusual occurrences, all
incidents requiring further review, alleged violations, and investigations occurring
within the Gaming Facilities.

C. Tribal Gaming Agents
1) Tribal Gaming Agents shall be independent of the Tribal Gaming Operation, and
shall be supervised and accountable only to the Tribe through the Tribal Gaming
Commission.

2 A Tribal Gaming Agent shall be present in the Gaming Facilities during such
times as prescribed by the Tribe through its Gaming Code in an amount sufficient
to perform the Tribal Gaming Agency’s responsibilities and duties under the
Compact. The Tribal Gaming Agency shall notify the State Gaming Agency of
any proposed changes to the Gaming Code that would revise such on-site hours,
and no changes in hours will be implemented until the State Gaming Agency has
commented or thirty (30) days has lapsed, whichever occurs first.

D. Investigation
1) The Tribal Gaming Agency shall investigate any reported, observed or suspected

violation of the Compact provisions or Gaming Code and shall require the Tribal
Gaming Operation to correct the violation upon such terms and conditions as the
Tribal Gaming Agency determines are necessary.

2 If requested by the Tribal Gaming Agency, the State Gaming Agency shall assist
in any investigation initiated by the Tribal Gaming Agency and provide other
related investigation services for which the Tribe agrees to reimburse the State
Gaming Agency for its costs.

E. Reporting of Violations
1) Any violation of the provisions of this Compact by the Tribal Gaming Operation,
a Gaming Employee, manufacturer or supplier of Gaming Services or any person
on the premises whether or not associated with the Tribal Gaming Operation shall
be reported immediately to the Tribal Gaming Agency. The Tribal Gaming
Agency shall notify the State Gaming Agency within seventy-two (72) hours of
the time the violation was reported.

(2)  The Tribal Gaming Agency shall make available all completed incident and
investigation reports and final dispositions to the State Gaming Agency on a
continuing basis.

F. Tribal Problem-Gambling Program
The Tribe recognizes that Gaming activities can lead to compulsive behavior that has the
same negative consequences as other behavioral addictions. The Tribe agrees to establish

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 23



an education and awareness program for Tribal Lands and surrounding communities. The
program may be independent or developed as an adjunct to the program with which the
State currently works. On an annual basis 120 days after the end of the Tribe’s fiscal
year, the Tribe will provide information about education, awareness, and treatment
program services in its community impacts and contributions report under Appendix X2,
Section 14.7 which includes how funding was spent and how the community benefited
from the program. The Tribe and State Gaming Agency agree to work together in good
faith to share information related to problem gambling best practices and to meet
promptly on the request of either party to discuss issues related to problem gambling.

X.  COOPERATIVE ENFORCEMENT OF COMPACT REQUIREMENTS

The Tribe recognizes the benefit of cooperative monitoring, investigating, and reporting between
the Tribe and State to further the goal of fair and honest Gaming. The cooperative enforcement
of the Compact requirements will be conducted as described in this section.

A. State Gaming Agents — Monitoring
1) The State Gaming Agency shall work cooperatively with the Tribal Gaming
Agency to monitor the Tribal Gaming Operation to ensure that it is conducted in
compliance with the provisions of this Compact. The State Gaming Agency will
coordinate inspections or investigations with the Tribal Gaming Agency prior to
onsite monitoring of the Tribal Gaming Operation, unless coordination would
compromise the purpose of the inspection or investigation.

2 State agents shall provide proper identification at the time of inspection to the
appropriate Tribal representatives; PROVIDED the State Gaming Agency
Director may assign agents to work in an undercover capacity to assist in
monitoring the provisions of this Compact. The Tribal Gaming Agency and the
State Gaming Agency shall establish protocols that allow the Tribal Gaming
Agency to confirm that the State agent is duly authorized by the State to monitor
the Tribal Gaming Operation.

3) Agents of the State Gaming Agency and, as applicable, the Washington Horse
Racing Commission, shall have access equivalent to that exercised by the Tribal
Gaming Agency to all areas of the Gaming Facility during operating hours with or
without giving prior notice to the Tribal Gaming Operation. Following the
investigation, and to the extent such disclosure does not jeopardize the
investigation or the personal safety of individuals, the State shall provide the
Tribal Gaming Agency with a report of the investigation, including information
about evidence gathered in connection with the investigation.

B. Access to Records
1) Agents of the State Gaming Agency may review and copy, during operating
hours, all applicable Class 111 Gaming records maintained by the Tribal Gaming
Operation as necessary to verify compliance with provisions of this Compact.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 24



However, the State Gaming Agency is mindful of the Tribe’s desire for privacy,
and agrees to examine all records at the Gaming Facilities, to the extent practical.
The State Gaming Agency further agrees that its agents will only retain copies of
records necessary for investigative purposes. Any information shall be deemed
strictly confidential and proprietary information of the Tribe and shall not be
disclosed except as required under law or the terms of this Compact.

2 The State Gaming Agency or, as applicable, the Washington Horse Racing
Commission, shall notify the Tribe, by certified mail, or by other mutually agreed
upon means, of requests for disclosure of the Tribe’s information and shall not
disclose any such information until the Tribe, the State, or both have had a
reasonable opportunity to challenge the request.

C. Investigations
1) The Tribal Gaming Agency and the State Gaming Agency will have concurrent

jurisdiction to investigate violations of the provisions of this Compact, and to
bring administrative and criminal charges, in accordance with Tribal laws and the
provisions of Chapter 9.46 RCW, Chapter 34.05 RCW, and Chapter 230-17
WAC.

2 The State Gaming Agency will notify the Tribal Gaming Commission of any
alleged violations of the provisions of this Compact and may request the Tribal
Gaming Commission take appropriate enforcement and/or corrective action.
Failure of the Tribal Gaming Commission to take the action recommended by the
State Gaming Agency will constitute a dispute or disagreement between the
parties subject to the dispute resolution provisions contained in Section XIV of
this Compact.

D. Tribal Gaming Agency Access to State Gaming Agency Records

At the completion of any inspection or investigation, copies of the investigative report
will be forwarded to the Tribal Gaming Agency along with copies of evidence and
information pertinent to the inspection. The Tribal Gaming Agency may inspect and
copy records maintained by the State Gaming Agency concerning Class 111 Gaming by
the Tribe subject to-any constraints imposed by the State Gaming Agency's accreditation
as a law enforcement agency and status as a member of the Law Enforcement
Intelligence Unit.

E. Cooperation With Tribal Gaming Agency
1) To maintain the partnership for enforcement of the provisions of this Compact,
representatives of the Tribal Gaming Agency and the State Gaming Agency shall
meet at least once every twelve (12) months to review the regulatory program for
the Tribe’s Gaming Facilities.

(2 The State Gaming Agency and, as applicable, the Washington Horse Racing
Commission, shall promptly notify the Tribal Gaming Agency of any activity

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 25



suspected or occurring, whether within a Gaming Facility or not, which adversely
affects State, Tribal or public interests relating to the Gaming Facilities and
Gaming Operation. PROVIDED, such disclosure shall not compromise the
interest sought to be protected.

Xl.  STANDARDS OF OPERATION

A. Adoption of Standards of Operation and Management
The Tribe’s approved and State concurred version of Internal Controls dated June 8,
2017, are effective as of the effective date of this amended and restated Compact as
minimum operating standards to govern the operation and management of the Gaming
Operation. Any new or revised Internal Controls adopted by the Tribe shall ensure that
the interests of the Tribe and the State relating to Class Il Gaming are preserved and
protected; maintain the integrity of the Gaming Operation; and reduce the dangers of
unfair or illegal practices in the conduct of the Class 111 Gaming Operation.

1) The Tribal Gaming Agency shall forward to the State Gaming Agency any
proposed changes to the Internal Controls for review and concurrence.

a) Each such proposal shall contain a narrative representation of the internal
control system, including copies of the forms to be used.

b) The Tribal Gaming Agency shall detail how such changes in the
provisions adequately preserve and protect the integrity and security of the
standard it is replacing.

C) The State Gaming Agency concurrence with the Tribal Gaming Agency
proposal shall be deemed granted after sixty (60) days of receipt of the
Tribal Gaming Agency proposal if no disapproval in writing is received
from the State Gaming Agency.

d) The State Gaming Agency shall only disapprove such portions of a
proposal it finds would have a material adverse impact on public interest
or on the integrity of the Gaming Operation and shall detail the reasons for
disapproval.

e) The Tribal Gaming Agency shall ensure a proposal is not implemented
until the State Gaming Agency has concurred or sixty (60) days has lapsed
and the Tribe did not receive a written disapproval within that time.

(2)  The Tribe may choose to automate any processes, reports, or data collection
provided in the minimum operating standards with advance notice to the State
Gaming Agency. PROVIDED, that the Tribal Gaming Agency certifies how the
automation maintains the integrity of the Gaming Operation, reduces the dangers
of unfair or illegal practices in the conduct of the Class I11 Gaming Operation,

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 26



adequately preserves and protects the integrity and security of the control, and
complies with the Compact. This section cannot be used to modify other sections
of the Compact.

B. Additional Operation Requirements

1) At the close of the fiscal year, the Tribal Gaming Operation shall, at its own
expense, have its annual financial statements audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by an Independent Accountant.

a) The annual financial statements shall be prepared on a comparative basis for
the current and prior calendar or fiscal year and shall present the financial
position and results of operations in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

b) The Tribal Gaming Operation shall require its Independent Accountant to
render the following reports:

The audited financial statements, together with the report thereon
of the Tribal Gaming Operation’s Independent Accountant.

A report on material weakness in accounting and Internal Controls.
Whenever, in the opinion of the Independent Accountant, there
exists no material weaknesses in accounting and Internal Controls,
the report shall say so; and

A report expressing the opinion of the Independent Accountant
that, based on his or her examination of the financial statements,
the Tribal Gaming Operation has followed, in all material respects,
during the period covered by his or her examination, the system of
accounting and internal control on file with the Tribal Gaming
Agency. Whenever, in the opinion of the Independent Accountant,
the Tribal Gaming Operation has deviated from the system of
accounting and Internal Controls filed with the Tribal Gaming
Agency, or the accounts, records, and control procedures examined
are not maintained by the Tribal Gaming Operation in accordance
with the Compact and these standards, the report shall enumerate
such deviations regardless of materiality, the areas of the system
no longer considered effective and shall make recommendations in
writing regarding improvements in the system of accounting and
Internal Controls.

c) One copy of each of the reports required by paragraphs (ii) and (iii) and copies
of any other reports on accounting and internal control, administrative
controls, or other matters relating to the Tribal Gaming Operation’s
accounting or operating procedures rendered by the Tribal Gaming
Operation’s Independent Accountant, shall be filed with the Tribal Gaming

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact

UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Page 27



Agency within 120 days following the end of each fiscal year or within thirty
(30) days of receipt whichever is earlier. Notification will be sent to the State
Gaming Agency not later than 120 days following the end of the calendar or
fiscal year when these statements are available for review. PROVIDED,
extensions may be granted for extenuating circumstances by the Tribal
Gaming Agency.

C. Rules of the Games
The Tribal Gaming Agency shall notify the State Gaming Agency of the rules of each
game operated by the Tribe pursuant to this Compact and of any change in such rules.
Summaries of the rules of each game relevant to the method of play and odds paid to
winning bets shall be visibly displayed or available in pamphlet form in the Gaming
Facilities. Betting limits applicable to any Gaming Station shall be displayed at such
Gaming Station. Rules for games identified in Section 1V-Class Il Gaming Activities
shall be submitted to the State Gaming Agency for review, to determine if the rules
fundamentally alter the nature of the game. In the event the State Gaming Agency has
concerns in regard to a change in the rules, it shall submit such concerns to the Tribal
Gaming Agency for its review and comment. The Tribe will provide the State Gaming
Agency with ten (10) days advance notice of the rules of each game and any modification
thereof, and will provide adequate notice to patrons of the Gaming Facilities to advise
them of the applicable rules in effect.

D. Minimum Supervisory Requirements
The Gaming Operation shall provide the Tribal Gaming Agency and the State Gaming
Agency with a description of its minimum requirements for supervisory staffing for each
Table Gaming Pit operated in its Gaming Facilities, and in the event that the State
Gaming Agency regards such supervisory staffing as inadequate, the Tribal and State
Gaming Agencies shall promptly confer in good faith in an effort to reach agreement on
supervisory staffing requirements.

1) To ensure integrity, the Tribal Gaming Operation shall maintain detailed security
and surveillance logs in accordance with the specifications set out in Tribe’s
Internal Controls, and in a written or computerized record which shall be
available for inspection by the Tribal Gaming Agency and the State Gaming
Agency in accordance with Section X(B) of this Compact.

(2 The Gaming Operation shall provide the Tribal Gaming Agency with copies of its
floor plan and Closed Surveillance System and any modifications thereof for
review by the Tribal Gaming Agency. If the floor plan or Closed Surveillance
System does not provide unobstructed camera views in accordance with such
regulations, the Tribal Gaming Agency shall modify such floor plan or Closed
Surveillance System in order to remedy such deficiency. The Tribal Gaming
Agency shall make available to the State Gaming Agency the floor plan and
Closed Surveillance System for review and consideration.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 28



©)

(4)

()

The Tribal Gaming Operation shall install a Closed Surveillance System
according to the specifications set out in the Tribe’s Internal Controls.

The Tribal Gaming Agency shall establish a list of persons barred from the
Gaming Facilities because their criminal history or association with career
offenders or career offender organizations poses a threat to the integrity of the
Gaming activities of the Tribe. The Gaming Operation shall employ reasonable
efforts to exclude persons on such list from entry into its Gaming Facilities. The
Tribal Gaming Agency shall make a copy of its list available to the State Gaming
Agency on a continuing basis. Copies of reports will be forwarded to the State
Gaming Agency as requested.

Standards for management and operation of satellite wagering activities shall be
consistent with the provisions of this Compact, including Appendix C, and those
applicable to non-tribal satellite wagering facilities and activities in the State to
the extent not inconsistent with this Compact.

E. Records Retention

1)

(2)

All information required in Section XI-Standards of Operation will be
documented in a permanent form.

Unless otherwise specified in these standards or exempted by the Tribal Gaming
Agency, all forms, records, documents, and required stored data shall:

a) Be located on Tribal Lands or such other location as approved by the
Tribal Gaming Agency; and

b) Be retained for at least two (2) years in a manner and location that assures
reasonable access by the Tribal and State Gaming Agencies.

XIl. JURISDICTION

A. Criminal Matters

1) Investigative Authority
The Tribal Gaming Agency, Tribal Law Enforcement, the Clallam County
Sheriff, the Washington State Patrol, and the State Gaming Agency will have the
authority to investigate and make arrests if necessary for all gambling and related
crimes against the laws of the Tribe and applicable laws of the State that occur
within the Gaming Facilities or within Tribal Lands.

(2)  Jurisdictional Forums
Following investigation and arrest, formal charges will be brought in the
appropriate venue. Criminal prosecution of non-Indians will be through the proper
State or Federal Courts. Criminal prosecution of Indians will be through the
proper Tribal Court, State or Federal Courts.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017

Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 29



B. Civil Matters
1) Concurrent Jurisdiction

The Tribal Gaming Agency and the State Gaming Agency will have concurrent
jurisdiction to investigate violations of the provisions of this Compact and to
bring administrative charges in the appropriate forum, in accordance with Tribal
Laws or the provisions of Chapter 9.46 RCW and Chapter 230-17 WAC, made
applicable by this Compact, against any individual or entity that is licensed by the
Tribal Gaming Agency, or certified by the State Gaming Agency in accordance
with the provisions of this Compact.

2 Tribal Jurisdiction
Civil disputes arising from the conduct of Gaming under the Gaming Code may
be heard in the Northwest Intertribal Court or appropriate administrative forum as
established by the Gaming Code.

C. Sanctions and Civil Fines
1) The Tribal Gaming Agency and State Gaming Agency may impose fines and

other sanctions against the Gaming Operation, a Gaming Employee, or any other
person directly or indirectly involved in, or benefiting from, the Gaming
Operation for violations of the Compact provisions or Gaming Code. The Tribal
Gaming Agency and the State Gaming Agency shall enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding, which may be amended from time to time, to define the schedule
of fines and sanctions.

(2)  Any penalties collected shall be distributed to a non-tribal, bona fide nonprofit or
charitable organization in the State of Washington selected by the Tribe. Any
civil fines assessed pursuant to the provisions of this Compact shall be paid within
thirty (30) days of assessment.

D. Limited Application of State Law
For the purposes of 18 U.S.C. § 1166(d) and enforcing the provisions of this Compact,
and of protecting the public health, safety and welfare, and to the extent not inconsistent
with other provisions of this Compact, RCW 9.46.0269; 9.46.075; 9.46.140; 9.46.155;
9.46.160; 9.46.170; 9.46.180; 9.46.185; 9.46.190; 9.46.196; 9.46.1961; 9.46.1962;
9.46.198; 9.46.210 (3) & (4); 9.46.215; 9.46.220; 9.46.221; 9.46.222; 9.46.225;
9.46.228; 9.46.231; 9.46.235; 9.46.240; 9.46.410; 10.97.030; 67.16; 67.70; and
74.08.580; as now or hereinafter amended, shall be applicable and incorporated herein as
part of this Compact and the Tribe consents to this transfer of jurisdiction to the State
with respect to Gaming on Tribal Lands.

E. Preservation of Tribal Self-Government
Nothing in this Compact will be deemed to authorize the State to regulate in any manner
the government of the Tribe, or to interfere with the Tribe’s selection of its governmental

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 30



officers, including members of the Tribal Gaming Agency. No licensing or registration
requirement contemplated by this Compact will be applicable to such officers with
respect to their capacity as officers of the Tribe.

F. Law Enforcement Coordination
In an attempt to foster a spirit of cooperation between the Tribal Law Enforcement and
Local Law Enforcement Agencies authorized to enforce the criminal laws of the State,
the Tribe and those laws affecting the public health, safety and welfare of the
surrounding communities, representatives of those Law Enforcement Agencies shall
meet periodically or as requested by any of the Law Enforcement Agencies to discuss
mutual concerns and coordinate the enforcement actions necessary to minimize those
concerns.

XIll.  REIMBURSEMENT FOR REGULATORY EXPENSES
INCURRED BY THE STATE GAMING AGENCY

The Tribe agrees to pay an annual Regulatory Fee in accordance with Appendix X2, Section 13,
as now or hereafter amended.

XIV. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

A.  Introduction
In recognition of, and consistent with, the government-to-government relationship of the
Tribe and State, the parties shall make their best efforts to resolve disputes by good faith
negotiations whenever possible. Therefore, the parties hereby establish a method of non-
judicial dispute resolution in order to foster a spirit of cooperation and efficiency in the
administration and monitoring of performance and compliance by each other with the
terms, provisions and conditions of this Compact.

B.  Dispute Resolution Alternatives
1) Meet and Confer
In the event of a dispute or disagreement between the parties regarding the
implementation and compliance with any terms, conditions, and provisions of this
Compact, or otherwise by mutual agreement of the parties, disputes shall be
resolved as follows:

a) Either party shall give the other, as soon as possible after the event giving
rise to the concern, written notice setting forth the nature of the dispute
(including reference to the relevant portions of this Compact), and the
issues to be resolved.

b) The parties shall meet and confer in a good faith attempt to resolve the
dispute through negotiation not later than twenty (20) business days from
receipt of the notice.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 31



2 Mediation
If the dispute is not resolved to the satisfaction of either party within twenty (20)
business days of the first meeting, then the parties, by agreement, may seek and
cause to have the dispute resolved by formal mediation, in which event the parties
shall use their best efforts to select a mediator as soon as possible. The mediator’s
fees and attendant costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties.
The parties understand that informal and formal mediation may not always lead to
satisfactory results. In the event either party is dissatisfied with informal and/or
formal mediation, they may seek judicial resolution of any disagreement relating
to the administration, monitoring of performance and compliance with the terms,
provisions and conditions of this Compact. However, the parties are free under
this Compact to agree to other alternative dispute resolution mechanisms.

3 Standard Arbitration
a) In the event informal and/or formal mediation fails to resolve the dispute
between the parties, the parties may choose by mutual agreement to
resolve the dispute by arbitration. In no.event may the request be made
earlier than twenty (20) days after a party has properly notified the other
party under the procedures set forth in Section XIV(B).

b) Sites for such arbitrations shall alternate between Jamestown S’Klallam
Tribal Lands and the State Gaming Agency or Washington Horse Racing
Commission offices, as applicable, after each arbitration dispute, as
follows: the first arbitration dispute, until completed, shall be held on
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribal Lands; the next arbitration dispute, until
completed, shall be held at the State Gaming Agency or Washington
Horse Racing Commission offices; and so forth.

C) In the event the parties agree to arbitration, the Tribe and the State Gaming
Agency shall, within five (5) days, agree upon an arbitrator to decide the
matter at issue, or agree upon a procedure for the selection of an arbitrator.
The parties shall also agree on the rules, policies and procedures to be
used in the arbitration.

d) The arbitration, unless another date is stipulated to by the parties, shall
occur no later than fourteen (14) business days from the date an arbitrator
is named. The arbitrator may, in his or her discretion, impose a case
management schedule on the parties to provide for reasonable time needed
for discovery, fact gathering, expert witnesses, etc. Time periods shall be
reasonable and necessary as required by the circumstances, without
providing undue delay. In all circumstances, however, the arbitrator shall
issue a final decision no later than one (1) year from the initial written
request for arbitration. The parties may, by mutual agreement, continue
the mediation process set out in Section XIV(B)(2) until the arbitration
begins.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 32



e) The decision of the arbitrator shall be final for the purpose of concluding
the non-judicial phase of the arbitration process, but the final decision of
the arbitrator may be subject to judicial review.

f) The arbitrator shall, consistent with this Compact, have the power to
impose fines and award equitable relief in his or her discretion and as the
circumstances warrant.

9) Each party to the arbitration shall bear its own costs and attorney fees, and
the costs of the arbitrator(s) shall be borne equally by the parties.

C. Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity
The Tribe and the State agree and understand that waivers of sovereign immunity
defenses must be express and unambiguous, and are narrowly construed. Nothing
contained in this Compact shall be construed or interpreted to be a consent, grant or
waiver of any sovereign right or immunity either the Tribe and/or its citizens or the State
enjoy, except as expressly provided hereinafter:

1) The Tribe hereby agrees to a limited waiver of sovereign immunity for the sole
purpose, and no other purpose, of consenting to the suits specified in Section
XIV(B) of this Compact, such waiver to be in effect only so long as this Compact
is in effect, but in no event shall the limited waiver be construed to allow for
monetary relief against assets of the Tribe other than revenue from the Gaming
Facility or from the sale of gaming-related assets.

(2 The State and the State Gaming Agency represent and acknowledge that the State
has waived its sovereign immunity with respect to suits interpreting or enforcing
any contract to which the State and/or its subordinate agencies have entered into
with a private party, which includes an Indian tribe. See RCW 4.92.010 and
Architectural Woods, Inc. v. Washington, 92 Wn.2d 521, 598 P.2d 1372 (1979).
In addition, the State and the State Gaming Agency represent and acknowledge
that the State has waived its immunity from those suits set forth in RCW
9.46.36001. Notwithstanding such statutory waivers of immunity, the State
hereby reiterates and agrees to a limited waiver of sovereign immunity for the
sole purpose, and no other purpose, of consenting to the suits specified in Section
XIV(B) of this Compact, and any other suits set forth in RCW 9.46.36001, such
waivers to be in effect only so long as this Compact is in effect.

D.  References
The parties are aware that some sections of this Compact contain an explicit reference to
Section X1V in the event a dispute arises under that section. Notwithstanding such
explicit references, and with respect to all other sections of this Compact, it is the parties
intent that any dispute of whatever kind, type or nature arising under this Compact shall
be subject to the provisions of Section XIV.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 33



XV. REMEDIES

Injunction Against the State

If the Tribe believes the State, whether or not through the State Gaming Agency, is in
breach or default or is otherwise acting contrary to or failing to act in the manner required
by the provisions of this Compact, the Tribe may bring an action to seek injunctive or
other relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. Prior to bringing such action the Tribe
will notify the State and State Gaming Agency of the alleged violation(s). For purposes
of this remedy, the State consents to this suit and waives any defense it may assert by
way of its sovereign immunity.

Injunction Against the Tribe, the Tribal Gaming Operation, or any Individual

The State may bring an action to enjoin the Tribe, the Tribal Gaming Operation, or any
individual if the State determines that any Gaming authorized by the provisions of this
Compact is being conducted in violation of the provisions of this Compact, or if any
Class 111 Gaming activity is being conducted on Tribal Lands in violation of the
provisions of this Compact. Such action will be brought inthe U.S. District Court,
pursuant to 25 U.S.C. § 2710(d)(7)(A)(ii). Prior to bringing such action, the State will
notify the Tribe of the alleged violation(s). For purposes of this remedy, the Tribe
consents to this suit and waives any defense it may assert by way of its sovereign
immunity.

XVI. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Neither the Tribe nor the State are creating, or intend to create, any rights in third parties which

would result in any claims of any nature whatsoever against the Tribe or the State as a result of

this Compact. Neither the Tribe nor the State have waived their immunity from third party suits
or claims of any kind or nature whatsoever against them, and nothing contained in this Compact
shall be construed to effect a waiver, in whole or in part, of said immunity.

XVII. EFFECTIVE DATE, DURATION, AND AMENDMENTS

Effective Date

This amended Compact will be effective upon publication of notice of approval by the
Secretary of the Interior of the United States in the Federal Register in accordance with
25 U.S.C. § 2710(d)(3)(B).

Termination

This Compact will be in effect until terminated by written agreement of both parties,
under the provisions of IGRA. PROVIDED, the Tribe will provide written notice to the
Governor of the State sixty (60) days prior to termination of the Compact. Suspension of
or an injunction against Class 11 Gaming activities will not constitute termination for the
purpose of this subsection.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 34



C. Subsequent Negotiations
Nothing in this Compact will be deemed to waive the right of the Tribe to request
negotiations for a Tribal-State Compact with respect to a Class 111 Gaming activity which
is to be conducted on Tribal Lands, but is not permitted under the provisions of this
Compact, including forms of Class 111 Gaming which were not permitted by the State for
any purpose by any person, organization, or entity at the time when this Compact was
negotiated or amended but are subsequently so permitted by the State, in accordance with
25 U.S.C. 8 2710(d)(3)(A).

D. Enactment of Compact Provisions
Pursuant to the general rule-making authority of the agencies, the Tribal Gaming Agency
or the State Gaming Agency may each enact all or part of the provisions of this Compact
as part of their regulations or rules governing Gaming.

E. Revision of State Regulations
Whenever the State adopts or revises any rule or regulation which corresponds to any
provision of the Tribe’s standards of operations and management as set forth in Section
XI(A) relating to the same type of Gaming, the State Gaming Agency may notify the
Tribal Gaming Agency that it requests analogous changes in such Standards. The Tribal
Gaming Agency will promptly confer with the State Gaming Agency in good faith
concerning the appropriateness and applicability of such changes.

F. Change of State Law
If the laws of the State authorizing the activities set forth herein as Class 11 Gaming
activities are repealed, thereby prohibiting such Gaming for any purpose by any person,
organization or entity, it is the State’s position that the provisions of this Compact
providing for such Gaming would not be authorized and the continued operation of such
Gaming would constitute a violation of the Compact for which the State could bring an
action in Federal District Court pursuant to 25 U.S.C. § 2710(d)(7)(A)(ii).
The Tribe disagrees that such subsequent State legislation would have this effect under
the provisions of the IGRA and this Compact, but does agree that such an action, if
commenced in that forum, is the appropriate State recourse and for that purpose consents
to the suit and waives any defense it may assert by way of its sovereign immunity.
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Compact, if the laws of the State
authorizing any Class Il Gaming activities are so repealed, the State may bring an action
as set forth above only after it provides twenty (20) business days written notice to the
Tribe of the State’s intention to being such action and affords the Tribe a reasonable
opportunity to meet and confer with the State in a good faith attempt to resolve the
issue(s) intended to be addressed by such action.

G. Clarification, Amendments, and Renegotiations
1) Compact Clarification
The parties recognize that circumstances may arise in implementation, operation,
and regulation of the Class 11l Gaming Facilities that require clarification of
Compact provisions. For such mutually agreed-upon clarification, the State and

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 35



Tribe will execute and sign a Memorandum of Understanding that will be
attached to and made part of this Compact.

2 Amendments
The terms and conditions of this Compact may be amended at any time by the
mutual and written agreement of both parties. The parties will amend through
renegotiation the nature and/or scope of Class Il Gaming as set forth in this
Compact upon written notice and request by the Tribe to the State, if and when:

a) The laws of the State are amended, expanding Gaming beyond that which
is now allowed under the terms of this Compact; or

b) A State or Federal court within the State of Washington or a Federal court
interpreting the laws of the State of Washington issues a final and un-
appealable decision permitting participation in a Gaming activity that was
not authorized for any purpose by any person, organization, or entity at the
time this Compact was executed or not authorized by this Compact; or

C) In the event that the State enters into or amends a compact with another
tribe that is approved by the Secretary of the Interior and such agreement
gives any such tribe more Gaming Facilities, activities, stations or higher
wager limits, or any combination thereof than is provided under the terms
of this Compact, the Tribe and the State will immediately move to amend
the Compact to include the same terms and conditions granted to the other
tribe.

3) Renegotiation
Either party may in writing request renegotiation of any of the provisions of this

Compact if and when circumstances or events unforeseen at the time of the
negotiation and execution of this Compact occur, or which could not be
adequately addressed at the time of negotiation, that merit the discussion and
renegotiation of such provisions. The parties agree that negotiations will
commence within thirty (30) days of the request. The terms and provisions of the
Compact will remain in effect unless and until the parties agree on the
renegotiated terms.

4) State Authorization of Additional Class 111 Gaming Activities
In the event the State hereafter authorizes any additional Class Il activity, the
Tribe will be authorized to conduct such activity prior to completion of the
subsequent negotiations as provided in this Compact, if such activity is conducted
in accordance with all of the limitations, regulations and requirements of the
State.

(5) Process and Negotiation Standards
The parties will confer and the required negotiations will commence within thirty
(30) days of a request to amend or renegotiate. All matters involving negotiations

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 36



or other amendatory processes under this section will be otherwise governed,
controlled and conducted in conformity with the provisions and requirements of
25 U.S.C. 8 2710(d), except in subsections where a different resolution is
specifically provided in the event of an unsettled dispute or where agreement is

not reached by the parties.

XVIII.

All notices required or authorized to be served

NOTICES

will be in writing and will be sent by first class or

priority mail or be delivered by other expedited service to the following addresses:

Tribal Chairman
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
1033 Old Blyn Highway
Sequim, Washington 98382

Governor

State of Washington

State Capitol

Olympia, Washington 98504

Director
Washington State Gambling Commission
P..O. Box 42400
Olympia, Washington 98504-2400

XIX.

SEVERABILITY

In the event that any section or provision of this compact is held invalid, or its application to any
particular activity held invalid, it is the intent of the parties that the remaining sections of the
Compact, and the remaining applications of such section or provision will continue in full force

and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe and the State of Washington

have executed this Compact.

THE JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE

STATE OF WASHINGTON

BY: BY:
W. RON ALLEN JAY INSLEE
Chairman, Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe Governor
DATED: DATED:
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe UPDATED Draft June 28, 2017
Class 111 Gaming Compact Page 37



JAMESTOWN S'KLALLAM TRIBE-STATE OF WASHINGTON

CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

APPENDIX C

RULES GOVERNING CLASS 11l GAMING

ON THE

JAMESTOWN S'’KLALLAM RESERVATION

SECTION 1. SATELLITE (OFF-TRACK) WAGERING ON HORSE RACES
4.1 DEFINITIONS.

4.1.1  "Conventional parimutuel pool™ means the total wager under the
parimutuel system on any horse or horses in a particular race to win,
place, or show.

41.2 "Commission Regulations™ means Title 260 WAC.

4.1.3  "Exotic parimutuel pool" means the total wagers under the parimutuel
system on the finishing position of two or more horses in a particular
race, such as Quinella or Exacta wagers, or on horses to win two or
more races, such as Daily Double wagers, Pick Six wagers, or on other
wagers other than conventional parimutuel pool wagers.

4.1.4 - "Horse Racing Law" means Chapter 67.16 RCW.

4.1.5  "Parimutuel wagering" means a form of wagering on the outcome of
horse races in which those who wager purchase tickets of various
denominations on a horse or horses in one or more races. When the
outcome of the race or races has been declared official, there is a
distribution of the total wagers comprising each pool, less any amounts
permitted to be retained by law or under this Compact, to holders of
winning tickets on the winning horse or horses.

4.1.6  "Satellite Wagering" means parimutuel wagering on simulcast results.

4.1.7  “Satellite wagering facility" means any facility in which satellite
wagering is conducted.

4.1.8  "Simulcast" means the simultaneous television or radio transmission of
a race to a facility other than where the race meet is being held.

4.1.9  "Wagering employee" means any person who is employed by the

Jamestown S'Klallam

Class 11l Gaming Compact

Appendix C

Tribe or at any satellite wagering facility hereunder to handle any

C-1



4.2

4.3

monies, materials, records or equipment related to the satellite
wagering permitted herein, or who supervises any person who does so
or supervises any such supervisor.

4.1.10 Except as otherwise provided herein, meanings ascribed to terms used
in the Horse Racing Law and the Commission Regulations are hereby
adopted by reference wherever such terms are used in this Compact.

APPLICABILITY OF LAWS. Wagering at the Jamestown S'Klallam tribal
satellite wagering facility will be conducted in accordance with this Compact,
the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, the Interstate Horseracing Act, any
ordinances or regulations adopted by the Tribe, and Washington Horse Racing
Laws as made applicable herein. Nothing herein shall otherwise be deemed a
prohibition upon or limitation upon tribal operation of a satellite wagering
facility by the Tribe or on behalf of the Tribe.

REGULATION OF SATELLITE (OEE-TRACK) WAGERING.

4.3.1  Wagering Permitted. The Tribe is entitled to operate a single satellite
wagering facility pursuant to this Compact subject to the following
terms and conditions:

a.  Unless permitted in accordance with subparagraph c., below,
Tribe may conduct satellite wagering only on events simulcast
from any Washington State track (whether of a live race, or an
authorized simulcast of an out-of-state signal) on the same terms
and conditions permitted any other satellite wagering facility in
the State without limitation on the distance such tribal facility is
from a live race meet, provided, the Tribe is entitled to receive
simulcast signals from each Washington State track on terms at
least as advantageous as those made available by such track to
any other satellite facility operated at a track holding a Class A
or Class B Washington Horseracing Commission license or at
any other facility operated or leased by an entity holding such a
license. Negotiations conducted between the Tribe and the track
shall cover areas including, but not limited to, the following:
percent of handle received; equipment required and who
provides such equipment; who provides wagering employees;
and how and on what schedule funds will be transferred. All
wagers accepted at the tribal facility on such events shall be
made into the parimutuel pool of the Washington State track
which provides the simulcast signal, and shall be deemed to have
been made at the location of such pool for the purposes of
assessment of fees, charges, taxes or other assessments. Nothing
herein shall prohibit assessment by the Tribe of taxes, fees or
other charges for wagering conducted at the tribal facility, nor
shall the State or any of its political subdivisions be authorized to

Jamestown S'Klallam
Class 11l Gaming Compact

Appendix C



Jamestown S'Klallam
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix C

impose any taxes, fees, charges or assessments upon the Tribe or
any person or entity authorized to conduct such activities on
behalf of the Tribe for the satellite wagering activities regulated
hereunder, other than those generally applicable to the
parimutuel pool.

In the event the Tribe believes it is not offered simulcast signals
from a Washington State track on terms at least as advantageous
as those made available by such track to the other satellite
wagering operators as set forth in subparagraph a., above, the
Tribe may request a formal determination from the Commission.
The sole issues in such determination will be whether the
Washington State track provides terms to those other satellite
wagering operators which are more advantageous than those
offered to the Tribe and, if so, what terms are less advantageous
to the Tribe. Provided, the Commission shall conduct a hearing
and render a decision within ninety (90) days after receipt of the
request for a determination from the Tribe, and further provided,
that if the Commission decision is not rendered within that time,
the Tribe is entitled to conduct satellite wagering in accordance
with the provisions of subparagraph c., below. If the
Commission determines that the terms offered the Tribe are less
advantageous, the Washington State track shall have thirty (30)
days to offer terms that are at least as advantageous to the Tribe,
or the Tribe will be entitled to conduct satellite wagering in
accordance with subparagraph c., below. If the Tribe disputes
the determination of the Commission regarding whether the
terms offered to the Tribe are less advantageous, the Tribe or
State may request arbitration under Section XI1.B of this
Compact.

If, following an adverse determination from the Commission, the
Washington State track does not offer the terms identified by the
Commission in accordance with subparagraph b., above, the
Tribe shall be entitled to negotiate for and receive simulcast
signals from out-of-state races for an equivalent number of races,
to be offered within the subsequent twelve (12) month period, on
such terms and conditions as it may obtain. Acceptance of
signals from out-of-state tracks shall be made in compliance with
the Interstate Horseracing Act, 15 USC 83001, et seq. Nothing
in this section (Section 4) shall be deemed to limit acceptance of
satellite wagers to the extent permitted under the Interstate
Horseracing Act. Consent of the Commission, as required under
the Interstate Horseracing Act shall not be unreasonably
withheld. For disputes concerning whether the Commission has
unreasonably withheld its consent, the Tribe or the State may
request arbitration under Section XI1.B of this Compact.



4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

Jamestown S'Klallam
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix C

Hours of Operation. The wagering authorized in the Tribe's satellite
wagering facility shall be conducted within the hours authorized for
Class Il gaming under this Compact. Provided, however, when a
track providing a simulcast to the tribal facility operates outside the
Tribe's regularly scheduled 80 hours of operation, then the satellite
wagering portion of the Class Il facility authorized under this
Compact may be open to the public during the time the sending track
is open to the general public.

Approval of Facility. Subject to approval of the physical adequacy of
the facility, the Jamestown S'Klallam Reservation is hereby approved
as location for the conduct of satellite wagering as permitted under this
Compact. The right of the Tribe to conduct satellite wagering from a
facility at such location shall not be affected by its distance from any
live race meet being broadcast to such facility, and statutes and
regulations imposing distance limitations on the location of satellite
wagering facilities relative to live race meets, including but not limited
to RCW 67.16.200(c), shall not be applicable to the Tribe.

Wagering Rules. All of the rules set forth in Chapter 260-48 WAC
("Mutuels™) are hereby incorporated by reference as being applicable
to any satellite wagering facility authorized hereunder, subject to the
following qualifications:

4.3.4.1 References therein to “racing associations" shall mean the
Tribe.

4.3.4.2  References therein to "enclosure of any race track™ shall
mean the satellite wagering facilities authorized hereunder.

4.3.4.3 Parimutuel machines shall be locked at the time and by the
same means as are applicable to parimutuel machines at other
satellite wagering facilities within the State or as otherwise
required by the parimutuel pool operator at the host race
track or other authorized source, if different therefrom, but in
all cases prior to the start of any race for which bets are being
accepted.

4.3.4.4 References to "the manager of the parimutuel department"
shall refer to any person appointed to manage the satellite
wagering facility authorized under this Compact.

4.3.4.5 The Tribe may accept exotic bets, including but not limited to
daily doubles, quinellas, exactas, wagering on "short fields",
daily triples, "Pick n", trifectas, and other exotic bets to the



435

4.3.6

4.3.7

4.3.8

Jamestown S'Klallam
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix C

extent made available through parimutuel pools by the
parimutuel pool operator.

Other Facilities Within Area. In the event the Commission considers
allocation of exclusive or limited areas in which satellite wagering
facilities may be located, the Commission will give good faith
consideration to designating the Jamestown S'Klallam satellite
wagering facility as one of those exclusive or limited area satellite
wagering sites. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the conduct of satellite
wagering at any other facility, including a live racing facility, in the
State shall not affect the right of the Tribe to operate its satellite
wagering facility at any time.

Amounts Received by Tribe. The Tribe may receive from parimutuel
wagers made at its satellite wagering facility such amounts as may be
negotiated between it and the operator of the parimutuel pool (track).

Security Control. The Tribe shall maintain such security controls over
any satellite wagering facility authorized hereunder as would be
required by the Commission for a comparable facility off the
Reservation. The Tribe shall remove, deny access to, eject or exclude
persons whose presence within such facility would be contrary to the
interests of the Tribe or the State in operating an honest, legitimate
facility or in meeting the goals and objectives of this Compact or the
Act.

Accounting Practices and Audits. Any satellite wagering facility
authorized hereunder shall maintain its books and records in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and such
rules and regulations, if any, as are applied to satellite wagering
facilities in the State.




JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE - STATE OF WASHINGTON
CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

APPENDIX D
Class I11 Gaming Station Transfer Agreement

This Class 111 Gaming Station Transfer Agreement ("Agreement™) is made and entered

into between ("Transferor"), and
("Transferee™), and the State of Washington ("State™)

for purposes of transferring authority and use of Class 111 Gaming Stations between Tribes which
have entered into Tribal - State Compacts for Class Il Gaming with the State and as a
Memorandum of Understanding between the State and Tribal parties authorizing and
memorializing the transfer.
AGREEMENT
1. TRANSFER. Transferor hereby transfers and assigns to Transferee, for the Term

set forth below, all of Transferor's Class 111 Gaming Station authority for the use of
Class 111 Gaming Stations to which Transferor is now or may hereafter become
entitled during the Term of this Agreement.
2. TERM. The Term of this agreement, and all rights and authority granted

hereby, shall be from , 20__ through , 20 and shall

commence at 12:01 A.M. on the first date entered above and expire 11:59 P.M. on the last date
entered above unless other hours are so specified herein.

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. Transferor represents and agrees
that it is or will become at the commencement of the term of this Agreement, capable and
authorized to utilize the number of Class 111 Gaming Stations noted above, that no other grant or
transfer of any rights relative to the number of Class I11 Gaming Stations which would conflict

with the authority transferred hereby has occurred or will occur, and that it fully waives and

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 1
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix D



surrenders the right to utilize the number of Class 111 Gaming Stations noted above for the term
of this Agreement. Transferee represents and agrees that it is legally authorized to utilize Class
I11 Gaming Stations and is capable and authorized to accept the transfer of authority herein. State
represents and agrees that both Transferor and Transferee are authorized under its terms of valid
Tribal - State Compacts to utilize Class 111 Gaming Stations, and, that upon execution of this
Agreement by the parties, Transferor and Transferee may effectuate the transfer of authority for
the use of the number of Class 111 Gaming Stations specified for the term of this Agreement.

4, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the
parties as to the legal capabilities and authorizations for the transfer specified herein. No party is
relying on any statement, representation or documentation which is not contained or referenced
in this Agreement. Transferor and Transferee may enter into separate agreements related to the
utilization of Class 111 Gaming Stations transferred hereby, PROVIDED, that the terms of such
separate agreements shall not affect the legal capabilities and authorizations for the transfer
specified herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Class I11 Gaming Station
Transfer Agreement.

Transferee Transferor
By: By:
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 2

Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix D



JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE - STATE OF WASHINGTON
CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

APPENDIX E
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR PLAYING KENO

Table of Contents
SECTION L DEFINITIONS ...
SECTION 2 RULES OF PLALY .ottt ettt sttt sttt st s ta s st s be e b st a s sras s
SECTION S TICKETS ..o
SECTION 4 PRICE OF PLAY .ottt ettt sttt st sk s et s ta s s bas s ta e sba s ba s srae s
SECTION B PRIZES ...,
SECTION 6 DRAWINGS OF WINNING NUMBERS..........coiiiii sttt
SECTION 7 VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND CONTROLS........cccciiveivieeiiee e
SECTION 8 REPORTS ...ttt ettt ettt et a et a s st et e s s rte s sbaesbteebesabaa st e e sbteebessreneatas
SECTION 9 SYSTEM SECURITY STANDARDS ...cooioiiie
SECTION 10 TESTING AND APPROVAL STANDARDS .....cccooii it

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E i



APPENDIX E
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR PLAYING KENO

SECTION 1 DEFINITIONS
A. “Ball draw equipment” means any mechanical device, apparatus, or equipment which
facilitates the random selection of numbered Keno balls

B. "Game Grid" means the consecutively numbered field from one (1) to eighty (80)
numbers on which Winning Numbers and Winning Plays are designated.

C. "Informational Materials™ means printed materials explaining rules of play; prizes;
deadlines for redeeming prizes; and rules concerning splitting of prizes when necessary.

D. "Inside Ticket" means a form on which the players indicate their selections, which may
include a request for a Quick Pick Selection to be issued through the use of a Quick Pick
Device.

E. “Keno” means a numbers game where players choose from one to ten numbers out of a
pool of eighty and winners are determined by correctly matching selected numbers to
twenty randomly selected numbers.

F.  "Keno Manager" means the person responsible for controlling Keno department
operations, who safeguards Keno assets and ensures compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

G. "Keno Runner" means any person authorized by the Tribal Gaming Commission to
accept completed Inside Tickets, and the prices thereof, and to return Outside Tickets
and prizes won, acting as an agent of the player.

H.  "Keno Shift Manager" means the person responsible for all Keno department operations
during his or her assigned shift.

I.  "Keno Shift Supervisor” means the person who in the absence of the Keno Shift
Manager is responsible for all Keno department operations during his or her assigned
shift.

J. *“Keno System” means the collection of hardware and software components which
facilitate the play, reporting, and security of the Keno game. The System includes:
number selection devices, databases, servers, networking devices, management
terminals, kiosks, and other components used as integral parts of the Keno game

K.  "Keno Writer" means a person who operates the Random Number Generator authorized
by the Tribal Gaming Commission to select Winning Numbers for each game, and is
also authorized by the Tribal Gaming Commission to validate completed Inside Tickets,
verify and accept the authorized price thereof, issue Outside and Quick Pick Tickets,
and make payments for winning Outside Tickets.

L. “Kiosk” means an employee staffed computer or device, where Keno tickets may be
purchased or redeemed.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-1



M.

"Number" or "Spot" means any of the numbers on the Game Grid.

"Outside Ticket" means the computer generated and printed form which indicates the
numbers selected and conditions of the wager made by a player on an Inside Ticket,
which may be a Quick Pick Selection.

"Play" means a selection of one or more groups of up to twenty (20) numbers in one (1)
to twenty-six (26) groups. No Play or wager shall be deemed made until an Outside
Ticket has been issued by a Keno Writer in receipt for an Inside Ticket and the prices of
Plays indicated thereon.

"Promotional Prize™ means a prize established by management and approved by the
Tribal Gaming Commission for promotional purposes, and which deviates from the
Standard Prize.

"Quick Pick Device" means a Random Number Generator authorized by the Tribal
Gaming Commission for making Quick Pick Selections.

"Quick Pick Selection" means any Play made through the use of a Quick Pick Device.

"Quick Pick Ticket" means the form of an Outside Ticket designated by the Tribal
Gaming Commission issued through the use of a Quick Pick Device.

“Rabbit Ears” means a device, generally VV-shaped, that is attached to the Keno blower
and holds the numbered balls selected during a Keno game so that the numbers are
visible to players and employees.

“Random number generator” means a hardware or software component which
randomly generates Keno numbers.

"Standard Prize" means the standard prizes established by management and approved
by the Tribal Gaming Commission for matching a required quantity of player or quick
pick selected numbers with Winning Numbers in any given game.

“Ticket” means a physical ticket issued to a player which includes applicable game play
and wagering information.

“Transaction log” means a record of the information printed on each ticket which is
either recorded electronically by the system or printed out physically.

“Win” means prizes paid.

"Winning Numbers" means the twenty (20) numbers, from one (1) to eighty (80), which
are randomly selected for each game.

AA. "Winning Plays" means those combinations of numbers entitled to Standard Prizes or

Promotional Prizes.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-2



BB. “Write” means gross revenue from Keno ticket sales.
CC. “Writer” means Keno employee who staffs a Kiosk.

DD. "Way" means a “Play” when more than one “Play” is made on the same “Inside Ticket”.

SECTION 2 RULES OF PLAY

A.

H.

Twenty (20) numbers are randomly drawn by the house for each game. The game is played
by matching players' numbers with those drawn by the house. Predetermined prizes are
awarded based on how many matching numbers are drawn.

Players make Plays by directly marking their selections on an Inside Ticket, requesting a
Quick Pick Selection or by requesting the replay of an Outside Ticket from a previous game.

The player's Inside Ticket must be validated by a Keno Writer and paid for before it is placed
in play. No Play shall be deemed made until an Outside Ticket verifying the validity of and
receipt of the authorized price for the Inside Ticket has been issued by a Keno Writer. No
Play may be validated after a Keno Writer declares the game closed. All games shall be
closed at least five (5) seconds before the Winning Numbers are selected.

The game is played when and where the Outside Tickets are validated by a Keno Writer, and
shall be deemed completed when a Keno Writer selects the twentieth (20) Winning Number.
All selections of Winning Numbers by a Keno Writer shall be conducted in full view of the
public. All numbers selected will be prominently displayed immediately upon selection.

A Winning Play is achieved when the Play results in a quantity of player or Quick Pick
selected Numbers matching Winning Numbers which have been drawn for that game.
Management shall publish in the Informational Materials a Standard Prize schedule, and any
Promotional Prizes to be offered, as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission.

After selection of the twentieth (20) Winning Number, the Keno Shift Manager or Keno
Shift Supervisor will verify the numbers drawn for the game and authorize payment of prizes
due in connection therewith. The Keno Manager or other gaming operation manager will
personally authorize payments of all prizes of $4,000.00 and over. Unless otherwise
specified by the Tribal Gaming Commission prior to the game, winning Outside Tickets
which are not submitted for verification within five (5) games of the last game number
shown on the Outside Ticket shall be void, and any prize to which the holder of such Outside
Ticket would have been entitled shall be forfeited.

Any player who claims to have won a prize must present a validated Outside Ticket to a
Keno Writer. In addition, the claimant may be required to complete a claim form and submit
it prior to validation and payment. The apparent winning Outside Ticket must be presented in
person, or through the services of a Keno Runner acting as the player's agent. In addition, a
player may be required to complete any applicable tax forms prior to receiving payment,
which may be subject to the deduction of withholding taxes.

A Keno Writer will promptly present the prize to the claimant in payment of the amount due,
less any withholding required, or will notify the claimant that the Outside Ticket is not a

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-3



Winning Play, is not entitled to a prize, and that the claim is denied. Non-winning Outside
Tickets may be retained by management, and not returned to the claimant.

SECTION 3 TICKETS
A. Players select the numbers they wish to play on the form provided (Inside Ticket) and
purchase a ticket from a kiosk (Outside Ticket).

B. The Outside Ticket includes the numbers selected, date, game number, conditioning, ticket
sequence number and the kiosk number.

C. Matching information from the ticket is written concurrently to the Transaction log.

D. When itis necessary to void a ticket, the void information is input into the system which
documents the appropriate information pertaining to the voided wager (e.g., void slip is
issued or equivalent documentation is generated).

E. Physical and operational controls should prevent the writing and voiding of tickets after a
game has been closed and after the number selection process has begun.

F.  Copies of all Keno tickets shall be maintained for at least 7 days.

SECTION 4 PRICE OF PLAY

The price of each Play shall be established by management and approved by the Tribal Gaming
Commission. The total cost for purchasing an Outside Ticket shall equal the sum of prices for all
Plays designated on the Inside Ticket. Management may, but shall not be required to, offer special
prices for Promotional Plays and Ways, as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission.

SECTION 5 PRIZES

A. The prize amounts to be paid to each player who selects a winning combination of numbers
shall be determined by management as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission, and the
prize structure may vary from time to time. There shall be a basic or Standard Prize schedule.
From time to time, management as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission may create
Promotional Prize structures. Payment of all prizes will be in compliance with the
requirements of Section 2 above.

B. A Winning Play shall only be entitled to the greatest available prize for such Play. Lesser
included Winning Plays within such Play shall not be awarded prizes.

C. Indetermining Standard and Promotional Prizes, management as approved by the Tribal
Gaming Commission may declare, in advance of any game, that multiple winners for
identical Winning Plays shall split the prizes for such Plays. In such cases, the condition that
such prizes will be split shall be printed on the Inside Tickets for such games and in any
Informational Materials distributed to players in connection therewith.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-4



D.

Prize schedules will be posted in a conspicuous location, in the vicinity of the place where a
Keno Writer selects the Winning Numbers, and shall be available through the Informational
Materials which shall be made available to players upon request before any game is played.

SECTION 6 DRAWINGS OF WINNING NUMBERS

A.

Drawings of Winning Numbers will be conducted in the location and at the times designated
by management as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission. Management as approved
by the Tribal Gaming Commission may change the drawing schedule or cancel drawings at
any time. Winning Numbers are not official until verified by the Keno Shift Manager or
Keno Shift Supervisor.

The Tribal Gaming Commission shall approve the type of equipment to be used, shall
establish procedures for its operation and security, and shall establish the procedures for
randomly selecting the Winning Numbers for each game.

1.  The selected numbers using Ball Drop Equipment shall be immediately entered in
the System by Keno personnel or other method approved by TGA and SGA, which
documents on a draw ticket the date, game number, the time the game was closed,
and the numbers drawn.

2. Alternatively, when a Random Number Generator is used, it will be linked to the
System and will directly record the Numbers selected into the System. The
Random Number Generators used shall be periodically tested to assure proper
operation, security, and lack of tampering or fraud.

3. Physical and operational controls shall prevent the modification of the numbers
drawn for each game.

The Keno Shift Manager or Keno Shift-Supervisor shall delay payment of all prizes in
connection with any game for which any evidence exists or there are grounds for suspicion
that tampering or fraud has occurred. In such instances, payment of prizes shall only be
made after an authorized agent of the Tribal Gaming Commission completes an
investigation. If the drawing cannot be verified as being free from fraud or tampering, no
prizes will be awarded and another drawing may be conducted in its place to determine the
Winning Numbers for the questioned game.

SECTION 7 VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND CONTROLS

A. To be verified as a valid winning Outside Ticket, all of the following conditions must be

met:

1. All payouts shall be supported by the customer copy of the winning ticket (Outside
Ticket) and the payout amount is indicated on the customer ticket or a payment slip
is issued.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-5



2. The Outside Ticket shall be intact, contain all printing in its entirety, be legible, and
correspond to the serial number or other verifying identification issued by the Keno
Writer before the game began.

3. The Outside Ticket shall not be mutilated, altered, or tampered with in any manner,
and shall not be counterfeit or a facsimile of another winning Outside Ticket.

4. The Outside Ticket shall be validated by a Keno Writer, in an authorized manner.
The System shall prevent payment on tickets previously presented for payment,
unclaimed Winning Tickets (sleepers) after a specified period of time, voided
Tickets, and Tickets which have not been issued yet.

5. The Outside Ticket shall pass all other confidential security checks of management
or the Tribal Gaming Commission.

6. Larger Prize Report. A report will be required for all prizes that exceed the
threshold that triggers additional procedures to be followed for the purposes of
compliance with federal tax reporting requirements. At a minimum, on a daily and
monthly basis, the report shall provide the date and time won and the amount of all
prizes

Any Outside Ticket failing any verification requirement listed above is invalid, not eligible
for a prize, and not subject to any refund.

Management, as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission may, at its option, replace an
invalid Outside Ticket with another Outside Ticket of equivalent value for a future drawing
of the game. Management as approved by the Tribal Gaming Commission may, at its option,
pay the prize for an Outside Ticket that is partially mutilated or is not intact if the Outside
Ticket can still be validated by other means.

In the event an Outside Ticket is issued in error or is defective, the only responsibility or
liability of management or the Tribe shall be the replacement of the erroneous or defective
Outside Ticket with another Outside Ticket of equivalent value for a future drawing.

The play of Keno will be subject to the same type of internal controls, including periodic
audits and documentation to create a paper trail, as is established by the Tribal Gaming
Commission for other Class 111 Gaming.

SECTION 8 REPORTS

A.

Records shall be maintained which include Win and Write by individual writer for each
shift.

Records shall be maintained which include Win, Write, and Win-to-Write hold percentage
for:

1. Each shift;
2. Each day;

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-6



3. Month-to-date;
4. Year-to-date.

C. The system shall provide at a minimum the following reports:

Ticket information.

Payout information.

Game information including game number, ball draw, date, and time.
System exception reports, including:

a. Voids.

b. Late pays.

c. Appropriate system parameter information.

el N s

SECTION 9 SYSTEM SECURITY STANDARDS

A. Physical and operational controls must be in place to ensure access to Keno System and its
components are restricted to authorized users and shall prevent the modification of game
information.

B. Back-up Keno ball inventories shall be secured in a manner to prevent unauthorized access.
Controls must be established for inspecting new Keno balls put into play as well as for those
in use.

C. Each authorized user must have a user name or number unique to that individual and must
access the Keno System software by means of a password, keycard, PIN number, or other
unique identifier. The System must log the date and time of each access. These access logs
must be available for audit by TGA and SGA.

D. Except for kiosks, all main System components including servers and networking equipment
shall at a minimum be enclosed in a locked and monitored cabinet. Access shall be through
the use of access controls defined in E below.

E. Keys which provide access to any locked compartment, component or area of the Keno
System, as well as passwords, keycards, or PIN numbers used to access Keno System
components, shall be maintained and used in accordance with the access control standards as
agreed to by TGA and SGA.

F.  Networking Standards

1. All Keno System components shall be hardwired within a dedicated network and
located within the gaming facility.

2. Communications between all components of the Keno System must be encrypted
utilizing a minimum of Data Encryption Standards (DES) or equivalent encryption.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-7



SECTION 10 TESTING AND APPROVAL STANDARDS

A

No Keno System may be offered for Play unless it has received approval by the Tribal
Gaming Agency (TGA) and the State Gaming Agency (SGA). Any modification of a
hardware or software component approved under this section must be similarly approved.

Any proposal for a system or system component not authorized in these standards shall
include a description of the system or component, the proposed manner of regulation,
monitoring and/or maintenance of the system, and shall require submission to, and approval
by, the TGA and SGA.

At the request of TGA or SGA the manufacturer may be required to transport a working
model of the Keno System to a location designated by the TGA or SGA for testing,
examination or analysis. Neither the SGA nor the TGA shall be liable for any costs
associated with the transportation, testing, examination, or analysis, including any damage
to the components of the Keno System. If requested by the TGA or SGA, the manufacturer
may be required to provide specialized equipment or the services of an independent
technical expert to assist with the testing, examination and analysis. For purpose of
continued monitoring, the TGA or SGA may retain working models of any Keno System or
component after approval for as long as the equipment is in-play in the state.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Class 111 Gaming Compact
Appendix E E-8



APPENDIX X2
to the
JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE - STATE OF WASHINGTON
CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment changes to Sections 12.1; Section
13.4, Sub-Sections 13.4.1 to 13.4.5; and Sections 14.4 and 14.5

RULES GOVERNING
TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEMS

SECTION 1. OVERVIEW ....oooiticce ettt ettt e abt ettt et st sasa s bbb e be e sneeebeenneas 1
SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS . ...ttt ettt ideestae s teeevee e sdanas e nbeesbeesbeesaaesbeesbeeebessaeesbeesrees 1
2.1 Cashless TranSaction SYSEM ........c..ccuveiieeiiueiiteesneeaireeireeireeseeesreesseessseessreessessssesnns 1
2.2 Central COMPULET ... .iivieitie it ettt te bbb e e etr e e sbeesateesbeesareesbeesabeesbeesnneesns 2
2.3 Electronic ACCOUNTING SYSTEM .. .uiiieeiiviiirieiitieciaeesbee et e et e s e b e srre s beesrreereeas 2
2.4 ElectroniC SCratCh TICKEL......ovieiviiiie e siiiine ettt ebe e sree e nree s 3
25 Electronic ScratCh TICKEt GAME .....ccceiriiireeiriiiire ettt s re b 3
2.6 Electronic Scratch TiCKet Game Sl ........c.ccoviiiviiiiiiiiecie e 3
2.7 Electronic Scratch Ticket Game SUBSEL............coveiveiiiieiiiiiee et 3
2.8 GAME PlAY CreaILS ...ciiriiereeirreeiiieieesiee ettt ste e eere et esbee e be e srresbeesrreebeesrneeans 3
2.9 KIOSKS .. vvviiuttine s iitnesereesuteeeseesiveasbeessbeeabeessseeebeesabeeabeessseesbeesabeenbeeaaeeesbeesaseanbeessnennbeess 3
2.10  Manufacturing COMPULET .........coiuieirieiireectee ettt e st srre e sreesbe e sbeesareesreesbeenbeean 4
2.11  ON-liNe LOtEIY GAME.........eecveiiieeirie ittt ettt et e ebe e s are e ebeesreeeebeesraeebeea 4
2.12  On-line Lottery Game TICKEL........coiviiirieiii ettt nree 4
2.13  Player TEIMUNAIS ......c.ccoviiiiieciiece ettt et be e srre e beesreeebe e 4
N S 1111 0] - SRS 4
2.15  Tribal LOMEIY SYSIEM ...veiieieiiiiiieectee ettt ettt st et s be e sree s beesbaeere e 4
SECTION 3 TRIBAL ELECTRONIC SCRATCH TICKET LOTTERY GAME SYSTEM......4
3.1 Description of System OPEratiON...........covveiiieiiieeiiecie e re e re e 4
3.2  Game Set and SUbSet REQUITEMENTS .......coviiireeiieeirie et eanes 6
3.3  Data Required to be Available Prior to Commencement of an Electronic
SCratCh TICKEL GAME.....eiivieectie ettt ettt et e et eabe e e eare e aeeas 8
3.4  Data Required to be Available Following the Completion of a Scratch Ticket
[T LSRR 8
3.5  Software Auditing Tool to be Made Available...........cccccoeeviiiiiiiieieccec e, 9




3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10

SECTION 4
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8

SECTION 5
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
5.9
5.10
5.11
5.12
5.13
5.14
5.15
5.16

SECTION 6

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4

No Auditing of Game Sets While in Play; DiSPUte ProCeSS ........ueevvveveeveeeereenennnnnnns 9

Manufacturing COMPULET ........cccvie ittt be e e bee e e bee e e beeeenreas 10
Central Computer Used in Connection With Electronic Scratch Ticket Game.....11
Player Terminals Used in Electronic Scratch Ticket GAmes..........ccccceevveevveeennne. 12
Data Available for INSPECLION ........ccviiiiieece e 12
TRIBAL ON-LINE LOTTERY GAME SYSTEM......cocoiiiieeceececee e 12
Description of System OPEration..........cceeeiieeiiieciiiee e 12
Central Computer Used for On-line Lottery Game ..........ccccieeevieeeiieecciiee e, 15
Player Terminals Used for On-1ine GamES...........cocveeiivueeecrreeiiiieeeieeeeerreeeevee e 15
Verification and Viewing Requirements for On-line Game Results...................... 16
On-line Lottery Game RECOIUS........ccvieiiieeiciie ettt sreie e e eare e 16
REdeMPLION PEIIOU. ... ..ccuiiiiiiee ittt e et e et era et inb e e e abeeeenraeeenreas 16
Other GAME RUIES........eiiiiiee ettt e i ettt s e e aa b e e e ebeeeebeeeenes 16
PriZeS; JACKDOLS ... .eeiiviieiiie ettt sibe et e e e st e e et e e e ebe e e sbee e sbaeeeabeeesareas 17
PLAYER TERMINALS .....ooooii ettt ettt ettt sre e eva e re e 17
Use as a Stand-Alone Gambling Device Prohibited...........cccccooveeiiieiiiieecieeenen. 17
FRALUIES ...ttt d e e e e e e s e e R bt e e e e e e e s anRn b eeeeeeeeeeesssbbreeeeaeeessannnrbaneeaeans 17
Non-Volatile Backup Memory REqUIEd..........cccivevieeiiieiiiiec e 18
ON/OTE SWITCN .. ittt ettt e e e eare e e eabeeeenes 18
Static DiSCharge/INtEITEIENCE .......couie ittt e ens 18
ACCOUNTING IMBLETS ... eeiiiiee ettt etet ettt ettt e abe e et e e e eare e e ebbeeeeaneas 18
No Automatic Clearing of Accounting Meters; Reading and Resetting Meters ...19
Display Of INFOrMALION. .......ccueiiiiii e 19
Protection of Displayed INformation ...........ccccoovveiiiii i 20
Hardware Switches Pronibited...........ccccevveiiiiiiie i 20
Networking REQUITEMENTES ........coveiirieiieeiree ettt ere e sra e ve e b e sre e srne s 20
Prohibited SOftware FUNCLIONS.........c.ccoveiieiiieiiie ettt 21
QUICK=PICK FUNCLION .....ccuviiiviiiie ettt sra e nre e 21
Wagers; Displaying Electronic Scratch Ticket QUICOMES.........ccceevvevveeireeinreennen, 21
CaSh SEANUAIS......ccvveiieeirieie ettt et re e st e et esbe e sbeesrbeesbeesreaens 21
DOOr ACCESS LOGUING +vvvevrierieiireeireeitreecteesteeereestreesreesbeesbeesbeesraesnbeesbeesnreesreesnns 22

STANDARDS FOR RANDOM NUMBER GENERATORS USED WITHIN

THE TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEM ....ooiiiiiiiee et 22
Chi-SUAre ANAIYSIS .....ocivieeirie et ecree ettt ettt e e sbe e sabe e e eare e e eareeennes 22
R T IS TR 23
COorrelation ANAIYSIS ......cocvveiirie ittt ettt sbe e e e eare e e eaeeeennes 23
Serial Correlation ANAIYSIS........cocvie e 23




SECTION 7
7.1

SECTION 8

8.1
8.2
8.3
8.4

SECTION 9
9.1
9.2
9.3
9.4
9.5
9.6
9.7
9.8
9.9
9.10
9.11

SECTION 10
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9

SECTION 11

SECTION 12

121

ELECTRONIC ACCOUNTING SYSTEM ..ot 23
Revenue Reporting REGUITEIMENTS ......ooeeeeeeeee e e et e e e e e e eeee e 23

CASHLESS TRANSACTION SYSTEM SECURITY, REPORTING AND

STORAGE REQUIREMENTS .....ooiiiiciecee ettt 27
Player INfOrMAtioN .........cveiiiuiiiiiie ettt et 27
SMAIT CANAS.....eveeiiieeectie ettt s e e et e e e sbe e e s bt e e sbeeesabeeesnbaeennns 28
Other FUNCLIONS. ... ..eiiitiie ittt ettt ettt e et s e e et e e ebeeeenbeeesnree e e 29
KIOSKS .ttt ettt ettt et e et e e et e e e adb e e ar b e e e st e e e eabe e e eate e e eabeeeaareas 29
GENERAL SECURITY REQUIREMENTS .....cccioiiiiiiiisirie et 29
ST T L LU o] o U S SRR P PRSPPSO 30
SBOUNTEY vttt sttt ettt sdb et e et e e st e e teesseeesbee e aaeabaesnteesneesnbeenreeas 30
Secure Connections; DES or Equivalent Data Encryption............ccceeveeviveeevneennne, 30
Surge Protection; Uninterrupted Power System (UPS) ........ccocevivieeiiieeiiieeciiees 30
1dentifiCAtION PIALES ........ocoiuieeiiie et e sttt eaae e 30
LOCKEA ATEAS ...t et itbiee st e e ettt e e ette e e eae e s s atbe e e eteeesbaeesbeeesnbeeesnbeeesnbeeeenbeeeaneeas 31
ACCESS CoNtrol StANAAITS ... vvieiieeiiiii e e e e 31
IMEAL CalQS....ccuvieeiiieeiiie e cie it ecestsesssnae s i bae e e eteeesbaeesbeeesnbaeesnbeeesnbeeeenbeeennreas 31
ACCESS CONLIOL ... eeeiiureiiiiiie it ete i et et ettt e et e e et e e e be e e s beeesabeeesnbeeesnneas 31
0= 11 11T 12 T SO OPRPRRPO 31
Verification Data and FUNCHIONS ......eeccvveiiiiee ettt 32
TESTING OF TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEMS TO ENSURE INTEGRITY ......32
Designation of Independent Gaming Test Laboratory...........ccccveeveveeviieecveeeennen. 32
Testing and Certification of Tribal Lottery SyStems ........ccccvvveeveeviiiieciie e, 32
APProVal BY The SGA ... ..o 34
Modifications of Approved Lottery Systems; Emergency Certifications.............. 34
Manufacturer’s Conformity to Technical Standards............ccccovvevevevieiiieiiecneene, 34
Payment of Gaming Test Laboratory FEES .......ccoiviviviieiieiieecrie et 35
Gaming Test Laboratory Duty of LOYalty .........cccevvviiiiiiiiiieccicce e 35
RANAOM INSPECLIONS. .. .cuviiivrieitieitie et ettt ettt esbe e ebe e re e sbaesnbeesbeesreesree e 35
SGA to be Supplied Model of Player Terminal and System .........cc.ccccvevvveiveennnne 35
ALTERNATIVE STANDARDS PERMITTED .....ccocoviiiieiieeceececec e 35
TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEM PLAYER TERMINAL ACQUISITION

AND OPERATION ...ttt ettt ettt et be e saneebeenneas 36
F AN [o]or: 11 T0] o SR O PR URR PP 36



12.2
12.3
12.4

SECTION 13
131
13.2
13.3
13.4
135

SECTION 14
141
14.2
14.3
14.4
145
14.6
14.7

SECTION 15
15.1
15.2

SECTION 16

SECTION 17

SECTION 18

FUMNET CONAITIONS ...ttt nemenenneenees 37

Joining Facilities by COMMON ENCIOSUIE ....eveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e 38
Ol G CUMSTANCES ..ot ee ettt 39
STATE REGULATORY FEES. ... ..o, 39
Payment of QUESTANAING FEES ... 39
SBE-UD FBR ..ottt nes 39
Payment of Tribe’s Share of Set-UD FeE . ... oo 39
ANNUAL REGUIATOIY FBES. ..t eeeneeeeneeneennnee 40
REQUIALOIY FEE DIiSPULES ... vtttk eneeeenennnnnes 41
OTHER PAYMENT S ..o e, 41
IMPACE COSES. ....veeeitieeiitie ettt a St e et e et e e et ba e e b e e teeeenseeesnneeennes 42
Charitable DONALIONS .....ccoeeeeeeeeeee e 42
ComMMUNITY IMPACES ... e 42
Problem GambBliNg .....ccoooooeeeee e e 42
Smoking Cessation and PreVeNtioN ......cooooiveeeeee e 43
=\ V4101 1 SO PP PP PPRPP 43
Community Investments and CoNtribULIONS .........ocoorieeeeeee e 44
IMORATORIUM . e e nenennnnnnnnnnnnes 46
AMENAMENT IMOTALOTTUM ...ttt nnnnn 46
POSE MOTALOFIUM .. .o 46
HOURS OF OPER A TION ... eeeeeeneeeseeenenenennnnnnes 47
DISPUTE RESOLUTION ...ttt eeeeeeeeseeesesssesesesesssnsnssnnennnes 47
ERFECTIVE DATE ... s 47



APPENDIX X2

RULES GOVERNING
TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEMS

SECTION 1. OVERVIEW

This Appendix describes, authorizes and sets forth provisions applicable to the operation
of a tribal lottery system conducted pursuant to the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act for playing
electronic scratch ticket and on-line lottery games. The system utilizes player terminals with
video displays which allow players to purchase chances and obtain game result information, a
manufacturing computer which securely creates the finite set of chances used in the scratch ticket
portion of the system, a central computer which stores and transmits game information and
makes draws for the on-line lottery game, and an electronic central security and accounting
system. In the scratch ticket game, preexisting scratch tickets are dispensed in an electronic
format to players through the player terminals on an on-demand basis. In the on-line lottery
game, drawings are conducted on a central computer independently of any activity at player
terminals. The drawing results are then matched to player selections previously made on the
player terminals. The system and games described and authorized herein are subject to the
technical provisions set forth herein. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, tribal
lottery systems and player terminals approved pursuant to Appendix X prior to the effective date
of this Appendix X2 may continue to be operated consistent with the requirements of Appendix
X as they existed on the date this Appendix X2 became effective. Further, nothing herein shall

restrict the Tribe from exercising any provision in its Compact not covered by this Appendix X2.
SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

2.1  Cashless Transaction System. The means by which a player obtains, transfers and

redeems Game Play Credits. The Cashless Transaction system permits a player to play the
Tribal Lottery System without inserting cash (coins, tokens or paper currency) into, and to win
prizes without receiving cash from, the Player Terminal. The Cashless Transaction System

includes the following components:

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 1
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



2.1.1 The Electronic Accounting System;

2.1.2  One or more of the following: Plastic, cardboard, magnetic, or "smart"
cards; paper; personal identification ("PIN") numbers; Game Play Credits obtained from the
exchange of cash or cash equivalents; Game Play Credits displayed on the Player Terminal
which were earned as prizes from prior play and not redeemed; and other means for effectuating
play and awarding prizes without inserting or dispensing cash into or from the Terminal,
provided that all Game Play Credits (other than credits earned from prior play and remaining
displayed on a Player Terminal) must have been paid for by cash or cash equivalent;

2.1.3 A means of accounting for player deposits of cash or cash equivalents
and exchanges for and redemption of Game Play Credits which is independent of the Player
Terminal, through a player's account, a voucher system, or a "smart" card or similar device for

recording individual player data; and

2.1.4 A means by which players can redeem unused Game Play Credits for
cash or cash equivalents. All redemptions for cash must be through a cashier or redemption
system separate from the Player Terminal.

2.2  Central Computer. A computer which conducts drawings for On-line Lottery

Games and, for Electronic Scratch Ticket games, stores and dispenses Electronic Scratch Tickets
from Scratch Ticket Subsets which have been loaded into it from a Manufacturing Computer and

are maintained in a secure manner.

2.3  Electronic Accounting System. A computer system that provides a secure means

to receive, store and access data and record critical functions and activities, as set forth in
Section 7.

24 Electronic Scratch Ticket. A predetermined winning or losing outcome in

electronic form. Each Scratch Ticket represents a chance from among the finite set of chances

that comprise an Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Set.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 2
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



2.5  Electronic Scratch Ticket Game. A scratch ticket lottery game that is played in an

electronic environment. A game has a specific set of rules including: The theme and types of
symbols used; the total number of tickets in the game; the ratio or mix of winning and losing
tickets; the prize structure, including number and dollar value of each prize; and price of a single
ticket. The game is played by use of computer hardware and software to manufacture, store,

distribute, sell, and display scratch tickets to players.

2.6 Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Set. A finite set of Electronic Scratch Tickets

that is based on a template that has been designed in accordance with a specific set of rules,
including the basic requirements of Section 3.2, governing the structure of an Electronic Scratch
Ticket Game. Based on that template, an Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Set is created in a
Manufacturing Computer in a secure and verifiable electronic form prior to the play of an
Electronic Scratch Ticket Game. Each Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Set is uniquely
identifiable, by serial number or otherwise, so that it can be distinguished from other Game Sets

manufactured from the same template.

2.7  Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Subset. A defined group of Electronic Scratch

Tickets that has been randomly selected from an Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Set and
transmitted to a Central Computer in a fixed order for play. Each Electronic Scratch Ticket

Game Subset is uniquely identifiable from all other Subsets selected from the same Game Set.

2.8 _Game Play Credits. A means of representing value obtained from the exchange of

cash or cash equivalents, or earned as a prize, which is used as a means to effectuate play. Game
Play Credits may be redeemed for cash or a cash equivalent.

2.9  Kiosks. Cash exchange or redemption terminals, which allow for cash to cashless
transactions or cashless to cash transactions with or without a cashier. A Player Terminal is not a
Kiosk.

2.10 Manufacturing Computer. A computer which creates Electronic Scratch Ticket

Game Sets, randomly allocates tickets into Scratch Ticket Subsets, and delivers them to a Central

Computer.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 3
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



2.11. On-line Lottery Game. A lottery game by which players, through the use of
Player Terminals, select numbers, symbols or other possible outcomes to be matched to
outcomes that are subsequently and randomly selected in drawings which are electronically
conducted on a Central Computer.

2.12  On-line Lottery Game Ticket. A paper, cardboard or electronically encoded

medium onto which information is legibly printed, or is recorded electronically in a manner
which can cause a Player Terminal to display, the outcome(s) and prize(s) won, if any, and other
information associated with, an On-line Lottery Game drawing in which the player is enrolled.

2.13  Player Terminals. Electronic computer terminals housed in cabinets with input

devices and video screens and with which players play the On-line Lottery and Electronic
Scratch Ticket games. Player Terminals are not capable of playing gambling games as
stand-alone devices.

2.14 Template. A software file containing all possible prize values for a Game Set to
be created, indicating the number of prizes for each prize value that will appear in the Game Set.

2.15 Tribal Lottery System. Any lottery system operated pursuant to this Appendix.

All computers and terminals and the combination and components thereof in each system
operated by the Tribe shall conform to the provisions of this Appendix.

SECTION 3. TRIBAL ELECTRONIC SCRATCH TICKET LOTTERY GAME
SYSTEM

3.1 Description of System Operation

3.1.1 The Tribal Lottery System game known as the Electronic Scratch Ticket
Game consists of a finite number of Electronic Scratch Tickets, a certain number of which, if
drawn, entitle a player to prize awards at various levels. The scratch tickets are designed from a
template in conformity with this Appendix and are created in Game Sets on a Manufacturing
Computer from which Scratch Tickets are randomly selected and placed into Scratch Ticket
Subsets. Each Game Set has a predetermined number of winners and values and is designed so

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 4
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



as to assure players of an at least 75% payback of the amounts paid in the aggregate for all
tickets in the Set. As a Game Set’s tickets are placed into Subsets, the pool of tickets available
from that Game Set for placement into Subsets diminishes, until each ticket in the Game Set has

been placed into a Subset.

3.1.2  Scratch Ticket Subsets are transmitted to the Central Computer, where
they are stored until dispensed electronically on demand to Player Terminals. Scratch Tickets
are electronically dispensed from the Central Computer in the order within each Subset in which
the tickets were received. Players compete against each other to draw winning tickets. As
Subsets are used they are replaced by additional Subsets which have been created and delivered
to the Central Computer in the same manner, until the Game Set has been depleted, or pulled
from play, ending that particular game. Different games based on different Game Sets may be

offered simultaneously through the Central Computer.

3.1.3 A player initiates participation in an Electronic Scratch Ticket game at a
Player Terminal, using Game Play Credits purchased on the Player Terminal through the
insertion of cash, or through the Cashless Transaction System. The monitor displays one or
more of the Electronic Scratch Ticket games that are offered by the system, as well as other
information such as graphics, game play and outcome information, and entertainment effects,
subject to the limitations in Sections 5.2.2 and 5.2.3. The player may choose a particular game
and reveal the outcome, by touching the screen, pressing a button once or performing some other
form of interaction with the Player Terminal.

3.1.4  Following or as part of the player’s selection of a game or games, the
player uses Game Play Credits displayed on the Player Terminal to purchase one or more
Electronic Scratch Tickets. The pricing of tickets is governed by the provisions of Section 3.2.1.
Wagers are deducted from the Game Play Credits displayed on the Player Terminal.

3.1.5  Prize structure, ticket purchase and selection, and wager information is
displayed or available on the Player Terminal with respect to any game which is being played
through that Terminal.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 5
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



3.1.6  After the player purchases an Electronic Scratch Ticket the outcome
associated with that ticket is shown on the Player Terminal. Any prizes won are displayed on the
Player Terminal and may be in the form of Game Play Credits, the right to receive merchandise,

or other valuable property.

3.1.7  Game Play Credits earned as prizes remain displayed and available for
use in further play from that Terminal. Game Play Credits also may be electronically transferred
to a) a player’s account in the Central Accounting System, b) a ticket or receipt printed by the
Player Terminal, or ¢) a "smart™ card or similar instrument. Once transferred, Game Play Credits
may be a) used for further play on another Terminal or b) redeemed for cash or cash equivalents
through a cashier or other separate redemption system. Merchandise or other property won is

collected in accordance with the rules of the game.

3.2 Game Set and Subset Requirements

3.21  Game Set Requirements. Each Game Set shall meet the following

minimum requirements:

a.  Each Game Set shall be made up of a finite number of Electronic
Scratch Tickets;

b. ~ All Scratch Tickets in a particular Game Set shall be of the same
purchase price, which shall not exceed $5.00, with the exception
that up to 15 percent of the Player Terminals in operation may
have purchase prices of up to $20.00 per Ticket. A single Ticket

may offer an opportunity to enter another Game Set;

c.  The payout percentage for the entire Game Set shall be no less
than 75% of the total purchase price of all tickets in the set

combined,;
d.  Each Game Set shall be assigned a unique serial number; and

e.  Each ticket shall have a specific outcome and prize level associated
with it.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 6
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



3.2.2

Game Set Verification Process. Prior to commencement of play, the

initial Game Set shall be verified as to the total number of tickets in the set and the number of

winners at each prize level, including the amounts of such prizes, and the number of

non-winners. The verification standards which the Game Set must meet are those set forth in

Section 3.3.

3.2.3

Transmission of Subsets to Central Computer. Following verification of

the Game Set, the Manufacturing Computer shall create ordered Scratch Ticket Subsets on

demand from the Central Computer and transmit the ordered Subsets to it.

3.24

Subset Requirements. Each Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Subset shall

meet the following minimum requirements:

3.25

Within a given Game Set, each Subset shall be the same size and
comprised of no less than 5,000, and no more than 10,000
Electronic Scratch Tickets, provided that in order to complete the
distribution of all tickets in a Game Set, the final Subset derived
from the Set may have less than the number of tickets in any other
Subset and be less than 5,000;

Each Subset shall be individually and uniquely identified by the
Game Set serial number and a unique serial number for each
Subset assigned in the order in which the Subsets are created,;

Once an Electronic Scratch Ticket has been dispensed to a Player
Terminal from a Subset, it cannot be dispensed again.

Completion of Game. A Scratch Ticket Game is deemed to be

completed only when all of the Electronic Scratch Tickets in a Game Set have been dispensed or

the Game Set has been taken out of play. If any Game Set is withdrawn from play before

completion of the Game, the Tribe shall ensure that at least 75% of the revenues received from

sales of Electronic Scratch Tickets in that Game have been, or in future Electronic Scratch Ticket

Games will be, awarded to players.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 7
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



3.3 Data Required to be Available Prior to Commencement of an Electronic Scratch
Ticket Game. The following data shall be available to the TGA and SGA prior to the

commencement of an Electronic Scratch Ticket Game and shall be maintained and be viewable

both electronically and if requested, by printed report, upon demand:
3.3.1 A unique identifying Game Set serial number;

3.3.2 A description of the Game Set theme sufficient to categorize the Game
Set relative to other Game Sets;

3.3.3 The number of total Scratch Tickets in the Game Set;

3.34 The number of Scratch Ticket Subsets to be created from the Game Set,
and the number of tickets in each Set;

3.3.5  The payout percentage of the entire Game Set;

3.3.6  The payout table for the Game Set and the number of Scratch Tickets at
each level of the payout table;

3.3.7  The purchase price per ticket assigned to the Game Set;

3.3.8  Such further information as the SGA may reasonably require to assure
the integrity and accuracy of the foregoing information.

3.4 Data Required to be Available Following the Completion of a Scratch Ticket

Game. Following the completion of an Electronic Scratch Ticket Game (i.e., upon the sale of all
tickets in a Game Set or the withdrawal of the Set from play), the following data shall be
available to the TGA and SGA and shall be maintained and viewable both electronically and if

requested, by printed report, upon demand:
3.4.1  The Game Set and Game Subsets serial numbers;

3.4.2  The total number of Electronic Scratch Tickets unsold, if the game is
removed from play;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 8
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



3.4.3  The total number of Electronic Scratch Tickets purchased;

3.4.4 The time and date that each Subset was transmitted to the Central

Computer;
3.4.5  The time and date that the game was completed or removed from play;
3.4.6  The final payout percentage of the game; and
34.7 Price per Ticket.

3.5  Software Auditing Tool to be Made Available. For auditing Game Sets and

Subsets that have been archived, any Tribal Lottery System shall include and have available for
the SGA and the TGA a secure software tool which provides the same data as set forth in Section
3.3 and 3.4, provided that such tool shall be used only during authorized audits of Tribal Lottery
System games and operations, or in cases of player disputes, and shall not be used for any other
purpose without the consent of the TGA and the SGA.

3.6 No Auditing of Game Sets While in Play; Dispute Process

3.6.1 No Audit of Set While in Play. In order to provide maximum game

integrity, no audit or other determination of the status of any Game Set or any Subset, including
but not limited to a determination of the prizes won or prizes remaining to be won, shall be
conducted by anyone, including TGA and SGA personnel, while a Subset is in play without
causing termination of the entire Game Set from which the Subset was derived as provided in
Section 3.6.3.

3.6.2  Dispute Resolution: Impact on Game Set Play. In the event of a dispute

by a player that cannot be resolved by ordinary means by Gaming Facility personnel as to the
outcome, prize, wager made, or any other aspect of the player's participation in a Game Set being
played, all relevant data shall be immediately collected, including but not limited to all meter
readings, memory records, surveillance recordings, and any other reports or information
regarding play at the Terminal for the play in dispute. Following the collection of all relevant

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 9
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



data, the TGA shall be notified and requested to make an evaluation of whether or not the dispute
involves the integrity of the hardware or software being used and to try and resolve the dispute.
A report of all disputes shall be maintained by the TGA. If the dispute is not resolved within 72
hours from the time of the complaint, the TGA shall immediately forward a report to the SGA
detailing the nature of the dispute. In the event the dispute is resolved, the TGA is not obligated
to report to the SGA, but shall make TGA reports available for review.

3.6.3  Termination of Game Set. Protection of game integrity, even if it

requires the early withdrawal of a Game Set from play, shall be the primary goal of this
Appendix. If resolution of a patron dispute requires access to data or records stored on any part
of a system other than the Player Terminal involved in the dispute, and such access can only be
accomplished through a means by which data would be revealed that could materially assist
anyone in determining the likelihood of a particular ticket being drawn, other than information
available to all patrons, the Game Set shall be terminated prior to accessing such data or records.

3.6.4  TGAJSGA Disputes. In the event there is a dispute between the TGA
and SGA at any point in the above process, it shall be resolved in accordance with the dispute

resolution process for such issues set forth in the Compact.

3.7 Manufacturing Computer

3.7.1 Security from Alteration, Tampering, or Unauthorized Access. The

Manufacturing Computer shall provide a physical and electronic means, by use of a password or
other method approved by the TGA and SGA, for securing the Game Set against alteration,
tampering, or unauthorized access. The Manufacturing Computer shall provide a means for
terminating the Game Set if unopened ticket information from an operating Game Set or Subset
has been accessed except as permitted in this Appendix. The Gaming Test Laboratory shall
certify that such security system, and a means for monitoring its use in accordance with this
Appendix, is included in the system before it may be authorized for use. Security systems and
monitoring may be required for any component that has electronic access to this system that may

violate the integrity and security of the manufacturing computer.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 10
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



3.7.2  Primary Purpose; Separation. The Manufacturing Computer shall be

dedicated primarily to those Tribal Electronic Scratch Ticket gaming system functions related to
the creation of Scratch Ticket Game Sets and the creation, randomization, and transmittal to the
Central Computer of Scratch Ticket Subsets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manufacturing
Computer may also be used for other computer functions in the Tribal Lottery System or

Electronic Accounting System if such use will not affect the integrity or outcome of any game.

3.7.3  Storage Medium; Backup. The Manufacturing Computer shall have a

medium for securely storing Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Sets and Subsets on the
Manufacturing Computer which shall be mirrored on line by a backup medium within the same
cabinet or enclosure. In addition, duplicates of the Sets and Subsets, as created and stored on the
Manufacturing Computer, shall be stored in a secure enclosure in the Gaming Facility separate
from the Manufacturing Computer. All storage shall be through an error checking, nonvolatile
physical medium, so that should the primary storage medium fail, there will be no critical data

loss.

3.7.4  Randomization. The Manufacturing Computer shall utilize randomizing

procedures in the creation of the Subsets. The randomizing procedures shall be in accordance
with Section 6 of this Appendix.

3.8 Central Computer Used in Connection With Electronic Scratch Ticket Game. The

following requirements apply to any Central Computer used in connection with an Electronic
Scratch Ticket Game.

3.8.1  Dispensing of Tickets. The Central Computer shall dispense, upon

request from a Player Terminal, Electronic Scratch Tickets.

3.8.2  Order of Scratch Tickets. The Central Computer shall maintain

Electronic Scratch Ticket Subsets in the order received from the Manufacturing Computer, and
transmit them in that order to Player Terminals on demand, provided that not less than two (2)
nor more than five (5) Subsets per Game Set shall be dispensed in accordance with a
predetermined order for rotating the Subsets. Subsets from more than one Game Set may be
stored on the Central Computer and made available for play at the same time.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 11
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



3.8.3  Storage Medium; Backup. The Central Computer shall have a medium

for storing Electronic Scratch Ticket Game Subsets and reflecting their current status of play,
which shall be mirrored on line by a backup medium within the same cabinet or enclosure. All
storage shall be through an error checking, nonvolatile physical medium, so that should the
primary storage medium fail, there will be no critical data loss.

3.8.4  No Randomization Capability. The Central Computer shall have no

randomization capability associated with its use in an Electronic Scratch Ticket game.

3.9  Player Terminals Used in Electronic Scratch Ticket Games. Player Terminals

used in connection with Electronic Scratch Ticket Games shall conform to the requirements of
Section 5.

3.10 Data Available for Inspection. The following data is required to be available for

inspection in compliance with Section 7.1.9 for any Player Terminal or Game Set:

3.10.1 All Game Set serial numbers, indicating the date and time the Game Set
was put in play, pulled from play, or completed.

3.10.2 By Game Set serial numbers, the Player Terminal numbers assigned, and
the dates and times of assignment to the Player Terminals.

SECTION 4. TRIBAL ON-LINE LOTTERY GAME SYSTEM

4.1  Description of System Operation. Tribal On-line Lottery Games shall be played

in accordance with the following provisions:

4.1.1 A player initiates participation in On-line Lottery Games at a Player
Terminal, using Game Play Credits through the insertion of cash or from the Cashless
Transaction System which are displayed on the Terminal video monitor. Play may also be
initiated through a Player Terminal dedicated to On-line Lottery Games, or a clerk-operated

Player Terminal. References herein to player activity and interaction with a Player Terminal in

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 12
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



connection with an On-line Lottery Game shall also mean activity and interaction by a clerk on
behalf of a player.

4.1.2  The Player Terminal video monitor displays one or more of the On-line
Lottery games that are offered by the system, as well as other information such as graphics, game
play, and outcome information, and entertainment effects, subject to the limitation in Sections
5.2.2 and 5.2.3. The player chooses a particular game by touching the screen, pressing a button,
or performing some other form of interaction with the Player Terminal.

4.1.3  Following or as part of the player’s choice of a game or games, the
player selects numbers, symbols or other data to be matched in the game by pressing buttons or
touching the video screen. The Player may also make such selections through the "quick pick"
method. The player then uses Game Play Credits displayed on the Terminal monitor to purchase
one or more On-line Lottery Game Tickets representing such selections, for drawings to be held
in the future.

4.1.4  Each On-line Lottery Game may offer more than one method of winning
a prize, and each method may be represented by a separate wager, but each wager may not
exceed $20.00. Wagers are deducted from the Game Play Credits displayed on the Player
Terminal.

4,15  The player’s wager and selected numbers, symbols or other data to be
matched in the game, along with information identifying the drawing(s) to which they apply, are
provided to the player in some tangible means, such as by electronic encoding or printing on a
paper, card or other medium. In addition, the numbers, symbols or other data selected may be
displayed on the Player Terminal.

4.1.6  The player is then entered into one or more future On-line Lottery
Games, which are conducted through drawings held on the Central Computer.

4.1.7  All drawings for any game are conducted within a period of 5 minutes or
less, and all drawings for all games offered are held within that period. Drawings are held on a

regularly scheduled basis and regardless of whether any player is enrolled in a particular On-line

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 13
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



Lottery Game. Games take place no more frequently than thirty minutes apart, determined by
when the first drawing in a game occurs. No more than five different On-line Lottery Games are
offered at a time, unless the State increases the number of On-line Lottery Games it is now
playing, thereby entitling the Tribe to increase the number of games it offers in accordance with
the rules for doing so.

4.1.8 A Player Terminal may display a player’s entry into an On-line Lottery
Game and the commencement of that game. The form of displaying information may be
entertaining and at the discretion of the Tribe, except as limited in Sections 5.2.2 and 5.2.3. For
example, the Terminal may alert the player through means of a count-down that the drawing in
which the player is entered is about to occur. Information regarding prizes that may be awarded

for each game are made available to the player prior to commencement of the game.

4.1.9  Following each drawing, the results are displayed and made available in
accordance with the rules set forth in Section 4.4. Players win if their selections match a
required number of drawn numbers or symbols, in accordance with the predetermined and
published rules for that particular game. Results and prizes are verified in accordance with the
rules set forth in Section 4.4, and are paid in Game Play Credits except where, due to the size of
the prize, the rules specify some other method of payment. Prizes may also be awarded in the

form of merchandise or other valuable property.

4.1.10  Game Play Credits earned as prizes remain displayed and available for
use in further play from that Terminal. Game Play Credits also may be electronically transferred
through the Cashless Transaction System, such as to a) a player’s account in the Central
Accounting System, b) a ticket or receipt printed by the Player Terminal, or c¢) a "smart" card or
similar instrument. Once transferred, Game Play Credits may be a) used for further play on
another Terminal or b) redeemed for cash or cash equivalents through a cashier or other separate
redemption system. Merchandise or other property won is collected in accordance with the rules

of the game.

4.2  Central Computer Used for On-line Lottery Game. The following requirements

apply to any Central Computer used in connection with an On-line Lottery Game.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 14
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



4.2.1 Introduction. A Central Computer may, in addition to being available
for use in connection with Electronic Scratch Ticket Games, be utilized in the On-line Lottery

Game. The rules in this Section 4.2 govern that activity.

4.2.2  Randomization Capability. The Central Computer shall have

randomization capability associated with its use in an On-line Lottery Game only. All drawings
shall be on a random basis, using the randomization requirements set forth in Section 6.

4.2.3 Independent Drawings; Schedule of Drawings. Drawings on the Central
Computer shall occur independently of any Player Terminal activity and regardless of whether or
not players are enrolled in a game. On-line Lottery Game drawings shall be held on a regularly
scheduled basis in intervals of no less than 30 minutes. Once a drawing period begins, all
drawings during that period must be drawn within 5 minutes. Each drawing shall have its own

identifying serial number.

4.2.4  Limit on Number of On-line Lottery Games. The Tribe may have no

more than five (5) On-line Lottery Games in play at one time. Such games may be offered on
more than one system within the facility. The number of games offered may be increased if, and
by the same number, the State Lottery increases the number of On-line Lottery Games it offers.

4.3  Player Terminals Used for On-line Games. Player Terminals used in connection

with On-line Lottery Games shall conform to the requirements of Section 5. The following
provisions shall also be applicable:

4.3.1 A Player Terminal may, in addition to being available for use in
connection with Electronic Scratch Ticket Games, be used to play On-line Lottery Games. The
On-line Lottery Game may also be played from a Player Terminal dedicated to selling On-line
lottery tickets or by a clerk operating a Player Terminal for such purposes. References to Player
Terminals herein shall include such dedicated and clerk-operated Terminals.

4.3.2  The Player Terminal shall enable a player to select numbers, symbols or
other data, through touching the screen or pressing one or more buttons on the Terminal. The

player may also ask for a "quick pick" selection via the use of a random number generator

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 15
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



located in the Player Terminal and used solely for the On-line Lottery Games, provided that such
random number generator shall meet the criteria set forth in Section 6.

4.3.3  The player's wager and selected numbers, symbols or other data, along
with information identifying the drawing(s) to which they apply, shall be provided to the player
through the Player Terminal in some tangible means using electronic encoding or printing on
paper, card or other medium. Such information may also be displayed on the screen for review
by the player.

4.4 Verification and Viewing Requirements for On-line Game Results. The results of

each On-line drawing on a Central Computer shall be available for display on a Player Terminal
on demand by players enrolled in such games, and may be made available on one or more
scoreboards, video screens or other electronic display devices sufficiently visible to enable
players and other observers, including those not at Player Terminals, to view the outcome of the
game. Printed result reports shall be made available in accordance with Section 4.5.

45  On-line Lottery Game Records. The following records with respect to each On-

line Lottery Game shall be maintained and be viewable both electronically and, if requested, by
printed report, upon demand: The outcome of each drawing including all numbers drawn, the
sequence of drawing, prizes available, prizes won (whether or not redeemed), and related
information. Such reports shall be made available in the casino for player reference for up to 30
days following the close of any drawing period.

4.6 Redemption Period. Prizes may be redeemed by players for a period of no less

than 48 hours following the drawing in any On-line Lottery Game.

4.7  Other Game Rules. The specific rules and prize structures for each On-line

Lottery Game may vary, and shall be made available to players prior to making any wagers on
that game. The rules shall indicate when, in relation to the commencement of the first drawing in
a game, no further wagers on that game may be made. Each On-line Lottery Game may offer
more than one method of winning a prize, and each method may be represented by a separate
wager, but each wager may not exceed the amounts set forth in Section 4.1.4.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 16
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



4.8  Prizes; Jackpots. Every On-line Lottery Game must have at least one "jackpot™

level prize paid, when won, from a lottery prize pool into which a percentage of each player’s
wagers, as set forth in the rules for that game, is placed and in which the Tribe shall have no
interest. The prize pool may be seeded from time to time by promotional payments or interest-
free loans from the Tribe. Jackpot prizes not won in a particular game shall be rolled forward
into a future game in accordance with rules for disposing of such prizes. Rollover funds may
replace the need for seeding a pool if the amount of such rollover funds exceeds the minimum
prize available under the rules of that game. The player pool fund may not be used for any

purpose other than payment of the jackpot prize.

SECTION 5. PLAYER TERMINALS

All Player Terminals shall conform at a minimum to the requirements of this Section 5.

5.1  Use as a Stand-Alone Gambling Device Prohibited. No Player Terminal shall be

capable of being used as a stand-alone unit for the purposes of engaging in any gambling game,
including but not limited to the lottery games described in this Compact, or in any other way

prohibited in this Appendix.
5.2 Features. Player Terminals shall include the following features:

5.2.1  Operation either through the Cashless Transaction System, or through
means for accepting cash (coins, tokens or paper currency) for conversion into Game Play
Credits, which can then activate participation in the game, provided the insertion of cash will not

alone activate the game and such use of cash is in accordance with section 5.15;

5.2.2  One or more of the following: A video monitor, electro-mechanical
display, printer, graphics and signage, provided that slot machine-type spinning reel mechanisms
are prohibited in mechanical form; and

5.2.3  One or more of the following: electronic buttons, touch screen
capability, and a mechanical, electro-mechanical or electronic means of activating the game and
providing player input, including a means for making player selections and choices in games,
provided that slot machine-type handles are prohibited.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 17
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



5.3 Non-Volatile Backup Memory Required. A non-volatile backup memory or its

equivalent shall be maintained in a secure compartment on each Player Terminal for the purpose
of storing and preserving a redundant set of critical data which has been error checked in
accordance with this Appendix, and which data shall include, at a minimum, the following

Player Terminal information:
5.3.1  Electronic Meters required by this Appendix;

5.3.2 Recall of all wagers and other information associated with the last ten
(10) Electronic Scratch Ticket plays and the last ten (10) On-line Lottery Games played;

5.3.3  Error conditions that may have occurred on the Player Terminal; and

5.34  Recall of the last twenty five (25) cash or cash equivalent deposits.

54  On/Off Switch. An on/off switch that controls the electrical current that supplies
power to the Player Terminal must be located in a secure place that is readily accessible within

the interior of the Player Terminal.

55  Static Discharge/Interference. The operation of each Player Terminal must not be
adversely compromised or affected by static discharge, liquid spills, or electromagnetic
interference.

5.6  Accounting Meters. A Player Terminal must have electronic accounting meters

which have tally totals to a minimum of eight (8) digits and be capable of rolling over when the
maximum value of at least 99,999,999 is reached. The Player Terminal must provide a means
for on-demand display of the electronic meters via a key switch or other secure method on the
exterior of the machine. Electronic meters on each Player Terminal for each of the following
data categories for Electronic Scratch Ticket games and On-line Lottery Games are required in
compliance with Section 7.1.9:

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 18
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



5.6.1  Credits, or equivalent monetary units, wagered on a cumulative basis on
that Terminal;

5.6.2  Credits, or equivalent monetary units, won for the Player Terminal,

5.6.3  For Scratch Ticket games, the number of Scratch Tickets purchased on
the Terminal; and

5.6.4  For On-line Lottery games, the number of On-line Lottery wagers made
on that Terminal.

5.7 No Automatic Clearing of Accounting Meters:; Reading and Resetting Meters.

Under no circumstances shall the Player Terminal electronic accounting meters be capable of
being automatically reset or cleared, whether due to an error in any aspect of its or a game's
operation or otherwise. All meter readings must be recorded and dated in the presence of a TGA
inspector both before and after an electronic accounting meter is cleared.

5.8  Display of Information. At a minimum, each Player Terminal shall have the
following game information available for display on the video screen and/or displayed on the
Player Terminal itself, in a location conspicuous to the player:

5.8.1  Therules of the game being played;

5.8.2  The maximum and minimum wagers and the amount of credits, cash
equivalents, or additional game play opportunities, which may be won for each Electronic
Scratch Ticket and On-line Lottery Game offered through that Terminal, including the current
values of any progressive prizes available;

5.8.3  The player's credit balance;
5.8.4  The outcome of the Electronic Scratch Ticket(s) then being played; and

5.8.5  Any prize won on the Electronic Scratch Ticket(s) then being played.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 19
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



5.9 Protection of Displayed Information. The video screen or other means for

displaying game rules, outcomes and other game information shall be kept under a glass or other
transparent substance which places a barrier between the player and the actual surface of the
display. At no time may stickers or other removable media be placed on the Player Terminal's

face for purposes of displaying rules or payouts.

5.10 Hardware Switches Prohibited. No hardware switches may be installed on a

Player Terminal or any associated equipment which may affect the outcome or pay out of any
game for which the Player Terminal is used. Switches may be installed to control the

ergonomics of the Player Terminal.

5.11 Networking Requirements. The use of firewalls and other system protections as

approved by TGA and SGA are required to protect the integrity of the Tribal Lottery System and

player accounts and:

5.11.1 Where the Tribe’s Tribal Lottery System or components are linked with
one another in a local network for progressive jackpot, function sharing, aggregate prizes or
other purposes, communication protocols must be used which ensure that erroneous data or
signals will not adversely affect the operations of any such system or components. No class Il
game or gaming system in which any part or component is located outside the Tribe’s gaming
facilities shall be deemed approved as part of the approval of this Appendix. Any proposal for
such game or gaming system, including the proposed rules, manner of regulation, and manner of
play, monitoring and/or maintenance of the system, shall require submission to, and approval by,
the TGA and SGA.

5.11.2 Dedicated and protected network connections prohibiting unauthorized
access, approved by SGA and TGA, may allow two or more of the Tribe’s Tribal Lottery
Systems to share player information. Game tickets and other information prohibited from being
viewed, as outlined in other sections of this Appendix, shall not be available or transmitted
between the Tribe’s connected Tribal Lottery Systems or facilities. Communications between

the Tribe’s facilities will require the use of approved firewalls that are configured and operated

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 20
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



to protect the Tribal Lottery System and player information. Computer systems linked between
the Tribe’s facilities may not be used to link progressive jackpots, except in Joined Facilities.

5.12 Prohibited Software Functions. Player Terminals shall not have software or

hardware that determines the outcome of any Electronic Scratch Ticket Game. Nothing herein is
intended to prohibit the Player Terminal from creating the appropriate Scratch Ticket and On-
line Game graphics and animation to correspond to, display or represent, in an entertaining
manner, the outcome. In addition, Player Terminals shall not have any software that:

5.12.1 Determines which Scratch Ticket outcome from within the Scratch
Ticket Subset is transmitted to the Player Terminal; or

5.12.2  Alters the amount of the payout of the Electronic Scratch Ticket as
received from the Central Computer.

5.13  Quick-Pick Function. Nothing herein shall prohibit the use of a quick pick

function on the Player Terminal in conjunction with the playing of the On-line Lottery Game.

5.14 Wagers; Displaying Electronic Scratch Ticket Outcomes. Players shall make

wagers using a Player Terminal to purchase Electronic Scratch Tickets. Following a purchase,
the Electronic Scratch Ticket shall be displayed on the Terminal's video screen for the purpose of
revealing the outcome of the selected ticket.

5.15 Cash Standards. When cash is used, the following procedures shall be performed

by accounting/auditing employees who are independent of the transactions being reviewed:

5.15.1  For each drop period, accounting/auditing employees shall compare the
report information required in Section 7.1.10 (a) to the total cash acceptor drop amount for the
period. Discrepancies shall be resolved before the generation/distribution of any statistical
reports.

5.15.2 TGA will be notified and follow-up shall be performed for any one
machine having an unresolved variance between actual cash drop and the report information
required in Section 7.1.10 (a) in excess of an amount that is both more than $25 and at least three

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 21
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



percent (3%) of the actual cash drop. The follow-up performed and results of the investigation

shall be documented and maintained for inspection.

5.15.3 At least annually, accounting/auditing and TGA personnel shall
randomly verify that EPROM or other equivalent game software media changes are properly

reflected in the analysis reports.

5.15.4  Accounting/auditing employees shall review exception reports on a daily
basis for propriety of transactions and unusual occurrences. TGA will be notified in writing of

any unexplained or suspicious transactions or unusual occurrences.

5.15.5 All auditing procedures and any follow-up performed shall be
documented and maintained for inspection.

5.15.6  Cash shall be removed from the Player Terminal in accordance with
Appendix A drop box and transportation standards for secure and verifiable handling of cash

receipts from electronic games.

5.16 Door Access Logaing. The Player Terminal shall record the date and time of any

opening of cabinet door(s); provided, that this information need not be retained on the Player
Terminal if it is communicated to another component of the system. This information shall be

retrievable in report form.

SECTION 6. STANDARDS FOR RANDOM NUMBER GENERATORS USED WITHIN
THE TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEM

Any random number generation used in connection with the Tribal Lottery System must
be by use of a microprocessor and random number generation program that meets the following
random selection tests:

6.1  Chi-Square Analysis. Each card, symbol, number, or stop position which is

wholly or partially determinative of the outcome of the game satisfies the 99 percent confidence

limit using the standard chi-square analysis.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 22
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



6.2  Runs Test. Each card, symbol, number, or stop position does not as a significant
statistic produce predictable patterns of game elements or occurrences. Each card symbol,
number, or stop position will be considered random if it meets the 99 percent confidence level
with regard to the "runs test" or any generally accepted pattern testing statistic.

6.3  Correlation Analysis. Each card, symbol, number, or stop position is

independently chosen without regard to any other card, symbol, number or stop position, drawn
within that game play. Each card, symbol, number, or stop position is considered random if it
meets the 99 percent confidence level using standard correlation analysis.

6.4  Serial Correlation Analysis. Each card, symbol, number, or stop position is
independently chosen without reference to the same card, number, or stop position in the
previous game. Each card, number, or stop position is considered random if it meets the 99
percent confidence level using standard serial correlation analysis.

SECTION 7. ELECTRONIC ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

One or more Electronic Accounting Systems shall be required to perform reporting and
other functions in support of the Tribal Lottery Game activities described in this Appendix.
These systems may communicate with the other computers described in this document utilizing
the protocol standards set forth in Section 9.3. The Electronic Accounting System shall not
interfere with the outcome of any gaming functions.

7.1  Revenue Reporting Requirements. The following reporting capabilities must be

provided by the Electronic Accounting System:

7.1.1  Player Terminal Revenue Report. A revenue report for each Player

Terminal must be made and maintained on a confidential and secure basis which, at a minimum
on a daily and monthly basis, provides:

a.  The total aggregate amount won per Player Terminal,
b.  The aggregate amount wagered per Player Terminal; and
c.  The amount of cash deposited into each Player Terminal.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 23
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



7.1.2  Closed Game Set Reports. Immediately after a Game Set is completed

or pulled from play, a report will provide the Game Set ending information described in Section

3.4 above.

7.1.3 In Play Game Set Reports. One or more reports will be available for

Game Sets still in play, containing the information described in Sections 3.3.1 through 3.3.7

above.

7.1.4  On-line Lottery Game Reports. An On-line Lottery Game report must

be made and maintained on a confidential and secure basis which, at a minimum of a daily and

monthly basis, provides as to each On-line Lottery Game, the following information:

Total sales;
Total won per prize level,
Total won per Player Terminal; and

Activity per jackpot prize, for the accounting period and to-date,

per Section 7.1.5.

7.15 Progressive Jackpot Report. A progressive jackpot report must be made

for the accounting period and to-date which provides:

a.  Amount seeded,;
b. Amount in reserve fund;
c.  Current jackpot;
d.  Contribution total;
e.  Total paid in prizes;
f.  Itemized jackpot awards; and
g. Amount, time of award, and the Player Terminal on which the
progressive jackpot prize was won.
JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 24

Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



7.1.6  Larger Prize Report. A report will be required for all prizes that exceed

the threshold that triggers additional procedures to be followed for the purposes of compliance
with federal tax reporting requirements. At a minimum, on a daily and monthly basis, the report

shall provide the following information per Player Terminal:

a.  The date and time won; and

b.  Amount of all prizes.

7.1.7  Liability Reports. Liability reports will be required on a daily and

monthly basis at a minimum. They should provide a summary of the outstanding funds which

carry from business day to business day. At a minimum, they must include:

a.  Amount of prizes which were awarded, but have not yet been

claimed;

b.  Detail of prizes for which redemption period expired during this
reporting period;

c.  Unredeemed Game Play Credits;
d.. Expired Game Play Credits; and
e.  Daily and cumulative contributions to progressive prize pools

which have not yet been awarded.

7.1.8  Master Reconciliation Report. A master reconciliation report must be

available on a daily and monthly basis, at a minimum. It provides a summary of all daily sources

of funds and disposition of funds, including the following:

a.  Funds collected from cashiers, Player Terminals, and Kiosks;

b.  Funds carried forward from prior business day, including liability
from prizes awarded, but not paid out, prize pool balances, and

reserve funds, etc.;

c.  Payments to players;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 25
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



d.  Funds available to operator; and

e.  Tickets and prizes dispensed and played to reconcile with amount
won.

7.1.9.  Data Retention Requirements. Data necessary to audit compliance with

the standards set forth in this Appendix shall be maintained for a minimum of 2 years, and in
connection with determining randomness where applicable, for a minimum of 6 months. To the
extent not inconsistent with the foregoing, data shall be retained and backed up by the Electronic

Accounting System according to the following minimum requirements:

a.  Accounting records;

b.  Per Player Terminal, Cashier Terminal, or other points of cash
exchange-daily records and meters: on-line for 6 months;

c.  Daily records and meters: off-line for 12 months;
d. Game Set Records, as to each Player Terminal and by Game Set;

e.  The amount wagered and the amount won, daily by prize level, on
line: 6 months;

f.  The amount wagered and the amount won, daily by prize level, off
line: 6 months;

g.  On-line prize redemptions: 30 days;
h.  Dated cash vouchers: 30 days;
I. -~ Cash vouchers cancelled by Player Terminal: 7 days;

J. Cash vouchers redeemed by cashiers or redeemed at Kiosks: 30
days;

k.  Log files that track password access to sensitive components:

online for 90 days, offline for 12 months; and

I.  Log files that track system events or errors: 90 days.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 26
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



7.1.10 Other Reports. Revenue reports for the Tribal Lottery System must be
made and maintained on a confidential and secure basis which, at a minimum on a daily and

monthly basis, provides:
a.  The amount of cash removed or dropped from Player Terminals;
and
b The percentage of Player Terminals offering wagers between $5.01

and $20.

SECTION 8. CASHLESS TRANSACTION SYSTEM SECURITY, REPORTING AND
STORAGE REQUIREMENTS

8.1  Player Information. The following requirements shall be met in connection with
any Cashless Transaction System:

8.1.1  All player information must be stored on at least two separate non-
volatile media;

8.1.2  An audit file must be kept of all player financial transactions. This file
must be stored in at least two separate non-volatile media, and be accessible for purposes of audit
and dispute resolution to authorized individuals; this file must be available on-line for a
minimum of 30 days, after which it must be available off-line for a minimum of 180 days;

8.1.3  Physical and operational controls must be used to protect player
information from tampering or unauthorized access;

8.1.4  Passwords or personal identification numbers (PINSs), if used, must be
protected from unauthorized access;

8.1.5  All means for communicating information within the system shall
conform to the protocol standards set forth in Section 9.3;

8.1.6  All player information shall be accurately recorded and such recording
protected by the system;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 27
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



8.1.7  Any card or other tangible instrument issued to a player for the purpose
of using the Cashless Transaction System shall bear on its face a control or inventory number

unique to that instrument;

8.1.8  Encoded bearer instruments printed or magnetic may include coupons
and other items distributed or sold for game play, promotional, advertising or other purposes, but
may not include cash. Such instruments must be in electronically readable form in addition to
having unique identification information printed on the instrument face. The daily and monthly

reporting must include with respect to such instruments:

a.  Cash converted to value in the cashless system;
b.  Outstanding unredeemed balance;

c.  Value in the cashless system converted to cash;
d.  Amount wagered; and

e. Amount won.

8.1.9  Redemption periods, if any, shall be posted or otherwise disclosed to all

players.

8.1.10 Vouchers must bear on the face, in addition to the unique serial number,
the following:
a.  Time/Date printed;

b. -~ Unique identification from which it was printed; and

c. Value of voucher.

8.2  Smart Cards. Any "smart card” (i.e., a card generally made of plastic with a
computer chip imbedded in it) system which the Tribe intends to implement as part of the
Cashless Transaction System shall be tested by the Gaming Test Laboratory to ensure the
integrity of player funds, following the standards applicable to player information set forth in
Section 8.1. Any smart card must store on the card or on the system using the card an audit trail

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 28
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



of the last ten (10) transactions involving the use of the card. Each transaction record must
include, at a minimum, the type of transaction, the amount of the transaction, the date of the
transaction, the time of the transaction, and the identification of the Player Terminal or cashier
terminal or other points of cash exchange where the transaction occurred. The minimum daily

and monthly reporting for smart card activity must include:
8.2.1  Total of cash transferred to smart cards;
8.2.2  Total of smart card amounts transferred to cash;
8.2.3  Total of smart card amounts transferred to Game Play Credits;
8.24  Total of Game Play Credits transferred to smart card amounts; and
8.2.5  Total unredeemed smart card balance.

8.3  Other Functions. Systems shall be permissible that allow player tracking,

maintenance tracking, and other gaming management or marketing functions. These systems
shall not interfere with, or in any way affect, the outcome of any Tribal Lottery Game or the
cashless accounting system. Systems shall be permissible that allow progressive prize

management with the certification of the Gaming Test Laboratory and approval of the SGA.

8.4  Kiosks. Kiosks shall have reports that properly document all transactions, as well
as dedicated video surveillance, to protect the integrity of the cashless system used. Cash boxes
shall be designed so their contents are protected from unauthorized access, in accordance with
Appendix A drop box and transportation standards, and shall be uniquely labeled for the purpose

of audit and security.
SECTION 9. GENERAL SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

The following requirements apply to all components of the Tribal Lottery System,
including the Manufacturing Computer, the Central Computer, the Electronic Accounting

System and Player Terminals.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 29
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



9.1  Separation. The Manufacturing Computer, Central Computer, and Player
Terminals in each Tribal Lottery System shall be physically and operationally independent from
one another except as specified otherwise in this Appendix, such as for communications, storage
and security monitoring, including the routing of communications among system components,
provided such routing does not affect the integrity of the communications or the outcome of any

game. All Tribal Lottery System cables shall be secured against unauthorized access.

9.2  Security. The Manufacturing Computer and Central Computer must be in a
locked, secure enclosure with both camera coverage and key controls in place. Routers,
switches, hubs, or other network access points, to include management terminals and terminals
not separated from the Tribal Lottery System by firewalls approved by the SGA and TGA, must
also be in a locked, secure enclosure with both camera coverage and key controls in place.
Access to Manufacturing Computers and Central Computers shall be logged by the system to
include the date and time of access and available to SGA and TGA upon request.

9.3 Secure Connections; DES or Equivalent Data Encryption. Connections between

all components of the Tribal Lottery System shall only be through the use of secure
communication protocols which are designed to prevent unauthorized access or tampering,
employing Data Encryption Standards (DES) or equivalent encryption with changeable seeds or

algorithms.

9.4 _Surge Protection; Uninterrupted Power System (UPS). Each component of the

Tribal Lottery System shall at all times be connected to a device which provides surge protection
on any line that feeds it and, with the exception of Player Terminals, shall be connected to a
temporary power source, such as a UPS, to provide means for an orderly shutdown of the

computer in the event of a main power system failure.

9.5 Identification Plates. A non-removable plate shall be affixed to the exterior of

each Player Terminal which shall have written upon it the Terminal's serial number and model
number of the component and name of the manufacturer. Other audit numbers may be required
to be affixed to provide a means of identifying individual Terminals for correlation to required
reports.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 30
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



9.6  Locked Areas. The Manufacturing and Central Computers shall at a minimum be
enclosed in a locked and monitored cabinet. Access shall be through the use of access controls
provided in Section 9.7. The Player Terminal shall have at a minimum the following separately
locked areas, which shall be the only means of accessing any non-public part of the Terminal: (a)
a locked and monitored cabinet door; (b) a locked microprocessor compartment; (c) a locked

outer cash box door; and (d) a locked drop cash box door.

9.7  Access Control Standards. Keys which provide access to any locked

compartment, component or area of a Tribal Lottery System, as well as passwords, keycards, or
PIN numbers used to access the Tribal Lottery System, shall be maintained and used in
accordance with the access control standards enacted in the Tribe's statement of minimum
internal controls.

9.7.1  Each employee accessing the Tribal Lottery System software except for
Player Terminals and unattended Kiosks by means of a password, keycard, or PIN number,
including vendor representatives, must have a user name or user number unique to that
individual, and the Tribal Lottery System must log the date and time of access. These access
logs must be readily available for audit by TGA and SGA.

9.8 MEAL Cards. For all entries into the locked areas of the Manufacturing
Computer, Central Computer, unattended Kiosks, or any Player Terminal, a written record must
be made on a machine entry authorization log (MEAL) indicating at least the following: the time,
date, and purpose of entering said locked area(s), and the name and employee number (or other
personal identification specific to such person) of the person doing so.

9.9  Access Control. In addition to maintenance of MEAL cards, the Manufacturing

and Central Computers shall record and generate a report on any access including date, time of

access, person (by employee number) accessing the computer, and the reason for access.

9.10 Cameras. For purposes of this section, all components of the Tribal Lottery
System, except wiring, cables, and conduit in which they are located, shall have the ability to be
effectively and clandestinely monitored and recorded by means of a closed circuit television

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 31
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



system or digital surveillance system in accordance with Appendix A and as authorized by TGA
and SGA, in compliance with the requirements of the Compact.

9.11 Verification Data and Functions. In addition to its functions in operating a

connection with the Electronic Scratch Ticket and On-line Lottery Games, the Central Computer
may be used to record the data used to verify game play and to configure and perform security
checks on Player Terminals, provided such functions do not affect the security, integrity or
outcome of such games.

SECTION 10. TESTING OF TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEMS TO ENSURE INTEGRITY

10.1 Designation of Independent Gaming Test Laboratory. The Tribe shall select one

or more gaming test laboratories (hereinafter "Gaming Test Laboratory™) to perform the testing
required in this Appendix. Any Gaming Test Laboratory selected shall have demonstrated it is
competent and qualified to conduct scientific tests and evaluations of electronic gaming systems
and to otherwise perform the functions set forth in this Compact, and shall be licensed by the
SGA. The SGA shall maintain a list of approved Gaming Test Laboratories. A Tribe may
request additional laboratories be placed on the SGA's list of Gaming Test Laboratories which
request shall not be reasonably withheld. Any laboratory that is currently licensed and approved
by any state, province or country to test or evaluate electronic gaming devices or systems shall
be placed on the list if after review by the SGA it is found to be so qualified and otherwise meets
the background and licensing requirements applicable to such laboratories under Washington
State Law. For any testing required under this Appendix, the Tribe shall choose a laboratory
from those Gaming Test Laboratories on said SGA list. If, at any time, any of the Gaming Test
Laboratory's licenses from any jurisdiction are suspended, terminated or subject to disciplinary
actions, the Gaming Test Laboratories may be removed from the SGA’s list. If removed from
the SGA list, the Tribe shall choose a new Gaming Test Laboratory as provided herein.

10.2  Testing and Certification of Tribal Lottery Systems. No Tribal Lottery System or

component thereof may be offered for play unless:

10.2.1  Such Tribal Lottery System is approved by the SGA as provided in
Section 10.3;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 32
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



10.2.2  The Tribal Lottery System or component prototype thereof, has been
tested and certified by the Gaming Test Laboratory as meeting the requirements specified by this
Appendix;

10.2.3  If not already provided to the Gaming Test Laboratory, the Tribe shall
provide, or require that the manufacturer provide to the Gaming Test Laboratory and the SGA
two (2) copies of Tribal Lottery System illustrations, schematics, block diagrams, circuit
analyses, technical and operation manuals, program object and source codes, hexadecimal dumps
(the compiled computer program represented in base 16 format), and any other information
requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory or SGA,;

10.2.4  If requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory or SGA, the Tribe shall
require the Manufacturer to transport working models of the Tribal Lottery System to a location
designated by the Gaming Test Laboratory or SGA for testing, examination or analysis. Neither
the State nor the Gaming Test Laboratory shall be liable for any costs associated with the
transportation, testing, examination, or analysis, including any damage to the components of the
Tribal Lottery System. If requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory or SGA, the Tribe shall
require the Manufacturer to provide specialized equipment or the services of an independent
technical expert to assist with the testing, examination and analysis. For purpose of continued
monitoring, the SGA may retain working models of any Tribal Lottery System or component
after approval for as long as the equipment is in play in the state;

10.2.5 At the conclusion of each test, the Gaming Test Laboratory shall provide
to the SGA and the TGA a report that contains findings, conclusions and a certification that the
Tribal Lottery System conforms or fails to conform to the requirements contained in this
Compact. If the Gaming Test Laboratory determines that the device fails to conform to such
requirements or technical standards, and if modifications can be made which would bring the
Tribal Lottery System into compliance, the report may contain recommendations for such
modifications. The State is not bound by the findings, conclusions or certifications of the
Gaming Test Laboratory for purposes of its enforcement of the provisions of this Compact and
may perform further testing on the system or components to verify compliance;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 33
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



10.3  Approval by the SGA. Upon receiving the certification from the test laboratory,

the SGA shall either approve or disapprove the Tribal Lottery System or component thereof
based on the technical criteria contained in this Appendix, within sixty (60) days of receipt of the
certification as to any new Tribal Lottery System or any component thereof, and within fifteen
(15) days of the receipt of the certification as to any modification of a system which has already
been approved by the SGA. The certification shall be deemed approved if no action is taken
thereon by the SGA within said sixty (60) day period or fifteen (15) day period, as may be
applicable. The fifteen (15) day period shall be extended for the first nine (9) months after the
effective date of this Appendix and, during that first nine (9) month period, such certification
shall only be deemed approved if no action is taken within thirty (30) days. Any disputes arising
out of the approval process in this Section 10.3 shall be resolved in accordance with the binding

arbitration provisions of the Compact.

10.4 Modifications of Approved Lottery Systems; Emergency Certifications. No

modification to any Tribal Lottery System may be made after testing, certification and approval
of a Tribal Lottery System without certification of the modification by the Gaming Test
Laboratory under Section 10.2 and-approval thereof by the SGA under Section 10.3. In
situations where immediate modifications are necessary to preserve the integrity of a Tribal
Lottery System which has been operating pursuant to an approval obtained under section 10.3,
the Gaming Test Laboratory may issue an emergency certification of the modification and that it
must be made immediately to preserve the integrity of the Tribal Lottery System. Such
emergency certifications shall be deemed to be temporarily approved by the SGA and remain in
effect until the SGA takes action on the certification, which shall be governed by section 10.3,
provided that no emergency certification shall be valid or effective until actually approved by the
SGA if it was not received by the SGA within 5 days after being issued.

10.5 Manufacturer's Conformity to Technical Standards. Before any component of a

Tribal Lottery System may be placed into operation, the Tribe shall first have obtained a written
Certification from the manufacturer that upon installation, each such component: (a) conforms
to the specifications of the Tribal Lottery System as certified by the Gaming Test Laboratory;
and (b) operates and plays in accordance with the requirements of this Compact. Authorization
to operate a Tribal Lottery System requires that it operate and play in accordance with the

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 34
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



requirements specified by this Appendix; provided that while the failure of such Tribal Lottery
System to comply with such requirements will suffice as a grounds to enjoin or otherwise
terminate said Tribal Lottery System's operation, such non-compliance will not be deemed a
violation of this Compact as long as the Tribe has relied in good faith on the certification of the

manufacturer and has retained a written certification in the manner described in this section.

10.6  Payment of Gaming Test Laboratory Fees. The Tribe shall be responsible for the
payment of all Gaming Test Laboratory fees and costs in connection with the duties described in
this Compact. The Tribe shall provide copies of all Gaming Test Laboratory invoices and
payments by the Tribe to the SGA, which shall have the right to audit such fees. In order to
assure independence of the Gaming Test Laboratory, any Gaming Test Laboratory Payment
delinquency by the Tribe of fees or costs due to the Gaming Test Laboratory may be grounds by
the SGA for rejecting such laboratory's reports or certification.

10.7 Gaming Test Laboratory Duty of Loyalty. The Tribe shall inform the Gaming

Test Laboratory in writing that, irrespective of the source of payment of its fees, the Gaming Test
Laboratory's duty of loyalty and reporting requirements run equally to the State and the Tribe.

10.8 Random Inspections. The Tribe shall allow the SGA to inspect any components

of the Tribal Lottery System for the purposes of confirming that such component is operating in
accordance with the requirements of this Compact and that such component is identical to that
tested by an Independent Test Laboratory. Inspections shall be pursuant to the Facility access

rules set forth in the Compact.

10.9 SGA to be Supplied Model of Player Terminal and System. If not already

provided to the SGA, the SGA shall, upon request, be supplied a Player Terminal Central
Computer and Manufacturing Computer to be held at the SGA's offices for purposes of

determining compliance with these technical requirements.
SECTION 11. ALTERNATIVE STANDARDS PERMITTED

Notwithstanding anything in this Appendix to the contrary, the SGA and Tribe may agree
on alternative provisions to those set forth herein, provided such provisions adequately preserve

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 35
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



and protect the integrity and security of any game or gaming system or component, or accounting

or auditing system or component, affected thereby.

SECTION 12. TRIBAL LOTTERY SYSTEM PLAYER TERMINAL
ACQUISITION AND OPERATION

12.1  Allocation. The Tribe shall be entitled to an allocation of, and may operate or

transfer the ability to operate, up to 1075 Player Terminals (“Allocation”).

12.1.1  If the Tribe has not previously operated a gaming facility, the SGA shall
conduct a standard compliance review commencing on the one year anniversary of the facility’s

opening to determine whether the following requirements have been satisfied:

a.  There have been no violations of the provisions of the Compact
that have resulted in sanctions imposed by the Federal District

Court;

b.  There have been no violations of the Compact which are
substantial or would be deemed material due to repetition;

c..  There have been no material adverse impacts on the public safety
or welfare of the surrounding communities in the nature of
criminal activities directly related to the operations of the Class I11
Gaming Facility;

d.  Any changes in the operating requirements that are necessary to
accommodate any increase in the number of Player Terminals in

use have been implemented; and

e.  All fees due from Tribe under Section 13 have been paid, or in the
alternative either a memorandum of understanding with the SGA
("MOQOU™) has been entered into or an arbitration has been
demanded, has not been resolved, and the Tribe has complied with
the provisions of Section 13.5.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 36
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



A summary of the results of the compliance review will be provided to both the Tribe and
the TGA.

12.2  Further Conditions. The Tribe may acquire the ability to operate additional

Player Terminals that have been allocated by compact to any other Washington tribe and may
also transfer any of its own Allocation of Player Terminals, or the ability to operate such
allocated Terminals to another Washington tribe that has entered into a compact authorizing
operation of a Tribal Lottery System consistent with this Appendix ("Eligible Tribe"), subject to

the following conditions:

12.2.1  Subject to Section 12.4 below, the Tribe may operate no more than
2,500 Player Terminals per facility (“Facility Limit”), and no more than a combined Player
Terminal total (“Total Operating Ceiling") of 3,000 Player Terminals. It is also agreed that upon
the effective date of this Appendix, the Total Operating Ceiling for the Muckleshoot Tribe,
Tulalip Tribes, and Puyallup Tribe shall be 3,500 for each of those three tribes until the third
anniversary of the effective date of this Appendix, at which time it shall increase to 4,000 for
each of those same three tribes. It is further agreed that the Tribe shall not be entitled as a matter
of right to an increase in its Total Operating Ceiling based on the fact that the Muckleshoot
Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Puyallup Tribe are entitled under this Appendix to operate up
to the separate, higher Total Operating Ceiling(s) established specifically for them in this
Appendix.

12.2.2  The Tribe agrees that its acquisitions and transfers of the ability to
operate additional Player Terminals shall be made only pursuant to a plan approved by no less
than a majority of the tribes that were Eligible Tribes at the time such plan was adopted.
Development and approval of the plan shall follow notice to all Eligible Tribes and an
opportunity to participate in creating the plan. Once adopted or amended, the plan shall stay in
effect without change for at least one year, even if additional tribes become Eligible Tribes
thereafter, but such additional tribes may participate in the plan. Changes in the plan shall not
affect the validity or terms of prior transactions conducted between or among tribes under the
plan. The State shall have no responsibility whatsoever with respect to the plan, including but
not limited to responsibility for providing notices to tribes, determining if the plan has been

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 37
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



agreed to properly, monitoring its rules or implementation, or any other aspect of such plan, the
entire responsibility for which shall be upon the Eligible Tribes.

12.2.3 The Tribe waives the ability to operate a Player Terminal pursuant to its
Allocation if the ability to operate such a Terminal has been transferred to another tribe until
such time as the ability to operate such a Terminal has been reacquired by the Tribe.

12.2.4  The Tribe may not utilize the ability to operate a Player Terminal that
was allocated to, and subsequently acquired from, another tribe, until it completes delivery to the
State of documentation confirming the number of transfers of the ability to operate such
Terminals it has acquired.

12.3. Joining Facilities by Common Enclosure.

12.3.1  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Compact (including any
amendments), Facilities that are physically joined (*Joined Facilities”) by a Common Enclosure
(as defined below) shall be treated as separate Facilities for the purpose of determining
compliance with the Facility Limit. No Class 111 game or gaming system, or component thereof,
shall be located or operated outside the Tribe’s gaming facility except as approved pursuant to
Section 5.11. Facilities may share utility services, electronic and computer data, accounting,
equipment, instructions, information, functions and systems. If the combined Player Terminals
in any structure (regardless of its resemblance to a Joined Facility or inclusion of what would
otherwise be deemed to be a Common Enclosure) total no more than the Facility Limit, the Tribe
may treat the entire structure as a single Facility and not as a Joined Facility or as containing a
Common Enclosure.

12.3.2  As used herein, the term “Common Enclosure” means a walkway,
breezeway, or hallway that is physically connected to, and is shared in common by, Joined
Facilities and its primary purpose is to provide a passage from one facility to another. A
Common Enclosure shall not contain any Tribal Lottery System Player Terminals, gaming tables
or other gaming equipment and shall not be more than one story tall, with a height of not more
than twenty feet from the floor to the interior ceiling and a width of not more than thirty feet.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 38
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



12.4  Other Circumstances. Except as specifically provided in Section 12.2.1 of this

Appendix, in the event the State agrees (or is required by law or a court ruling to agree) to permit
an allocation of Player Terminals to a tribe which is greater, or is on terms which are more
favorable, than as set forth herein, the Tribe shall be entitled to such greater Allocation or more
favorable terms.

SECTION 13. STATE REGULATORY FEES

13.1 Payment of Outstanding Fees. All regulatory fees which have been billed by the

SGA to the tribes collectively who are parties to State of Washington v. The Confederated Tribes
of the Chehalis Reservation, NO. C 95-1805-FVS (W.D. Wa.), covering services through the
most recent billing period, shall be paid prior to the Tribe being authorized to operate the Tribal

Lottery Systems set forth in this Appendix. This requirement shall be deemed to have been met
with respect to any fees as to which either a) a MOU has been entered into regarding such fees
and the Tribe has paid all fees due through the most recent billing period as stated above, or b) an
arbitration has been demanded and has not been resolved and the Tribe has made the payments
and deposits required under Section 13.5.

13.2  Set-up Fee. As part of the recoverable cost of regulating Tribal Lottery Systems
under this Appendix, the State shall be entitled to the reasonable cost of initially setting up such
regulation ("Set-up Fee"), which shall not exceed for all Eligible Tribes, in the aggregate, the
sum of $250,000. The Tribe acknowledges that the SGA’s ability to regulate Tribal Lottery
Systems, and thus the implementation of this Appendix, is contingent on the receipt by the SGA
of an advance deposit to be credited against the Set-up Fee in the full amount of $250,000 (*'Set-
up Deposit™). The Tribe agrees to cooperate and participate on a fair and pro rata basis (i.e.,
dividing the entire amount due by the number of Eligible Tribes at the time such determination is
made) in any agreement among the Eligible Tribes with respect to the Set-up Deposit, which
shall be paid to the SGA within three months of the casino opening.

13.3 Payment of Tribe’s Share of Set-up Fee. As a condition to the Tribe’s operation

of the Tribal Lottery System under this Appendix, the Tribe shall deposit with the SGA its pro-
rata share of the Set-up Deposit if the actual costs comprising the Set-up Fee have not yet been

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 39
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



determined, or if so, of the Set-up Fee. In the event the Tribe pays the SGA more than its pro-
rata share of the Set-up Deposit or, after the actual costs are determined, the Set-up Fee, it shall
be reimbursed by way of future Regulatory Fee credits based on the collection by the SGA of
additional pro-rata payments from other Eligible Tribes, the addition of such tribes and resulting
recalculation of the pro-rata amount per tribe, or both, as the case may be. The pro-rata amount
per tribe shall be redetermined by the SGA at least once a year to take into account the collection
of further tribal pro-rata payments or the addition of new Eligible Tribes, and further credits due
as a result thereof shall be applied to the next billing period.

13.4 Annual Reqgulatory Fees. The Tribe agrees to pay its share of the SGA’s actual

costs which are reasonably incurred in order to commence and carry out its regulatory functions
with respect to the Tribe’s gaming under this Appendix, through the payment of an annual
Regulatory Fee. For the sake of convenience and efficiency, the Regulatory Fee shall also
include any actual costs which were incurred by the SGA in connection with the Tribe’s class 11
gaming other than those authorized under this Appendix, and shall supersede provisions in the
Compact with respect to the imposition of such fees therein. "Actual costs" as used herein shall
mean those costs that were reasonably incurred in order to protect the honesty and integrity of
the gaming being operated by Tribe under, and to monitor the Tribe’s compliance with, the
Compact. Costs incurred in common for more than one tribe shall be allocated among such
tribes. For purposes of this Section 13, prior years’ actual costs shall be based on the actual costs

incurred for the twelve months ending September 30. Regulatory Fees shall be paid as follows:

13.4.1 First Year Requlatory Fees. Upon commencement of operations of a

Gaming Operation, the SGA shall make a good faith estimate of the cost of requlating the

Tribe’s activities under this Appendix for the remainder of the calendar year.

13.4.2 Cost Allocation. Notwithstanding anything in the Compact to the

contrary, the Requlatory Fees for all class 111 activities under the Compact, including those

applicable to the activities described in this Appendix (except for the first year fees set by

estimate as provided in Sections 13.4.1), shall be set by determining the cost of requlating the

Tribe’s class 111 activities using the State’s cost allocation model currently in use as of the

effective date of this Amendment.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 40
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



13.4.3 Billing and Payment. The SGA shall notify the Tribe of the forthcoming

Requlatory Fee at least 45 days prior to its becoming due. Requlatory Fees may be paid for an

entire year in advance of the date on which the billing year commences (calendar year) or in no

more than 12 equal monthly installments, each of which shall be due on the first day of each

month, which monthly payments shall commence on the first day of the first month of the billing

year, or within 45 days following notification of the amount of the forthcoming year’s

Regulatory Fee, whichever is later.

13.4.4 Audit. The SGA shall send the Tribe an annual audited accounting of

actual costs on or before April 30" of the following year.

13.4.5 Reuvisions to State’s Cost Allocation Model. The State may revise its
cost allocation model, which shall become effective upon 90 days’ notice to the Tribe. If the
Tribe disputes the revised model, the State and Tribe shall meet and confer in an attempt to
resolve the matter within 30 days. If the parties cannot resolve the dispute, the dispute resolution

provisions set forth in section 13.5 shall apply.

13.5 Regqulatory Fee Disputes. If the Tribe disputes the State's determination of the

Regulatory Fee, the Tribe shall pay no less than the amount of the fee which is not in dispute to
the SGA when due and deposit the disputed amount into an escrow account that is restricted until
such dispute is resolved. The dispute will be resolved pursuant to the binding arbitration
provisions of this Compact. If the Tribe fails to make the required payment to the SGA or
deposit into escrow, the State may pursue any of the remedies set forth in the Compact for the
Tribe’s breach thereof.

SECTION 14. OTHER PAYMENTS

In order to provide for impacts to local community services that may arise as a result of
the gaming authorized under this Appendix, the following payments shall be made from
revenues derived from, as specified, the Tribe’s Class 111 gaming or Tribal Lottery System
activities on the terms and conditions set forth below.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 41
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



14.1 Impact Costs. Up to one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the net win derived from
Tribal Lottery System activities, determined on an annual basis using the Tribe’s fiscal year,
shall be added to any amounts payable and distributable from other Class Il activities under the
Compact in order to meet community impacts, to the extent such Compact amounts are
insufficient to meet actual and demonstrated impact costs.

14.2  Charitable Donations. One-half of one percent (0.5%) of the net win derived

from Tribal Lottery System activities, determined on an annual basis using the Tribe’s fiscal
year, shall be donated to non-tribal bona fide non-profit and charitable organizations in the State
of Washington.

14.3 Community Impacts. Up to one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the net win derived
from the Tribal Lottery System, determined on an annual basis using the Tribe’s fiscal year,
determined by deducting from one percent of said net win the amounts actually paid under
Sections 14.1 and 14.2 in said year, shall be applied to Tribal governmental programs which
have an impact on the community by assisting the Tribe and its members in become self-
sufficient, such as programs concerned with Tribal law enforcement, education, housing, health,
elderly care, safety, and gaming regulation.

14.4  Problem Gambling. Thirteen one-hundredths of one percent (0.13%) of the net
win derived from all Class Il gaming activities, determined on an annual basis, shall be

dedicated to problem gambling education, awareness, and treatment in the State of Washington.
Contributions shall be made to governmental, charitable and/or non-profit organizations, which
may include the Department of Social and Health Services’ Division of Alcohol and Substance
Abuse (DSHS/DASA), that are directly related to helping to reduce problem gambling. The 0.13
percent of net win shall be paid annually, commencing with the conclusion of the Tribe’s first
full fiscal year following the date upon which this Appendix becomes effective and shall be paid

annually within one year of the close of the Tribe’s fiscal year.

14,5 Smoking Cessation and Prevention. Thirteen one-hundredths of one percent

(0.13%) of the net win derived from Tribal Lottery System activities, determined on an annual
basis, shall be dedicated to smoking cessation, prevention, education, awareness, and treatment

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 42
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



in the State of Washington. Contributions shall be made to governmental, charitable and/or
nonprofit organizations that have as a purpose the discouragement of the use of tobacco.
However, if the Tribe operates any of its Class 111 gaming facilities as entirely smoke-free, the
Tribe‘s smoking cessation contribution shall be reduced proportionally based upon the pro rata
number of Tribal Lottery System machines in that non-smoking facility compared to the total
number of Tribal Lottery System machines operated by the Tribe. Additionally, it is also agreed
that if the Tribe completely prohibits the sale and use of alcohol in all of its Class 11 gaming
facilities, the Tribe shall be entirely excused from making the smoking cessation contribution
required by this subsection for as long as the prohibition on the sale and use of alcohol remains
in effect. The 0.13 percent of net win shall be paid annually, commencing with the conclusion of
the Tribe’s first full fiscal year following the date upon which this Appendix becomes effective
and shall be paid annually within one year of the close of the Tribe’s fiscal year as set forth in
section 14.6.3.

14.6 Payment. The payments set forth in Section 14.1 through 14.5 shall be subject to
the following:

14.6.1 Except in Section 14.4, as used in Section 14, the term "net win" shall
mean the total amount of Tribal Lottery System revenue after prizes or winnings have been paid
out (i.e., the difference between the amount wagered or played and the amounts paid to winners),
less any cost of developing, licensing, or otherwise obtaining the use of the Tribal Lottery
System. In Section 14.4, the term "net win" shall mean the total amount of Class 111 gaming
revenue after prizes or winnings have been paid out (i.e., the difference between the amount
wagered or played and the amounts paid to winners) less any cost of developing, licensing, or
otherwise obtaining the use of the Class 111 games;

14.6.2 Because IGRA requires that the Tribe be the primary beneficiary of
gaming revenues, no donation shall be due under Section 14.2 in any Tribal fiscal year in which
the Tribe has not made a profit from its class 111 operation, taking into account the effect of such
donation if made. As used herein, the term "profit" shall mean net profits associated with the
operation of all Class 111 gaming by the Tribe, as determined under GAAP, but without

deduction for depreciation;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 43
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



14.6.3 The payments and distributions required by Sections 14.1, 14.2, and
14.3, above, shall be paid within one year of the close of the Tribe’s fiscal year. In the first year
that a tribe operates a gaming facility, the payments required by Sections 14.1, 14.2, and 14.3,
above, shall be reduced by one half, and in the second year that a tribe operates a gaming facility,
the payments required by those Sections shall be reduced by one quarter. The payments required
by Sections 14.4 and 14.5, shall be paid as indicated in those Sections.

14.7 Community Investments and Contributions

14.7.1  Qualifying Programs. The Tribe agrees to continue its commitment of
investing in the health and welfare of the community by providing for programs that benefit
tribal and non-tribal members through Community Investments and Contributions. Community

Investments and Contributions are intended to support programs including, but not limited to the

following:

a.  Goods and services purchased;

b.  Wages and benefits paid (including number of jobs provided);

c. Law enforcement, courts, detention programs, and fire and
emergency services (contributions may include cross deputization
and mutual aid agreements, facilities and equipment);

d. Natural resource protection and habitat restoration;

e. Health care, including: drug and alcohol treatment and prevention
services, smoking cessation programs, problem gambling
treatment and services, mental health care, dental care, and health
promotion programs, such as diabetes prevention, nutrition
programs, and fitness programs;

f.  Education, including tutoring, head start and related services, as
well as direct financial support to State-funded education;

g. Day care;

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 44

Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



h.  Disaster and emergency preparedness;

I. Public utilities, including water, wastewater, and water treatment

infrastructure;
J. Economic development and job training;
k.  Elder services;
I.  Cultural resource protection;
m.  Social services programs, such as food banks, shelters, etc.;
n.  Transit services;

0.  Outreach and informational programs, such as financial training
for homeowners, home repair classes, GED classes, parenting
classes, etc.;

p. Roads, bridges and other transportation infrastructure (including
sidewalks, lighting, signage);

q. Lowincome housing;

r. — Public works, public facilities (such as museums, libraries, cultural
facilities, wellness centers, elections facilities), athletic fields,
parks, and other recreational facilities;

S. Contributions to communities or charities; and

t. In kind contributions related to any of the above.

14.7.2. Community Investments and Contributions Report. In order to ensure

that such efforts and contributions are recognized and documented, the Tribe agrees to provide
and certify data that fairly reflect its Community Investments and Contributions in an annual
report. The report shall contain the date or time period of the contribution, a brief description of
the program or services, and an approximate dollar value of the investment or contribution. The
report shall be accompanied by a certification that the data supplied by the Tribe is accurate.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 45
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



SECTION 15. MORATORIUM

15.1 Amendment Moratorium. The Tribe agrees to seek no additional amendments to

this Appendix with respect to the subject matter of Tribal Lottery System Terminals prior to June
30, 2009, (“Moratorium”) except in the following circumstances, which circumstances may also
constitute a basis for the Tribe to seek such an amendment after the expiration of the
Moratorium:

15.1.1 Technical Changes. Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the Tribe or
State from seeking changes of the technical provisions of this Appendix if the necessity or

desirability for such changes becomes apparent in the development, testing, production,

marketing, or use of the system. Neither party shall unreasonably deny such requests.

15.1.2 Mutual Agreement. Nothing in this Section shall diminish the right of

either party to amend the terms and conditions of this Compact by mutual agreement, as
otherwise provided in this Compact.

15.2  Post-Moratorium. Upon the expiration of the Moratorium, the following

circumstances may constitute a basis for the Tribe to seek an amendment and without prejudice
to any other provision(s) of the Compact or this Appendix, except the application of the
Moratorium in section 15.1, above, to such provision(s), when:

15.2.1  Federal or State law, whether by statute, rule, regulation or other action
is amended to authorize any gambling devices now prohibited or not now permitted in the State
and/or not governed by this Appendix;

15.2.2 A State or Federal Court within the State of Washington or a Federal
Court interpreting the laws of the State of Washington issues a final and unappealable decision
permitting participation by any person, organization or entity to use a gambling device that was
not deemed by the State to be authorized at the time this Compact amendment was executed, or
is not authorized by this Compact; or

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 46
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



15.2.3  Any other tribe located in the State of Washington obtains through a
Compact or Compact amendment, or otherwise through applicable federal law, or any person or
entity (including the State Lottery) is licensed to use or places in use, any type or number of
Class 111 - type gambling device or equipment which is materially different from or allows a
greater quantity per location than that which is authorized by this Compact. In such event the
Tribe shall be entitled to use such equipment or increase their allocation to a like number, subject
to good faith negotiations with the State regarding the use and regulation of such equipment,
which negotiations shall be subject to the dispute resolution provisions of this Compact.

15.2.4  Any other tribe located in the State of Washington actually offers to
patrons pursuant to a Compact or Compact amendment, or otherwise through applicable federal
law, higher maximum wagers than provided for in this Compact, and/or the extension of credit,
then the Tribe may likewise do so in conformity with the terms and conditions so permitted the

other tribe.

SECTION 16. HOURS OF OPERATION

Notwithstanding anything in the Tribe’s Compact, as amended, to the contrary, the Tribe
shall determine the hours of operation for each of its gaming facilities.

SECTION 17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

In the event of a dispute hereunder, it shall be resolved in accordance with any dispute
resolution provisions specifically made applicable in this Appendix to such disputes, or if there

are none, under the Dispute Resolution provisions of the Compact.
SECTION 18. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Appendix shall take effect only when the following conditions have, in the order
listed, been met: 1) additional amending Appendices containing identical terms, conditions, and
provisions have been approved and signed by the authorized officials of the State and by all of
the Indian tribes in the State of Washington (excepting only the Cowlitz Tribe and the Spokane

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 47
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



Tribe) that were federally recognized on or before January 1, 2007; 2) the approved and signed
amending Appendices for every federally recognized Washington tribe (excepting only the
Cowlitz Tribe and the Spokane Tribe) have been forwarded to the United States Secretary of the
Interior; and, 3) notice of the approval of this Appendix by the United States Secretary of the
Interior has been published in the Federal Register in accordance with 25 U.S.C. §2710(d)(3)(B).
Provided, if the provisions of this Section 18(1) and (2) above have not been fully satisfied
within 90 days after execution by the State and the Tribe, then the Tribe shall be entitled to
terminate its approval of this Appendix. Provided further, that the State may, if it chooses, waive

the requirements of subsections (1) and (2) of this Section 18.

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE APPENDIX X2 Page 48
Amended to incorporate 2015 Appendix X2 Amendment



Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe - State of Washington
Class 111 Gaming Compact

Appendix X2 Addendum
Tribal Lottery System Terminal Allocations

Section 1. Overview

The Parties executed the Fourth Amendment to the Tribal-State Compact, known as
Appendix X2. Appendix X2 became effective May 31, 2007. This Appendix X2 Addendum
further supplements Appendix X2 as follows:

Section 2. Definitions

All terms not defined herein shall have the same definitions as in the Tribe’s Compact
and its amendments and appendices.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

“Available for Lease” means a Player Terminal that is part of an Eligible Tribe’s
Allocation of Player Terminals and is neither in use in any Eligible Tribe’s
Gaming Facility or Facilities, nor leased to another Eligible Tribe.

“Certification” means a confirmation conducted and signed by an Independent
Accounting Firm that states the number of Player Terminals Available for Lease
in the State of Washington.

“Eligible Tribe” means a Washington Tribe that has entered into a compact
authorizing operation of a Tribal Lottery System consistent with Appendix X2.

“Independent Accounting Firm” means a person or firm licensed by the
Washington State Board of Accountancy.

Section 3. Increases to Tribe’s Allocation of Player Terminals

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Tribe’s Allocation of Player Terminals as set forth in Appendix X2 may
increase by 50 Player Terminals upon meeting the procedures and conditions set
forth in this Addendum.

The Tribe shall provide the State Gaming Agency with written notice, along with
Certification from an Independent Accounting Firm, that there are 500 or fewer
Player Terminals Available for Lease among all tribes participating in the Tribal
Lottery System under Appendix X2. The Tribe shall derive its notice and
Certification from information provided by participants in the plan described in
Section 12.2.2 of Appendix X2.

Upon receipt of the Tribe’s notice, the State Gaming Agency shall review the
Certification and verify the Player Terminals Available for Lease in the state. To
facilitate the State Gaming Agency’s review and verification process, the Tribe



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

shall authorize the Independent Accounting Firm to make available for review by
the State Gaming Agency all supporting records used to develop the Certification.

The State Gaming Agency has 30 days to review, verify, and provide written
notification to the Tribe of the additional Allocation of Player Terminals set forth
in Section 3.1. Any such increase to the Tribe’s Allocation shall become effective
30 days after notification by the State Gaming Agency.

Such notice by the State Gaming Agency shall for all purposes increase the
Allocation of Player Terminals for the Tribe until such time as, if ever, another
notice and Certification is delivered to the State Gaming Agency for an increase
to the Allocation.

Except as set forth in Section 3.7, additional increases to the Tribe’s Allocation of
Player Terminals under this Section are limited to one (1) increase per twelve (12)
month period.

Notwithstanding the limitation set forth in Sections 3.5 and 3.6, if the Tribe, or
another Eligible Tribe, licenses a new Gaming Facility on Tribal Lands that will
operate more than 1,075 Player Terminals at its initial opening, the Tribe may
provide written notification to the State Gaming Agency of such licensure. After
receipt of such notification, the State Gaming Agency has 30 days to review,
concur, and provide written notification to the Tribe that the Tribe’s Allocation of
Player Terminals shall increase by an additional 50 Player Terminals.

In the event any other Eligible Tribe becomes entitled to an increased Allocation
of Player Terminals under that tribe’s version of Section 3.4 or 3.7, the Tribe shall
be automatically entitled to the same Allocation increase authorized to that other
Washington tribe by its version of Section 3.4 or 3.7 above, and the State shall
provide prompt notification of the increase to the Tribe.

Section 4. Dispute Resolution

4.1

4.2

If a dispute arises between the Tribe and the State with respect to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Addendum, including but not limited to the number of
Player Terminals Available for Lease, the State and Tribe shall meet and attempt
to resolve the dispute not later than 30 days prior to the increased Allocation of
Player Terminals going into effect.

If either party believes, after the meet and confer has commenced, that a
resolution by the parties cannot be achieved, then either or both parties shall be
entitled to have the dispute resolved pursuant to the dispute resolution provisions
of the Compact.



JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE
and the
STATE OF WASHINGTON
CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

APPENDIX W
Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives

Table of Contents
STATEMENT OF CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS.......cviieitarieiiiee e 1
1. INTRODUGCTION ..ottt bbbt n e e bbbt be et e e e 1
I R B 1= 1010 USRS P TR URURRRRSRT 1
O 01T o SO ST TP O U RTUPR TSRO 2
2. REQUIREMENTS ...ttt ada et ettt beesaesa e e et e snesnenrenneeneens 2
2.1 General REQUITEMENTS ......ccuieiiiiecie e eee et s aba et e ast e te e teeneesbeesae e e sraesteeneesneesraenneenee e 2
2.2 SUDMISSION PrOCESS .....vivieutieuiestesiht i e sieeseesseesteansassasin e eesseesbeebesneesteesbeaseesseesseaneesneenes 3
3. TESTING AND APPROVAL ...ttt skiins e aanasha e sae e saessesnesnesnaanaenaeneens 4
3.1  Independent Gaming Test LaboratOry.........cccecuiiiiiieeiiiiee e 4
3.2 General Testing REQUIFEMENES ...........iiiueiriaieiienieeie et stee st sre e sre e enes 5
3.3 Materials Provided to Gaming Test LabDOratory.............ccuoveeeierenienenesiseseseeeeeeseenes 5
3.4 Approval by the State Gaming AGENCY ......c.eiuiiieieerieiieieeiesiese e se e e sre e 5
3.5 INSTAITALION ... e enes 6
3.6 WAP Operator CertifICatION............ccoueieiiiiiiriiiesiesie e 6
3.7 PaYMENT OF FEES ittt ittt ettt 6
INSPECTIONS ...ttt sttt b e s et e e stesbesbeabeabeeseeneeneeneas 6
PARTICIPATION IN ANOTHER APPROVED WAP .......coiieieie et 7

5.1 Requirements for participation in another approved WAP: ..........c.ccceveiieviiie i, 7



CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

APPENDIX W
Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives

STATEMENT OF CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

The Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe (Tribe) and the State of Washington (State) believe that
conducting Class 111 gaming under the terms, limitations, and conditions set forth below will
benefit the Tribe and the State, will be fair and protect the members of the Tribe and the other
citizens of the State, and is consistent with the objectives of the federal Indian Gaming
Regulatory Act. The parties have agreed upon conditions of the terms, provisions, and limitations
contained in this Appendix W.

This Appendix contains interdependent conditions and consequences that must be accepted as a
whole in order to operate or participate in a Wide Area Progressive (WAP). As a result,
authorization to operate or participate in a WAP requires the Tribe to operate and participate in
accordance with all of the requirements of both this Appendix and the subsequent memorandum
of understanding agreed to under subsection 2.2.3.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Definitions

Any capitalized term used but not defined herein shall have the same meaning as in the
Compact.

“Component” means hardware, software, and any integral parts or combination thereof
necessary to operate the WAP.

“Fair” means the odds of winning prizes being equal to other devices connected to the
same WAP within accepted statistical industry standards as verified by an approved
Gaming Test Laboratory.

“Participant Tribe” means a tribal government within the State that has been accepted to
join in a specific approved WAP.,

“Progressive Prize” means a prize that increases by a predetermined amount based on
play on a Class 11l Tribal Lottery System (TLS).

“Wide Area Progressive” or “WAP” means a jackpot sharing system between multiple
participating jurisdictions and/or governments within and outside the State.

"WAP Controller" means a component at each participating jurisdiction’s and/or

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 1
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



government's gaming facility that accumulates Progressive Prizes and provides
Progressive Prize information to display for players.

“WAP Operator” means the licensed manufacturer or gaming service supplier that
maintains the WAP central system which communicates with individual WAP
Controllers.

12 Intent
The intent of the parties is to allow the Tribe to use a WAP where players are entered into
a pool for a Progressive Prize without the insertion of additional consideration.

1.2.1 The WAP must be Fair, secure, and auditable.

1.2.2 The WAP does not constitute a mechanical gambling or lottery device activated
by the insertion of a coin or by the insertion of any object purchased by any
person taking a chance by gambling in respect to the device.

1.2.3 The WAP does not constitute an electronic or mechanical device or video

terminal which allows for individual play against such device or terminal.

2. REQUIREMENTS

2.1  General Requirements
The basic requirements for a WAP authorized under Section I1VV-Class I11 Gaming
Activities of the Compact are as follows:

2.1.1 Any WAP Controller utilized by the Tribe may operate only in conjunction with
the TLS and may not offer a game where the player may play against the device.

2.1.2 The restrictions on the use and operation of the TLS as governed by Appendix X
and Appendix X2, including prohibiting individual play against such devices or
terminals, are not changed by this Appendix.

2.1.3  The WAP will be Fair for players in the State.

2.1.4 The rules of play will be posted for the customer.

2.1.5 The WAP will conform with 25 U.S.C. 8 2710 (d)(1)(A), (B), and (C).

2.1.6 The WAP will allow the State Gaming Agency to remotely view the Tribe’s
reports and activity in real time as specifically provided for in a full submission.

2.1.7 The Tribe will make available for review agreements and contracts regarding
WAP participation in accordance with Compact Section X, B Access to Records.

2.1.8 Employees and/or representatives of a WAP Operator must meet the applicable

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 2
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



2.1.9

2.1.10

licensing and certification requirements in accordance with Compact Section V
Licensing and Registration Requirements and V1 Tribal Licensing and State
Registration.

Each specific type of WAP approved will conform to the standards documented in
a Memorandum of Understanding after a full submission has been approved, and
the Tribe shall not begin operation of said WAP until the testing and certification
requirements referred to in Section 3 of this Appendix are met.

The Tribe will notify the State Gaming Agency of its partipation in a specific type
of WAP and will follow the requirements in an approved Memorandum of
Understanding for the specific type of WAP in order to participate in that WAP.

2.2 Submission Process
2.2.1 Each full submission made must meet the requirements contained in the Compact,
Appendix X, Appendix X2, and this Appendix, and shall set the technical
standards and Internal Controls for the operation of that type of WAP. Except for
the TLS as governed by Appendix X or X2, the Tribe and the State Gaming
Agency shall enter into a separate Memorandum of Understanding for each
specific type of WAP the Tribe wishes to operate.
2.2.2 A "full submission," as that term is used in this Appendix, shall include a detailed
description of technical standards and other information that includes at least the
following:
2.2.2.1. How the system operates with the TLS, including connections to the
system and other jurisdictions, probability, and summary of game rules
which must be posted for the customer in any format;

2.2.2.2. WAP illustrations, schematics, block diagrams, circuit analyses,
program object and source codes, and hexadecimal dumps which means
the compiled computer program represented in base 16 format;

2.2.2.3. Technical and operation manuals including operation, interface,
Progressive Prize verification, and random number generator standards;

2.2.2.4. System hardware specifications including all key Components
including the WAP Controller;

2.2.2.5. Base software which means the software platform upon which games
are loaded,;

2.2.2.6. Game software for one or more games, including game set size and
point of overlap;

2.2.2.7. System security including encryption, firewalls, key controls, and
surveillance;

2.2.2.8. 0Odds for winning the Progressive Prize, the base Progressive Prize
amount, the reset Progressive Prize amount, the incremental increases
of the Progressive Prize, and any secondary pool increment(s);

2.2.2.9. Accounting system requirements and reports which must include at

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 3

Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



2.2.3

least a progressive balancing report and report of unusual events such
as critical memory clears, changes to Progressive Prizes, offline
equipment, multiple site prizes, and related reports;

2.2.2.10. Reports which must include at least a progressive summary, aggregate,
and payoff and any adjustments made by the WAP Operator on
Progressive Prize pools;

2.2.2.11. Procedures for handling simultaneous Progressive Prize winners in
multiple locations or jurisdictions;

2.2.2.12. Procedures to make changes or adjustments to or be removed from the
WAP, including notice requirements to the Participant Tribes and
players;

2.2.2.13. Procedures for accepting additional Participant Tribes or participating
jurisdictions and/or governments into the WAP;

2.2.2.14. Procedures to handle system malfunctions and reporting those
malfunctions to participating jurisdictions and/or governments;

2.2.2.15. Player dispute procedures;

2.2.2.16. Procedures, including a timeframe, for Gaming Operations staff or
WAP Operator to provide notice to the Tribal Gaming Agency and
State Gaming Agency of WAP non-compliance;

2.2.2.17. Capability and process to allow the State Gaming Agency to remotely
view the Tribe’s WAP to review reports and activity real time; and

2.2.2.18. Any agreement, written specifications, or limitations required of a
WAP Operator by any other state or tribal government and affecting a
WAP.

The Tribe may present to the State Gaming Agency, at any time, a WAP full
submission it believes satisfies the requirements of the Compact and this
Appendix. Within ninety (90) days of the Tribe's providing of a complete, full
submission for its proposed WAP to the State Gaming Agency, the Tribe and the
State Gaming Agency will execute a Memorandum of Understanding as required
by Section 2.1.9.

3. TESTING AND APPROVAL

3.1 Independent Gaming Test Laboratory

3.1.1 Designation. The Tribe shall select one or more gaming test laboratories
(hereinafter "Gaming Test Laboratory™) to perform the testing required in this
Appendix. The selection of a Gaming Test Laboratory will be done according to
Appendix X2, Section 10.1.

3.1.2 Gaming Test Laboratory Duty of Loyalty. The Tribe shall inform the Gaming
Test Laboratory, in writing, that irrespective of the source of payment of its fees,
the Gaming Test Laboratory's duty of loyalty and reporting requirements run
equally to the State Gaming Agency and the Tribe.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 4

Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



3.2

3.3

3.4

General Testing Requirements

The general purpose of testing the WAP and related Components is to determine the
compliance of the WAP with the Memorandum of Understanding agreed to by the Tribe
and the State Gaming Agency. Prior to operation of the WAP, the WAP and related
Components shall be tested by a licensed Gaming Test Laboratory, to verify:

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

Compliance with the applicable requirements of the Compact, Appendix X,
Appendix X2, and this Appendix; and

The WAP is Fair for both the players and the participating gaming facilities; and

Compliance with the Memorandum of Understanding and currently accepted
gaming test industry standards with respect to multi-jurisdictional WAPs.

Materials Provided to Gaming Test Laboratory

33.1

3.3.2

The Tribe shall provide or require that the WAP Operator provide to the Gaming
Test Laboratory a copy of the executed Memorandum of Understanding, and any
other information requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory. The Tribe shall
make all such materials available to the State Gaming Agency upon request;

If requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory, the Tribe shall require the WAP
Operator to transport not more than two (2) working models of the WAP
associated player terminals, and any required system elements to a location
designated by the Gaming Test Laboratory for testing, examination or analysis.
Neither the State nor the Gaming Test Laboratory shall be liable for any costs
associated with the transportation, testing, examination, or analysis, including any
damage to the Components of the WAP. If requested by the Gaming Test
Laboratory, the Tribe shall require the WAP Operator to provide specialized
equipment or the services of an independent technical expert to assist with the
testing, examination and analysis. The Gaming Test Laboratory will notify the
State Gaming Agency of the request and need for the request;

Approval by the State Gaming Agency

Upon receiving the certification, technical standards tested, and results of testing from the
Gaming Test Laboratory, the State Gaming Agency shall either approve or disapprove
the WAP or Component thereof, based on the criteria contained in this Appendix and the
Memorandum of Understanding. The Tribe or WAP Operator may request a temporary
suspension of the State Gaming Agency’s review of the WAP or Component for a
mutually agreed upon time period through a written request to the State Gaming Agency
Director.

During the State Gaming Agency approval process, the Gaming Test Laboratory will
meet with the State Gaming Agency and respective Tribal Gaming Agency to inform
regulatory staff of the certification process and technical standards tested and provide
training so that these personnel have an understanding of the WAP, can create a

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 5
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

regulatory program, and can better respond to questions and complaints.

Installation
3.4.1 No WAP may be offered for play unless:
3411 Such WAP is approved as provided in this Appendix; and

3.4.1.2  The WAP prototype thereof has been tested and certified by the
Gaming Test Laboratory as meeting the requirements and
Memorandum of Understanding specified by this Appendix.

3.4.2 The State Gaming Agency and Tribal Gaming Agency will meet to confer on
WAP initial implementation and Internal Controls changes to prepare for WAP
operation. Initial Internal Controls and any subsequent changes are to be
completed in conformance with Compact Section X1 Standards of Operation.

WAP Operator Certification

Before any Component of a WAP may be placed into operation, the Tribe shall first have
obtained a written certification from the WAP Operator that, upon installation, each such
Component:

351 Conforms to the specifications of the WAP as certified by the Gaming
Test Laboratory; and

3.5.2 Operates and plays in accordance with the applicable requirements of the
Compact, Appendix X, Appendix X2, this Appendix, and the
Memorandum of Understanding.

Payment of Fees

3.6.1 The Gaming Test Laboratory shall not accept a WAP submission from a WAP
Operator without first receiving an executed Memorandum of Understanding
from the Tribe. All Gaming Test Laboratory fees related to a WAP submission
shall be the responsibility of the WAP Operator.

3.6.2 All State Gaming Agency testing fees related to a WAP submission shall be the
responsibility of the WAP Operator.

4. INSPECTIONS
The Tribe shall allow the State Gaming Agency to inspect any Components of a WAP for
the purposes of confirming that such Component is operating in accordance with the
requirements of the Compact, Appendix X, Appendix X2, this Appendix, and the
Memorandum of Understanding and that such Component is identical to that tested by a
Gaming Test Laboratory. Inspections shall be pursuant to the Compact.

The WAP Operator shall allow the Tribal Gaming Agency and State Gaming Agency to
inspect any Components of a WAP for the purposes of confirming that such Component
IS operating in accordance with the requirements of the Compact, Appendix X, Appendix

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 6
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



X2, this Appendix, and the Memorandum of Understanding and that such Component is
identical to that tested by a Gaming Test Laboratory.

4.3  When the Tribal Gaming Agency or State Gaming Agency determine there is a failure to
comply with the Memorandum of Understanding, either will immediately suspend a
WAP’s operation.

4.4  Reinstatement of a WAP’s operation shall occur once the Tribal Gaming Agency and
State Gaming Agency agree that a suspended WAP complies with the Memorandum of
Understanding as determined by follow-up testing by the Gaming Test Laboratory.

45  If after an investigation the Tribal Gaming Agency or State Gaming Agency believe the

WAP is not operating in a Fair manner, either may request a mathematical review by an
independent third party. The WAP Operator will pay the cost of this review.

5. PARTICIPATION IN ANOTHER APPROVED WAP

The Tribe may participate in more than one approved WAP. When the Tribe elects to participate
in a WAP that has already been approved by the State Gaming Agency, Sections 1-4 of this
Appendix do not apply except as required by Section 5.1.3 below.

51 Requirements for participation in another approved WAP:

5.1.1. When participating in a WAP that has already been approved by the State Gaming
Agency, the Tribe must follow the requirements in the Memorandum of
Understanding related to that WAP.

5.1.2. The Tribe will notify the State Gaming Agency of its participation in or
withdrawal from another WAP and will make any and all copies of its
participation agreements available for review.

5.1.3. When the Tribe participates in an already approved WAP, the Tribe will follow
the requirements listed in Sections 1, 2.1, 3.5, 3.6, 4, and 5 of this Appendix.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 7
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix W — Rules Governing Wide Area Progressives



TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCGTION ..ottt ana et nnesne e ene e s
I R 1T 1= - | S PR RURPR
1.2 1010 o O ST PSPPI
R T 111 1] Vo USROS
1.4 Judicially Articulated ReStrICtIONS ... cocuieeiieeieciiiier e
1.5 APPIOVAI PrOCESS ....coivieiiiiiiiiiieiesiie st sbe s sn ettt eesreesre e

TESTING AND MACHINE APPROVAL

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9

APPENDIXY

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE - STATE OF WASHINGTON
CLASS 11l GAMING COMPACT

Designation of Independent Gaming Test Laboratory.............cccccvevvvveirennenn.
Testing and Certification 0f EGDS ...........cccooviiiiiiiiniie e
Approval by the State GamiNg AGENCY .......ccevveiieiieiiereeie e
Modifications of Approved Systems; Emergency Certifications.....................
Manufacturer’s Conformity to Technical Standards.........c...cccocevvverveieinenenn,
Payment of Gaming Test Laboratory FEES .........ccvvverviieniiiniiie e
Gaming Test Laboratory Duty of Loyalty ..........cccccvevveieiieiiiie e
RaNOM INSPECTIONS.........iiiieiiiie e e

State Gaming Agency to be Supplied Model of Player Terminal and System



APPENDIXY

JAMESTOWN S’KLALLAM TRIBE - STATE OF WASHINGTON CLASS 11l GAMING

COMPACT
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 General
This Appendix is created to provide the basic "core" requirements for Electronic Gaming
Devices ("EGDs") authorized under IV (A)(6) of the Compact and to establish the
approval and testing process for gaming machines and associated equipment that are to
be operated by the Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe ("Tribe™) in the State of Washington,
pursuant to the Compact heretofore approved by the Secretary of the Interior. This
Appendix does not apply to EGD’s authorized under Appendix X or X2 to the Compact,
which are governed by the respective Appendix.
These standards take into consideration certain judicially articulated restrictions on the
use and operation of EGDs. Those restrictions prohibit:
a) individual play against such devices or terminals; and
b) activation of gaming devices by the insertion of a coin or currency.
12 Intent
The intent of this Appendix is to ensure that gaming located on Tribal Lands occurs in a
manner that is:
a) Fair;
b) Secure;
C) Auditable; and
d) Compliant with judicially articulated restrictions.
1.3  Testing
The general purpose of testing gaming equipment is to determine the suitability of such
gaming equipment for operation in the intended environment. Prior to operation, all
EGDs and associated equipment shall be tested by a licensed gaming laboratory to:
a) verify that they comply with the requirements of the Compact and this Appendix;
b) ensure that they are fair to both the players and the operators;
C) verify that they comply with currently accepted gaming test industry standards
such as GLI 11 and 12; and
d) ensure that the equipment does not constitute:
) electronic, mechanical or electro-mechanical devices or terminals which
allow for individual play against such devices or terminals, or
i) gambling that is activated/initiated by the insertion of a coin or currency.
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 1

Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix Y



1.4 Judicially Articulated Restrictions

EGDs may be utilized by the Tribe under the following conditions:

a)

b)

d)

The EGD is activated by a "cashless transaction system and not by the insertion
of coin or currency;

The EGD does not allow for individual play against the device or terminal. The
parties agree that this requirement can be met in the following non-exclusive
ways:

)] Players compete for a number from a predetermined set of numbers, each
associated with a specific outcome; or

i) Players compete in a pooled wagering system whereby prizes are awarded
from a wagering pool or pools made up of the players' wagers and the
house is entitled to a set amount of the pooled wagers. Systems meeting
the requirements of this subsection may allow for an initial seeding of the
wagering pool by the house, and reseeding in circumstances of excessive
volatility.

Player terminals do not contain slot machine-type spinning reel mechanisms in
mechanical form, nor allow for activation by a slot machine-type handle; and

The Tribe and the State Gaming Agency have signed an agreement for each
specific type of EGD which confirms that that type of EGD meets the foregoing
requirements and sets technical standards and internal controls for operation of
that type of EGD.

15 Approval Process

a)

b)

Except for those EGDs governed by Appendix X or X2, the Tribe and the State
Gaming Agency shall enter into an agreement for each specific type of EGD
which the Tribe wishes to operate. Each agreement shall confirm that the
proposed type of EGD meets the requirements contained in the Compact and this
Appendix, and shall set the technical standards and internal controls for the
operation of that type of EGD. Such technical standards and internal controls shall
be uniformly applied to all Washington State gaming tribes and shall include, but
not be limited to: operation, interface and random number generator standards;
game reports; accounting system requirements and reports; cashless transaction
system requirements and reports; security system requirements; testing
requirements; and regulatory fees.

The Tribe may present to the State Gaming Agency, at any time, a machine
concept it believes satisfies the requirements of the Compact and this Appendix.
Within thirty (30) days thereafter, the State Gaming Agency shall notify the Tribe
of its acceptance or rejection of said concept. If the State Gaming Agency accepts
the Tribe's concept, the Tribe and the State Gaming Agency shall have ninety (90)
additional days to execute the agreement required by § 1.5(a); provided, however,
said ninety (90) day period shall not commence until the Tribe has made a full
submission of its machine proposal to the State Gaming Agency; provided,
further, that the Tribe shall not commence operation of said EGD until the

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 2
Class 11l Gaming Compact

Appendix Y



2.2

laboratory testing and certification requirements referred to in 8§ 1.3 of this
Appendix are met.

C) A "full submission,” as that term is used in 8 1.5(b), shall include machine
hardware (a prototype EGD), base software (the software platform upon which
games are loaded), game software for one or more games, and a detailed narrative
description of said hardware, base software and game software. Failure of the
Tribe and the State Gaming Agency to agree upon a machine concept or failure to
execute an agreement required by 8§ 1.5 (a) shall constitute a dispute or
disagreement between the Tribe and the State Gaming Agency, subject to the
dispute resolution provisions contained in § 12 of the Compact.

TESTING AND MACHINE APPROVAL
Designation of Independent Gaming Test Laboratory

The State Gaming Agency shall select one or more gaming test laboratories (hereinafter
"Gaming Test Laboratory™) to perform the testing required in this Appendix. Any
Gaming Test Laboratory selected shall have demonstrated it is competent and qualified to
conduct scientific tests and evaluations of electronic gaming systems and to otherwise
perform the functions set forth in the Compact. The Tribe may request additional
laboratories be placed on the State Gaming Agency's list of Gaming Test Laboratories,
which request shall not be unreasonably denied. Any laboratory that is currently licensed
and approved by any state, province or country to test or evaluate EGDs or electronic
gaming systems shall be placed on the list if, after review by the State Gaming Agency, it
is found to be so qualified and otherwise meets the background and licensing
requirements applicable to such laboratories under Washington State law. For any testing
required under this Appendix, the Tribe shall choose a laboratory from those Gaming
Test Laboratories on said State Gaming Agency list. If, at any time, any of the Gaming
Test Laboratories' licenses from any jurisdiction are suspended, terminated or subject to
disciplinary actions, the Gaming Test Laboratories may be removed from the State
Gaming Agency's list. If removed from the State Gaming Agency's list, the Tribe shall
choose a new Gaming Test Laboratory as provided herein.

Testing and Certification of EGDs
a) No EGD may be offered for play unless:
) such EGD is approved by the parties as provided in this Appendix; or

i) the EGD prototype thereof has been tested and certified by the Gaming
Test Laboratory as meeting the requirements specified by this Appendix.

b) If not already provided to the Gaming Test Laboratory, the Tribe shall provide or
require that the manufacturer provide to the Gaming Test Laboratory two (2)
copies of EGD illustrations, schematics, block diagrams, circuit analyses,
technical and operation manuals, program object and source codes, hexadecimal
dumps (the complied computer program represented in base 16 format), and any
other information requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory. The Tribe shall make
all such materials available to the State Gaming Agency upon request;

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 3
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix Y



C) If requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory, the Tribe shall require the
manufacturer to transport not more than two (2) working models of the EGD to a
location designated by the laboratory for testing, examination or analysis. Neither
the State nor the Gaming Test Laboratory shall be liable for any costs associated
with the transportation, testing, examination, or analysis, including any damage to
the components of the EGD. If requested by the Gaming Test Laboratory, the
Tribe shall required the manufacturer to provide specialized equipment or the
services of an independent technical expert to assist with the testing, examination
and analysis;

d) At the conclusion of each test, the Gaming Test Laboratory shall provide to the
State Gaming Agency and the Tribal Gaming Commission a report that contains
findings, conclusions and a certification that the EGD conforms or fails to
conform to the requirements contained in the Compact. If the Gaming Test
Laboratory determines that the device fails to conform to such requirements or
technical standards, and if modifications can be made which would bring the
EGD into compliance, the report may contain recommendations for such
modifications. The parties are not bound by the findings, conclusions or
certifications of the Gaming Test Laboratory for purposes of enforcement of the
provisions of the Compact.

2.3 Approval by the State Gaming Agency

Upon receiving the certification from the Gaming Test Laboratory, the State Gaming
Agency shall either approve or disapprove the EGD or component thereof, based on the
technical criteria contained in this Appendix and the agreement adopted under 8 1.5,
within sixty (60) days of receipt of the certification as to any new EGD or component
thereof, and within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of the certification as to any
modification to a system which has already been approved by the State Gaming Agency.
The certification shall be deemed approved if no action is taken thereon by the State
Gaming Agency within said sixty (60) or fifteen (15) day period, as may be applicable.
Any disputes arising out of the approval process in this § 2.3 shall be resolved in
accordance with § 14 of the Compact.

2.4 Modifications of Approved Systems: Emergency Certifications

No modification to any EGD may be made after testing, certification and approval of an
EGD without certification of the modification by the Gaming Test Laboratory under § 2.3
and approval thereof by the State Gaming Agency under this 8§ 2.4. In situations where
immediate modifications are necessary to preserve the integrity of an EGD which has
been operating pursuant to an approval obtained under § 2.3, the Gaming Test Laboratory
may issue an emergency certification of the modification and that it must be made
immediately to preserve the integrity of the EGD. Such emergency certifications shall be
deemed to be temporarily approved by the State Gaming Agency and remain in effect
until the State Gaming Agency takes action on the certification, which shall be governed
by § 2.3, provided that no emergency certification shall be valid or effective until actually
approved by the State Gaming Agency, if it was not received by the State Gaming
Agency within five (5) days after being issued.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 4
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix Y



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Manufacturer's Conformity to Technical Standards

Before any component of an EGD may be placed into operation, the Tribe shall first have
obtained and submitted to the State Gaming Agency a written certification from the
manufacturer that upon installation each such component:

a) conforms to the specifications of the EGD as certified by the Gaming Test
Laboratory; and

b) operates and plays in accordance with the requirements of the Compact
Procedures.

Authorization to operate an EGD requires that it operate and play in accordance with the
requirements specified by this Appendix; provided that while the failure of such EGD to
comply with such requirements will suffice as grounds to enjoin or otherwise terminate
said EGD's operation, such non-compliance will not be deemed a violation of the
Compact as long as the Tribe has relied in good faith on the certification of the
manufacturer.

Payment of Gaming Test Laboratory Fees

The Tribe shall be responsible for the payment of all Gaming Test Laboratory fees and
costs in connection with the duties described in the Compact. The Tribe shall provide
copies of all Gaming Test Laboratory invoices and payments by the Tribe to the State
Gaming Agency, which shall have the right to audit such fees. In order to assure
independence of the Gaming Test Laboratory, any Gaming Test Laboratory payment
delinquency by the Tribe of fees or costs due to the Gaming Test Laboratory may be
grounds by the State Gaming Agency for rejecting such laboratory's reports or
certification.

Gaming Test Laboratory Duty of Lovalty

The Tribe shall inform the Gaming Test Laboratory, in writing, that, irrespective of the
source of payment of its fees, the Gaming Test Laboratory's duty of loyalty and reporting
requirements run equally to the State and the Tribe.

Random Inspections

The Tribe shall allow the State Gaming Agency to inspect any components of an EGD
for the purposes of confirming that such component is operating in accordance with the
requirements of the Compact and that such component is identical to that tested by an
independent test laboratory. Inspections shall be pursuant to the Compact.

State Gaming Agency to be Supplied Model of Player Terminal and System

If not already provided to the State Gaming Agency, the State Gaming Agency shall,
upon request, be supplied all components of each EGD to be held at the State Gaming
Agency's offices for purposes of determining compliance with these technical
requirements.

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 5
Class 11l Gaming Compact
Appendix Y



Washington State
Gambling Commission &

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Compact Amendment Hearing

Washington State Gambling Commission
July 13, 20117

David Trujillo, WSGC Director
Jerry Allen, CEO, 7 Cedars Casino & Resort Properties
Julie Lies, WSGC Tribal Liaison




T
lllllll
llllllllll
llllllll
lllllllll
llllllll
lllllll
lllllll
lllllll
llllllll
llllllll
lllllllll
lllllllll
lllllllll
lllllllll
lllllllll
lllllllll
lllllllll
llllllll
llllllll
lllllll
lllllll
lllllll
llllllll

IIIIIIIII
b

lllllllll

-

-
-

Commissioners

Chair Bud Sizemore

-

\\

Chris Stearns

Kelsey Gray

Vice Chair Julia Patterson

%a

% #
Ed Troyer

i

~%9)




e
5005 0 B B

-

Senator
Lynda Wilson
17t District

Senator

Steve Conway
29 District

Ex Officio Membezrs

Our Link to the Legislature

v/

i

(3
M

Representative
David Sawyer
29t District

]

Representative
Brandon Vick
18t District

~%9)



—
—
_—
. =
o
L. =

| |
=
=
| ]

‘HHHHHH_

% et

"3.‘ Tl

f-(!{'.‘-'.. 4

7.4

f.-‘j.!F_*.'t""ﬂ g ﬁ :lkl% ’Ff

““Protect the public by
ensuring that gambling is

legal and honest”




-
,,,,,,,
--------
---------
lllllll
llllllll
llllllll
llllllll
--------
--------
---------
lllllllll
llllllll
llllllll
--------
llllllll
--------
llllllll
--------
---------
lllllllll
llllllll
lllllllll
llllllll
llllllll
llllllll
-
llllllll
-
-
.

1988

Indian Gaming
Regulatory Act

Provide regulatory framework for Indian
gaming

Promote economic development, self

sufficiency, strong tribal governments
g



The State must negotiate

in good faith when a

compact or amendment is
requested by a Tribe




Negotiation
Topics

Casino-style gaming activities
Criminal and civil jurisdiction
Fees for state regulation
Remedies for breach of contract

Standards of operation



Tribal Gaming Compact
Approval Process

neggtr;z:gtby Direction by Compact submitted
Commission . state policy . to Commission,
Director makers Legislature




Tribal Gaming Compact
Approval Process

Legislature has 45 days to
review and comment

-

\

Commission has 60 days to:
1) Hold public hearing;
2) Forward to Governor; or
3) Return to Director for further
negotiation




Tribal Gaming Compact
Approval Process

Governor reviews and has final
execution authority

Tribe forwards to Secretary
of Interior

-

\ \

¥




Public Protection

Interests
| .- w’ l{t No criminal involvement

- i ‘ Gaming conducted fairly, honestly

. % \ L ’/ Gaming limited to authorized

\ ! % activities

“\\ ; '\4 o o o o o
| . =\ \ Minimize negative impacts on local
‘ 7 = N law enforcement, emergency
Y A = services



Jamestown
S’Klallam
Tribe




2\ictaria

Jamestown S’Klallam

- Tribe
= “Il.r' r ¥ ._‘
Olymipic W ™
u"-.'m;f Park ™ S i o
b -] |
” y .l b -
' . Seattlels
! R T
Olympic , e c B
National Forest Il_ l
| = g
Tacomal i
| e |
LT
| 5 .
_Olympias | ¥

-..-"
_ g

f

§ ’ |“.-l;'. A
St N.L:-rfh " \ ;‘}a‘!{ A
Cascatles . ;

Tk
NationallPark .

' 1‘_I'l 1__' #
i "
Baker- Sr.ucmdun.e' - -3
National Fores St g ;
ol b
. o
" - F‘l % -y
} - Y z !
Wenatchesa rE
National Forest s . 1&
, -
! i
: ¥ p e k- |
& L ¥l | = ﬂ
o '.’H_- .I- . r,. - . '-* - #
f{ R '."u'enatchi
" # T Yo
=
T
L
-
Ifllchnshurg




|
Sequim Bay
State Park

N
.I"I

Jamestown
S’Klallam
Tribal Center















) A B e
’ ok ..-“gwrn.... A -
3 ...’.,m.rMcM... .,ﬁg_.. -

-~




o el

D —
or
' &

T

1
3

TTE =)

Y
Y

]

Uem=g(( ) Tt [ ) =0,
(®))— —{((@))—
W B e

——

G

\)
3

b 1




- Summary of Changes
| A New Compact

e
'''''
-----
llllll
llllll

Supersedes the original Compact and all

lllllllll
lllllllll

previous amendments.

Intended to reflect modernized regulatory

-------
A
11111

L practices, reduce duplication between
- Tribal and State regulators, and clarify the
roles of each party.

~9




Summary of Changes

Increases number of Class III gaming
facilities from 1 to 2

T

-
IIIII
IIIIIII
llllllll
llllllll
llllllll
llllllll

e All definitions updated to add new terms and

llllllllll
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII

removed outdated terms

Appendix A replaced with minimum internal

lllllll
IIIIIII

control standards within approved internal
controls

.....
llllll
o

[T

Removes requirement for Tribal Gaming
Agent to be onsite during all hours of
gaming

~9)




Summary of Changes

i Allows persons 18-21 to play in accordance
with applicable liquor laws

IIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII

Updates the annual reporting section on how

Conn
llllllllll
llllllllll

problem gambling funds were used

IIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIIII
e
. J‘IIII-!'! |

e
IIIIIIII
e

.....
llllll
o

Allows for memorandum of understanding to
establish fines and sanction schedule

I

~9




Summary of Changes

. Adds registration, which allows the Tribe to

lllllllll
llllllll
lllllll

conduct background checks and license

IIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII
IIIIIIIII

employees

IIIIIIII
IIIIIIII
IIIIIII
IIIIIII
IIIIIII
IIIIIIII

IIIIIIIII
b

lllllllll

-

-
-

i

*Language Revised after Legislative Hearings
5| Based on Comments Received*

~9



Summary of Changes

Adds Appendix W =
Wide Area Progressive (WAP) =
Provides a framework to review and f
approve a wide area progressive
connected to the Tribal Lottery System.

~9



memmw

Questions?




Today

Vote to:
Hold hearing
1) Forward to Governor
Answer for review & final
questions execution, or

2) Return to Director
for further negotiation




Staff Recommmendation

—
—
.
.

Vote to forward the proposed
compact amendment to the
Governor for review and final
execution




Washington State
Gambling Commission &

Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
Compact Amendment Hearing

Washington State Gambling Commission
July 13, 20117

David Trujillo, WSGC Director
Jerry Allen, CEO, 7 Cedars Casino & Resort Properties
Julie Lies, WSGC Tribal Liaison




STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”

July 5, 2017

TO: COMMISSIONERS:
Bud Sizemore, Chair
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, Ph.D.
Christopher Stearns
Ed Troyer

FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney
Legal and Records Division

SUBJECT: Arthur D. Fowler, CR 2016-01704
Final Order — July 13, 2017 Commission Meeting

Mr. Arthur Fowler has a gambling license authorizing Class III employee activity at Little Creek
Casino in Shelton, Washington. His license expires on September 20, 2017.

On September 14, 2016, Mr. Fowler was charged with Attempted Rape of a Child, First Degree, a
Class A Felony, in Thurston County Superior Court. The charges allege that he communicated by
text message with an undercover officer who he believed to be a mother of children ages six,
eleven, and twelve; indicated a desire to engage in unlawful sexual activity with the children; and
took action to engage in unlawful activity by going to an address given by the undercover officer.
Upon arriving at the address, Mr. Fowler was arrested. The Casino terminated Mr. Fowler’s
employment on or about September 29, 2016 due to his pending criminal charges.

Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges to Mr. Principe by regular and certified
mail to his last known address on October 26, 2016. Mr. Fowler did not respond, but he did submit
an application to the Commission on December 27, 2016, requesting a transfer of his license to a
public card room. On the application, he marked that he had not been charged with any crimes
since his last application. The card room to which he requested transfer notified the Commission
on December 29, 2016, that they would not proceed with the application for Mr. Fowler.

Director Trujillo to issue a First Amended Notice of Administrative Charges based on the new
information omitted on Mr. Fowler’s transfer application. The First Amended charges were sent
by regular and certified mail to Mr. Fowler’s last known address on April 3, 2017. The certified
mail was returned stamped: “Return to Sender, Unclaimed, Unable to Forward,” on April 28,2017.
As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received a response from Mr. Fowler. Mr.
Fowler’s case has a status conference on July 19, 2017 and is set for jury trial on July 24, 2017.



Default Hearing — Arthur Fowler
July 13,2017
Page 2

Mr. Fowler’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Fowler’s
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2016-01704. You may take final action against his gambling
license. Based on his alleged conduct, pending criminal charge, and failure to report it, Mr. Fowler
cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he is qualified to keep his gambling license.
Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Arthur
D. Fowler’s Class III Employee license, License Number 69-07767.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
In the Matter of: NO. CR 2016-01704
ARTHUR D. FOWLER, FINAL ORDER OF THE
License No. 69-07767, GAMBLING COMMISSION
Licensee.

These matters having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission
(Commission) on July 13, 2017 and the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order:

I FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission certified Arthur D. Fowler License
number: 69-07767, authorizing Class III Employee activity at Little Creek Casino in Shelton,
Washington.

2. Mr. Fowler’s certification, which expires on September 20, 2017, was issued
subject to the licensee's compliance with state gambling laws, Commission rules, and the
Squaxin Island Tribe-State Gaming Compact.

3. On or about September 9, 2016, Mr. Fowler communicated via text message with
what he believed to be the mother of children ages six, eleven, and twelve. The mother was
actually an undercover law enforcement officer.

4. Mr. Fowler communicated a desire to engage in sexual acts with the children and
took action to engage in sexual acts with these children by going to an address given by the

undercover law enforcement officer.

FINAL ORDER OF THE 1 Washinston State Gambline Commissi
as ll’lg on ate Gaml ll'lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.‘Box 42400
IN RE: ARTHUR D. FOWLER Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01704




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

5. Mr. Fowler was arrested upon visiting the residence at the address provided by
the undercover officer.

6. On September 14, 2016, Mr. Fowler was charged with Attempted Rape of a
Child, First Degree, under RCW 9A.28.020 and RCW 9A.44.073, a Class A Felony, in Thurston
County Superior Court, Case Number 16-1-01574-34.

7. Thurston County Superior Court set bail at $50,000 in Case No. 16-1-01574-34.

8. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on October 26, 2016
alleging that Mr. Fowler could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified
for licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation of his
license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (8), and (9), and WAC 230-085(1), (3), and (8) and
Sections V.C. and V.E. of the Squaxin Island-State Gambling Compact.

9. Mr. Fowler was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on October 26,
2016, to his last known address. The Commission received the returned regular mail on
November 14, 2016 as “Return to Sender- Not Deliverable as Addressed- Unable to Forward.”

10. On December 27, 2016, the Commission received an application from Mr. Fowler
requesting transfer of his license to a public card room. On the application, Mr. Fowler marked
that he had not been charged with any crimes since his last application.

11. On December 29, 2017, the Commission received notification from the public
card room that they would not proceed with the application for Mr. Fowler.

12. Director David Trujillo issued first amended administrative charges on April 3,
2017, alleging that Mr. Fowler could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was
qualified for licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted
revocation of his license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (7), (8), and (9), and WAC 230-085(1),
(3), and (8) and Sections V.C. and V.E. of the Squaxin Island-State Gambling Compact.

13. The first amended charges and summary suspension were sent to Mr. Fowler to

his last known address by regular and certified mail on April 3, 2017. The Commission received

FINAL ORDER OF THE 2 Washinston State Gambline Commissi
as ll’lg on ate Gaml ll'lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.‘Box 42400
IN RE: ARTHUR D. FOWLER Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01704




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

the returned certified mail on April 28, 2017 as “Return to Sender, Unclaimed, Unable to

Forward.”
14. To date, the Commission has not received any response from Mr. Fowler.
II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. Mr. Arthur D. Fowler was sent proper notice of the April 3, 2017 amended

charges via first class mail and certified mail on April 3, 2017 under RCW 34.05.434, RCW
34.05.431, and WAC 10-08-130.

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Fowler’s gambling license
under Case Number CR 2016-01704 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW
34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085.

3. Mr. Fowler’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2016-01704
pursuant to RCW 9.46.153(1) and (3), RCW 9.46.075(1), (7), (8), and (9), and WAC 230-03-
085(1), (3), and (8) and Sections V.C. and V.E.(1) of the Squaxin Island-State Gambling
Compact.

ORDER

This matter having come before the Commission at its July 13, 2017, Commission
meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, given the chance to review the
administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore:

It is hereby ORDERED that Arthur D. Fowler’s gambling license, Number 69-07767, is

REVOKED.
DATED this day of July, 2017.

BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair

KELSEY GRAY, Ph.D. CHRISTOPHER STEARNS

ED TROYER

FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washineton State Gambline Commisci

GAMBLING COMMISSION 4563 7 Avenue S.E. Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: ARTHUR D. FOWLER Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01704




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

NOTICE

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no
later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed. Any motion for
reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for
reconsideration.

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final
order. Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days
after the date this final order is mailed.

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order. A petition
for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the
Commission and the Office of the Attorney General.

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United
States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035.

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to:

Washington State Gambling Commission Gregory J. Rosen

Legal and Records Division Attorney General’s Office

4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 1135 Washington St. SE

P.O. Box 42400 P.O. Box 40100

Olympia, WA 98504-2400 Olympia, WA 98504-0100
FINAL ORDER OF THE 4 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503

P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: ARTHUR D. FOWLER Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01704




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following:

ARTHUR D. FOWLER
4606 GALLUP DR.
OLYMPIA, WA 98513

EXECUTED this  day of July, 2017, at Lacey, Washington.

Haylee Mills
Staff Attorney
FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: ARTHUR D. FOWLER Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01704




STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”

July 5, 2017

TO: COMMISSIONERS:
Bud Sizemore, Chair
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, Ph.D.
Christopher Stearns
Ed Troyer

FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney
Legal and Records Division

SUBJECT: Michael L. Harward, CR 2016-02079
Final Order — July 13, 2017 Commission Meeting

Mr. Michael L. Harward had a gambling license authorizing Class III Employee activity at the
Swinomish Casino and Lodge, and then Silver Reef Hotel, Casino & Spa. His license expires on
July 6, 2017.

On or about April 23, 2016, Mr. Harward, while working as a Swinomish Casino host, authorized
a $1,144.52 charge on a Swinomish Casino & Lodge company credit card. The charge was for a
hotel, dinner, and show in Las Vegas for someone named Sindy Wiebe. When confronted about
the charge, Mr. Harward first claimed it was for an experiment on tour groups, and then later that
it was for a charity auction. Someone associated with the charity auction reimbursed the charge,
and Mr. Harward admitted he’d falsified his written justification explaining the charge. He was
terminated May 13, 2016. Swinomish TGA revoked his tribal license on November 21, 2016 for
falsifying documents, putting a personal charge on a company credit card, and lying about the
justification.

Mr. Harward did not report his revocation to the Commission. Additionally, prior to having his
tribal license revoked, he was employed at the Lummi Nation’s Silver Reef Casino from July
through November, 2016, until he was terminated for not purchasing food from a vendor and
causing their till to be short.

Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on April 18, 2017, to Mr. Harward by
regular and certified mail to his last known address. The certified mail was returned to the
Commission, as, “Return to Sender, No Mail Receptacle, Unable for Forward,” on May 2, 2017.
The regular mail notice was not returned. As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not
received a response from Mr. Harward.



Default Hearing — Michael L. Harward
July 13,2017
Page 2

Mr. Harward’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Harward’s
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2016-02079. You may take final action against his gambling
license. Based on his conduct, Mr. Harward cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that
he is qualified to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission
sign the proposed final order and revoke Michael L. Harward’s Class III Employee license, License
Number 69-35441.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
In the Matter of: NO. CR 2016-02079
MICHAEL L. HARWARD, FINAL ORDER OF THE
License No. 69-35441, GAMBLING COMMISSION
Class I1I Employee.

These matters having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission
(Commission) on July 13, 2017 and the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order:

I FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Licensee Michael L.
Harward, License number: 69-35441, authorizing Class III Employee activity at the Swinomish
Casino and Lodge, and then Silver Reef Hotel, Casino & Spa.

2. Mr. Harwards’s license expired on July 6, 2017, and was issued subject to Mr.
Harward's compliance with state gambling laws, Commission rules, and the Swinomish and
Lummi Nation Tribal-State Gaming Compacts.

3. On or about April 23, 2016, Mr. Harward, while working as a host at the
Swinomish Casino and Lodge, authorized a $1,144.52 charge on a Swinomish Casino & Lodge
company credit card. The charge was for a hotel, dinner, and show ticket package at a casino in

Las Vegas for someone named Sindy Wiebe.

FINAL ORDER OF THE 1 Washinston State Gambline Commissi
as ll’lg on ate Gaml ll’lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.‘Box 42400
IN RE: MICHAEL L. HARWARD Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-02079




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

4. When confronted about the charge, Mr. Harward wrote a justification for the
casino and claimed he was experimenting with tour groups. Later he claimed that it was part of
a charity auction.

5. Someone associated with the charity auction reimbursed the credit card charge,
and Mr. Harward admitted that he wrote a false justification and tried to hide it. He was
terminated from the casino on May 13, 2016.

6. In July, 2016, Mr. Harward obtained certification through the Lummi Nation and
began work at the Silver Reef Casino, but was terminated in November, 2016 for not purchasing
food from a vendor, causing the vendor to be short in their till.

7. On November 21, 2016, the Swinomish Tribal Gaming Agency issued a final
order revoking Mr. Harward’s gaming license because he falsified documents, put a personal
charge on a company credit card, and lied about the justification. Mr. Harward did not inform
the Commission of the Swinomish TGA’s final order of revocation.

8. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on April 18, 2017, alleging
that Mr. Harward’s unlawful actions constituted violations of RCW 9A.60.020 and RCW
9A.56.040, and that his failure to report his administrative case was proof that he could not show
by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for licensure as required by RCW
9.46.153(1) and (3), and that his actions warranted revocation of his license pursuant to RCW
9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-085(1), (3), and (8)(a), (¢), and (d), as well as Section V.C.(1)
and (3) of the Swinomish Tribe-State Gaming Compact.

9. Mr. Harward was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on April 19, 2017,
to his last known address.

10.  The Commission received the returned certified mail on May 2, 2017 as “Return
to Sender, No Mail Receptacle, Unable to Forward.” The notice sent by regular mail was not

returned to the Commission.

11. To date, the Commission has not received any response from Mr. Harward.
FINAL ORDER OF THE 2 Washineton State Gambling Commissi
asnimgton sState Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.‘Box 42400
IN RE: MICHAEL L. HARWARD Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-02079




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Mr. Michael L. Harward was sent proper notice of the April 18, 2017 charges via
first class mail and certified mail on April 19, 2017 under RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and
WAC 10-08-130, and had twenty-three (23) days after being mailed charges to respond, pursuant
to WAC 230-17-010(1)(a), (b).

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Harward’s gambling license
under Case Number CR 2016-02079 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW
34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085.

3. Mr. Harward’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2016-01835
pursuant to RCW 9A.60.020, RCW 9A.56.040, RCW 9.46.153(1) and (3), RCW 9.46.075(1)
and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (3), and (8)(a), (c), and (d), as well as Section V.C.(1) and (3)
of the Swinomish Tribe-State Gaming Compact.

ORDER

This matter having come before the Commission at its July 13, 2017, Commission
meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, given the chance to review the
administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore:

It is hereby ORDERED that Michael L. Harward’s gambling license, Number 69-35441,

is REVOKED.
DATED this day of July, 2017.

BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair

KELSEY GRAY, Ph.D. CHRISTOPHER STEARNS

ED TROYER

FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washineton State Gambline Commisci

GAMBLING COMMISSION 4563 7 Avenue S.E. Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.{Box 42400

IN RE: MICHAEL L. HARWARD Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-02079




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

NOTICE

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no
later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed. Any motion for
reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for
reconsideration.

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final
order. Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days
after the date this final order is mailed.

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order. A petition
for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the
Commission and the Office of the Attorney General.

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United
States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035.

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to:

Washington State Gambling Commission Gregory J. Rosen

Legal and Records Division Attorney General’s Office

4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 1135 Washington St. SE

P.O. Box 42400 P.O. Box 40100

Olympia, WA 98504-2400 Olympia, WA 98504-0100
FINAL ORDER OF THE 4 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503

P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: MICHAEL L. HARWARD Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-02079




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following:

MICHAEL L. HARWARD
5291 GALBRAITH RD
ACME, WA 98220

EXECUTED this  day of July, 2017, at Lacey, Washington.

Haylee Mills
Staff Attorney
FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: MICHAEL L. HARWARD Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-02079




STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”

July 5, 2017

TO: COMMISSIONERS:
Bud Sizemore, Chair
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, Ph.D.
Christopher Stearns
Ed Troyer

FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney
Legal and Records Division

SUBJECT: Arthur V. Principe, CR 2017-00527
Final Order — July 13, 2017 Commission Meeting

Mr. Arthur V. Principe has a gambling license authorizing Class III Employee activity at Emerald
Queen Casino in Tacoma, Washington. His license expires on February 9, 2018.

On or about March 29, 2017, criminal charges were filed in Pierce County Superior Court in Case
Number 17-1-01268-0, charging Mr. Principe with two counts of Child Molestation Second
Degree-Domestic Violence. The charges stem from allegations that he molested his twelve year
old stepdaughter. The Puyallup TGA temporarily suspended his tribal gaming license on April
17,2017 pending the outcome of his criminal charges.

Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges to Mr. Principe by regular and certified
mail to his last known address on May 3,2017. The Commission received a certified mail delivery
receipt indicating delivery was completed May 5, 2017. As of the date of this memo, the
Commission has not received a response from Mr. Principe. Mr. Principe’s case has a status
conference on September 22, 2017, and is set for jury trial on October 4, 2017.

Mr. Principe’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Principe’s
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2017-00527. You may take final action against his gambling
license. Based on his alleged conduct and pending criminal charges, Mr. Principe cannot show by
clear and convincing evidence that he is qualified to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff
recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Arthur V. Principe’s
Class III Employee license, License Number 69-41136.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
In the Matter of: NO. CR 2017-00527
ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE, FINAL ORDER OF THE
License No. 69-41136, GAMBLING COMMISSION
Licensee.

These matters having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission
(Commission) on July 13, 2017 and the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order:

I FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission certified Arthur V. Principe,
License Number: 68-18214, authorizing Class III Employee activity at Emerald Queen Casino
in Tacoma, Washington.

2. This certification, which expires on February 9, 2018, was issued subject to the
licensee's compliance with state gambling laws, Commission rules, and the Puyallup Tribal-State
Gaming Compact.

3. On March 29, 2017, criminal charges were filed in Pierce County Superior Court
in Case Number 17-1-01268-0, charging Mr. Principe with two counts of Child Molestation

Second Degree - Domestic Violence.

4. Mr. Principe’s charges stem from allegations that he molested his twelve year old
stepdaughter.
FINAL ORDER OF THE 1 Washineton State Gambling Commissi
asnimgton sState Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.‘Box 42400
IN RE: ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2017-00527




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

5. The Puyallup Tribal Gaming Authority temporarily suspended his tribal gaming
license on April 17, 2017 pending the outcome of his criminal case identified above.

6. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on May 3, 2017 alleging
that Mr. Principe’s criminal charges constitute physical harm against an individual or involve
moral turpitude pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(4). Further, that he could not show by clear and
convincing evidence that he was qualified for licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and
that his actions warranted revocation of his license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (8), and (9),
WAC 230-085(1), (3), and (8), as well as Section V.E.(1) of the Puyallup Tribal-State Gaming
Compact.

7. Mr. Principe was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on May 3, 2017,
to his last known address. The Commission received a certified mail delivery receipt indicating
certified mail delivery was completed on May 5, 2017.

8. To date, the Commission has not received any response from Mr. Principe.

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Mr. Arthur V. Principe was sent proper notice of the May 3, 2017 charges via
first class mail and certified mail on May 3, 2017 under RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and
WAC 10-08-130.

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Principe’s gambling license
under Case Number CR 2017-00527 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW
34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085.

3. Mr. Principe’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2016-01938
pursuant to RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 9.46.075(1), (4), (8), and (9), and WAC 230-03-085(1),
(3), and (8), as well as Section V.E.(1) of the Puyallup Tribal-State Gaming Compact.

FINAL ORDER OF THE 2 Washinston State Gambline Commissi
as ll’lg on ate Gaml ll'lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.‘Box 42400
IN RE: ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2017-00527




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

ORDER
This matter having come before the Commission at its July 13, 2017, Commission
meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, given the chance to review the
administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore:
It is hereby ORDERED that Arthur V. Principe’s gambling license, Number 69-41136,
is REVOKED.

DATED this day of July, 2017.

BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair

KELSEY GRAY, Ph.D. CHRISTOPHER STEARNS

ED TROYER

FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washineton State Gambline Commisci

GAMBLING COMMISSION 4563 7 Avenue S.E. Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.{Box 42400

IN RE: ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2017-00527




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

NOTICE

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no
later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed. Any motion for
reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for
reconsideration.

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final
order. Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days
after the date this final order is mailed.

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order. A petition
for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the
Commission and the Office of the Attorney General.

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United
States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035.

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to:

Washington State Gambling Commission Gregory J. Rosen

Legal and Records Division Attorney General’s Office

4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 1135 Washington St. SE

P.O. Box 42400 P.O. Box 40100

Olympia, WA 98504-2400 Olympia, WA 98504-0100
FINAL ORDER OF THE 4 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503

P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2017-00527




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following:

ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE
4930 YEW LANE SW
LAKEWOOD, WA 98499

EXECUTED this  day of July, 2017, at Lacey, Washington.

Haylee Mills
Staff Attorney
FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7' Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: ARTHUR V. PRINCIPE Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2017-00527




STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”

July 5, 2017

TO: COMMISSIONERS:
Bud Sizemore, Chair
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, Ph.D.
Christopher Stearns
Ed Troyer

FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney
Legal and Records Division

SUBJECT: Tasha Smiley, CR 2016-01938
Final Order — July 13, 2017 Commission Meeting

Ms. Tasha Smiley has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at
Palace Casino in Lakewood, Washington. Her license expires on August 27, 2017.

Palace Casino uses a Sonoma Player Tracking System for its “Player’s Club,” that rewards points
and other rewards to players based on their gaming activity or length of time spent playing card
games. Floor supervisors have access to this system and are able to manage a player’s point
balance. Between October 1, 2016 and November 2, 2016, Ms. Smiley, while working as a floor
supervisor, improperly gave unearned rewards to a player and falsified amounts this player won
and lost. The unearned rewards consisted of at least eleven improper entries into a $5,000
promotion, the credit of unearned points, and other unearned reward items. The total unearned
rewards Ms. Smiley improperly awarded caused a loss to the Casino, of $258.18.

Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on April 19, 2017, to Ms. Smiley by
regular and certified mail to her last known address. The Commission received a certified mail
delivery receipt indicating delivery was completed April 27, 2017. As of the date of this memo,
the Commission has not received a response from Ms. Smiley.

Ms. Smiley’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Ms. Smiley’s
right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2016-01938. You may take final action against her gambling
license. Based on her conduct, Ms. Smiley cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that she
is qualified to keep her gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign
the proposed final order and revoke Tasha Smiley’s Public Card Room Employee license, License
Number 68-18214.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
In the Matter of: NO. CR 2016-01938
TASHA SMILEY, FINAL ORDER OF THE
License No. 68-18214, GAMBLING COMMISSION
Licensee.

These matters having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission
(Commission) on July 13, 2017 and the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order:

I FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Tasha Smiley License
number: 68-18214, authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at Palace Casino in
Lakewood, Washington.

2. Ms. Smiley’s license, which expires on August 27, 2017, was issued subject to
the licensee's compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.

3. Palace Casino uses a Sonoma Player Tracking System for its “Player’s Club.”
This system is a reward program for players based on their gaming activity, and gives customers
points and other rewards for the length of time they play card games. Floor supervisors have
access to and are able to manage a player’s point accumulation in the system.

4, Between October 1, 2016 and November 2, 2016, Ms. Smiley, while working as

a floor supervisor at the Palace Casino, improperly gave rewards to a customer, Kenneth

FINAL ORDER OF THE 1 Washineton State Gambline Commisci
as ll’lg on ate aml ll’lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7% Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: TASHA SMILEY Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01938




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

Richmond, and improperly credited Mr. Richmond player tracking award points on October 27,
28, and 29, and November 2, 2016.

5. During the above dates, Ms. Smiley improperly credited Mr. Richmond with at
least eleven entries into the Casino’s October $5,000 Fabulous Fall Promotion. Mr. Richmond
did not win the promotion.

6. Ms. Smiley’s fraudulent use of the card room’s player tracking system awarded
Mr. Richmond $285.18 of unearned points, at a loss to the Casino of the same amount.

7. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on April 18, 2017 alleging
that Ms. Smiley’s unlawful actions constituted cheating pursuant to RCW 9.46.196, a violation
relating to fraud or deceit pursuant to RCW 9.46.190, criminal conspiracy pursuant to RCW
9A.28.040, cheating in the first degree pursuant to RCW 9.46.1961, and theft in the third degree
pursuant to RCW 9A.56.050. Further, that she could not show by clear and convincing evidence
that she was qualified for licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that her actions
warranted revocation of her license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (2), and (8), and WAC 230-
085(1), (3), and (8).

8. Ms. Smiley was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on April 19, 2017,
to her last known address. The Commission received a certified mail delivery receipt indicating
certified mail delivery was completed on April 27, 2017.

0. To date, the Commission has not received any response from Ms. Smiley.

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Ms. Tasha Smiley was sent proper notice of the April 18, 2017 charges via first
class mail and certified mail on April 19, 2017 under RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and
WAC 10-08-130.

2. The Commission can take final action against Ms. Smiley’s gambling license
under Case Number CR 2016-01938 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW
34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085.

FINAL ORDER OF THE 2 Washineton State Gambline Commisci
as ll’lg on ate aml ll’lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7% Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: TASHA SMILEY Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01938




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

3. Ms. Smiley’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2016-01938
pursuant to RCW 9.46.196, RCW 9.46.190, RCW 9A.28.040, RCW 9.46.1961, RCW
9A.56.050, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 9.46.075(1), (2), and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (3),
and (8).

ORDER

This matter having come before the Commission at its July 13, 2017, Commission
meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, given the chance to review the
administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore:

It is hereby ORDERED that Tasha Smiley’s gambling license, Number 68-18214, is

REVOKED.

DATED this day of July, 2017.

BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair

KELSEY GRAY, Ph.D. CHRISTOPHER STEARNS

ED TROYER

FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washineton State Gambline Commisci

GAMBLING COMMISSION 4563 7 Avenue S.E. Lacey, WA 98503
P.O.{Box 42400

IN RE: TASHA SMILEY Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01938




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

NOTICE

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no
later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed. Any motion for
reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for
reconsideration.

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final
order. Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days
after the date this final order is mailed.

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order. A petition
for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the
Commission and the Office of the Attorney General.

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United
States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035.

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to:

Washington State Gambling Commission Gregory J. Rosen

Legal and Records Division Attorney General’s Office

4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 1135 Washington St. SE

P.O. Box 42400 P.O. Box 40100

Olympia, WA 98504-2400 Olympia, WA 98504-0100
FINAL ORDER OF THE 4 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503

P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: TASHA SMILEY Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01938




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following:

TASHA SMILEY
2224 16157 AVE
TACOMA, WA 98445

EXECUTED this  day of July, 2017, at Lacey, Washington.

Haylee Mills
Staff Attorney
FINAL ORDER OF TH% 5 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: TASHA SMILEY Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01938




STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”

July 5, 2017

TO: COMMISSIONERS:
Bud Sizemore, Chair
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, Ph.D.
Christopher Stearns
Ed Troyer

FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney
Legal and Records Division

SUBJECT: Filifili Tia, CR 2016-01835
Final Order — July 13, 2017 Commission Meeting

Mr. Filifili Tia had a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at Iron
Horse Casino in Auburn, Washington. His license expired on May 16, 2017.

On or about October 16, 2016, Mr. Tia assaulted a patron while working as a security officer at
Iron Horse Casino. Video surveillance showed Mr. Tia approach a male patron and push him three
times, trying to force him to leave. Mr. Tia and the patron exchanged punches and the fight ended
in the card room’s gaming pit area. Once separated, the male patron attempted to leave, but Mr.
Tia assaulted him by hitting him twice in the back of the head. Mr. Tia’s actions aggravated the
situation and caused the patron to leave and attempt to re-enter with a gun. Fortunately, the patron
was prevented from re-entering by other patrons.

Mr. Tia was interviewed by Commission special agents and informed them that he asked the male
patron to leave and the patron punched him in the face. He also stated that when he learned the
patron was attempting to re-enter with a gun, he called the police.

A Notice of Administrative Charges was issued March 10, 2017, and sent to Mr. Tia by regular
and certified mail to his last known address. When return mail was received by Commission staff
on March 17, 2017 and then April 4, 2017, it was discovered that there was a clerical error on the
envelopes sent to Mr. Tia.

Therefore, the Notice was re-sent to Mr. Tia via regular and certified mail to the corrected address
on April 5, 2017. Mr. Tia never responded to the second notice to contest the Charges. He did,
however, call the Commission on May 8, 2017, to ask why his renewal application could not be
processed online. At that time, Commission staff informed him that the reason was the pending



Default Hearing — Filifili Tia
July 13,2017
Page 2

administrative case for revocation of his gambling license. Again, he did not attempt to request a
hearing.

Mr. Tia’s failure to respond to the charges and request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Tia’s right to a
hearing in Case No. CR 2016-01835. You may take final action against his gambling license.
Based on his conduct, Mr. Tia cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he is qualified
to keep his gambling license. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed
final order and revoke Filifili Tia’s Public Card Room Employee license, License Number 68-
17098.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION
In the Matter of: NO. CR 2016-01835
FILIFILI TIA, FINAL ORDER OF THE
License No. 68-17098, GAMBLING COMMISSION
Licensee.

These matters having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission
(Commission) on July 13, 2017 and the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order:

I FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Filifili Tia, a public card
room employee, License number: 68-17098, for employment at Iron Horse Casino in Auburn,
Washington.

2. Mr. Tia’s license expired on May 16, 2017, and was issued subject to Mr. Tia's
compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.

3. On or about October 16, 2016, Mr. Tia assaulted a patron while employed as a
security officer at Iron Horse Casino.

4. Video surveillance from October 16, 2016 showed Mr. Tia approach a male

patron who had just entered the casino, and push him three times, attempting to force the patron

to leave.
FINAL ORDER OF THE 1 Washineton State Gambline Commisci
as ll’lg on ate aml ll’lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7% Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: FILIFILI TIA Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01835




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

5. The patron then struck Mr. Tia and a fight began between the two in the lounge
area, and continued into the gaming pit area. Mr. Tia then punched the male patron in the face.

6. Other casino patrons broke up the fight and separated the patron and Mr. Tia.

7. As the patron was attempting to leave the casino, Mt. Tia hit him twice in the
back of the head. The male patron attempted to re-enter the casino with a gun, but was stopped
by two other patrons.

8. Mr. Tia provided a written statement to Gambling Commission agents indicating
that when he asked the patron to leave the casino, he punched Mr. Tia in the jaw. When Mr. Tia
learned the patron was attempting to re-enter the casino with a gun, he called police.

9. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on March 10, 2017,
alleging that Mr. Tia’s assault on a casino guest demonstrated a knowing and willful disregard
for compliance with the law pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1) and WAC 230-03-085(3), established
that he is a threat to the effective regulation of gambling pursuant to WAC 230-03-085(8), and
that he could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for licensure as
required by RCW 9.46.075(8) and RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation
of his license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-085(1), (3), and (8).

10.  Mr. Tia was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on March 10, 2017, to
his last known address. The Commission received the returned regular mail on March 17, 2017
as “Return to Sender, No Such Number, Unable to Forward.” The Commission received the
returned certified mail on April 4, 2017 as “Return to Sender, Unclaimed, Unable to Forward.”

11. Commission staff discovered the last known address contained a clerical error.
The error was corrected, and charges were re-sent to Mr. Tia via regular and certified mail on
April 5, 2017.

12. Mr. Tia called the Gambling Commission on May 8, 2017 to ask why his
employer could not renew Mr. Tia’s gambling license online, and was informed that the reason

was the pending administrative case for revocation against him.

FINAL ORDER OF THE 2 Washineton State Gambline Commisci
as ll’lg on ate aml ll’lg ommission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7% Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: FILIFILI TIA Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01835




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

13. On May 11, 2017, the Commission received the returned certified mail as “Return
to Sender, Unclaimed, Unable to Forward.”

14. To date, the Commission has not received any response from Mr. Tia.

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Mr. Filifili Tia was sent proper notice of the March 10, 2017 charges via first
class mail and certified mail on April 5,2017 under RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and WAC
10-08-130.

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Tia’s gambling license under
Case Number CR 2016-01835 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461,
and WAC 230-03-085.

3. Mr. Tia’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2016-01835
pursuant to RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (3), and (8).
ORDER

This matter having come before the Commission at its July 13, 2017, Commission
meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, given the chance to review the
administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore:

It is hereby ORDERED that Filifili Tia’s gambling license, Number 68-17098, is

REVOKED.
DATED this day of July, 2017.

BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair

KELSEY GRAY, Ph.D. CHRISTOPHER STEARNS

ED TROYER

FINAL ORDER OF THE 3 Washinston State Gambline Commisi

GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 % Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: FILIFILI TIA Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01835




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

NOTICE

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no
later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed. Any motion for
reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for
reconsideration.

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final
order. Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days
after the date this final order is mailed.

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order. A petition
for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the
Commission and the Office of the Attorney General.

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United
States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035.

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to:

Washington State Gambling Commission Gregory J. Rosen

Legal and Records Division Attorney General’s Office

4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 1135 Washington St. SE

P.O. Box 42400 P.O. Box 40100

Olympia, WA 98504-2400 Olympia, WA 98504-0100
FINAL ORDER OF THE 4 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503

P.O. Box 42400

IN RE: FILIFILI TIA Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01835




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following:

FILIFILI TIA
26617 111™ PL SE
KENT, WA 98030

EXECUTED this  day of July, 2017, at Lacey, Washington.

Haylee Mills
Staff Attorney
FINAL ORDER OF TH% 5 Washington State Gambling Commission
GAMBLING COMMISSION 4565 7" Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503
P.O. Box 42400
IN RE: FILIFILI TIA Olympia, WA 98504

NO. 2016-01835




Petition for Rule Change
WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles.

July 2017 - Discussion and Possible Filing

Tab 4: July 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda. Statutory Authority 9.46.070

Who Proposed the Rule Change?

Scott Eisenhauer, State Chairman, Ducks Unlimited Washington. As of June 9, 2017, there were 52
Ducks Unlimited chapters in Washington that held raffle licenses.

Attachments:
e Petition for Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of a State Administrative Rule received on May 23,
2017.

Petitioner’s Request

Mr. Eisenhauer submitted a petition for rule change “to increase the maximum value of a raffle ticket sold
as part of a members-only raffle from $25 to $100. This rule change is necessary because it increase(s)
predictability for licensees that a members-only (raffle), which involves selling tickets as part of a multi-
component package, will result in a net profit for the licensee. By raising the maximum price of a raffle
ticket from $25 to $100 for raffle packages containing multiple components, the proceeds of the raffle are
far more likely to exceed the fair market value of the awarded prize.”

Staff Recommendation

Under the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, the Commission must take action on a
petition within 60 days of receiving it. Your options are:

1) Initiate rule-making proceedings by filing the rule as proposed for further discussion;
or
2) Deny the petition in writing, a) stating the reasons for the denial and specifically address

the concerns stated in the petition, or b) where appropriate indicate alternative means by
which the agency will address the concerns raised in the petition.

Staff recommends filing for further discussion.




Amended Rule
WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles.

(1) Licensees may sell multiple tickets to enter one or more drawings as a package if the total
price of the package does not exceed twenty-five dollars.

(2) Licensees may include tickets to enter a raffle as a part of a package that includes dues,
entertainment, or other fund-raising activities if:

(a) The package discloses the value of each component of the package to the purchaser; and

(b) The value of each individual raffle ticket does not exceed twenty-five one hundred
dollars.

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-11-087, filed 9/26/06, effective
1/1/08.]


http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070

PETITION FOR ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, OR REPEAL
OF A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE RULE

Print Form

In accordance with RCW 34.05.330, the Office of Financial Management (OFM) created this form for individuals or groups
who wish to petition a state agency or institution of higher education to adopt, amend, or repeal an administrative rule. You
may use this form to submit your request. You also may contact agencies using other formats, such as a letter or email.

The agency or institution will give full consideration to your petition and will respond to you within 60 days of receiving your
petition. For mere information on the rule petition process, see Chapter 82-05 of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC)

at hitp:/apps.leg. wa.goviwac/default aspxTcite=82-05.

CONTACT INFORMATION (please lype or print)
Petitioner's Name Scott Eisenhauer, State Chairman

Name of Organization Ducks Unlimited Washington
Mailing Address 19727 SE Petrovitsky Road

City Maple Valley State WA Zip Code 98038

Telephone (425) 831-0964 Email majike@msn.com

COMPLETING AND SENDING PETITION FORM

® Check all of the boxes that apply.

® Provide relevant examples.

® Include suggested language for a rule, if possible.
® Attach additional pages, if needed.

® Send your petition to the agency with authority to adopt or administer the rule. Here is a list of agencies and
their rules coordinators: hitp:/iwww.leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/Documents/RClist.htm.

INFORMATION ON RULE PETITION

Agency responsible for adopting or administering the rule:  Washington State Gambling Commission

[] 1. NEW RULE - | am requesting the agency to adopt a new rule.

[] The subject {or purpose) of this rule is:

(] The rule is needed because:

[C] The new rule would affect the following people or groups:

PETITION FOR ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, OR REPEAL OF A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE RULE 1



[¢] 2. AMEND RULE - | am requesting the agency to change an existing rule.

List rule number (WAC), if known: \WAC 230-11-087

[x] 1 am requesting the following change: See Attached.

[¥] This change is needed because: Ses Attached

[x] The effect of this rule change will be: Sea Attached.

[] The rule is not clearly or simply stated:

[] 3. REPEAL RULE - | am requesting the agency to eliminate an existing rule.

List rule number (WAC), if known:

{Check one or more boxes)

[] it does not do what it was intended to do.

[ Itis no longer needed because:

[] Itimposes unreasonable costs:

[] The agency has no authority to make this rule:

[ ltis applied differently to public and private parties:

(] Ut conflicts with another federal, state, or local law or
rule. List conflicting law or rule, if known:

O It duplicates another federal, state or local law or rule.
List duplicate law or rule, if known:

[[] Other (please explain):

PETITION FOR ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, OR REPEAL OF A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE RULE



PETITION FOR AMENDMENT

Scott Eisenhauver

State Chairman

Ducks Unlimited Washington
19727 SE Petrovitsky Rd.
Maple Valley, WA 98038

May 22, 2017

Washington State Gambling Commission
ATTN: Rules Coordinator

P.O. Box 42400

Olympia, WA 98504-2400

SENT VIA REGISTERED MAIL. ELECTRONIC MAIL, AND FACSIMILE

Re:  Petition for Amendment of WAC 230-11-087

Dear Sir or Ma'am:

On behalf of the nearly 12,000 members of Ducks Unlimited (“DU’") in Washington state, 1
respectfully submit the below information in support of this Petition for Amendment of WAC

230-11-087. This Petition for Amendment is submitted pursuant to RCW 34.05.330.

Identity of Petitioners

Founded in 1937 by Joseph Knapp, DU is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation dedicated to
conserving, restoring, and managing wetlands and associated habitats for North America’s
waterfowl. DU has a worldwide membership of approximately 700,000 individuals dedicated to
this purpose. Complete information on DU’s history and mission may be found here:
http://www.ducks.org.

Petition for Amendment of WAC 230-11-087
I am requesting the following change (continued):

DU respectfully requests that the Washington State Gambling Commission (“WSGC”) amend
WAC 230-11-087(2)(b) to increase the maximum value of a raffle ticket sold as part of a
members-only raffle from $25.00 to $100.00.

The change is needed because (continued):

This amendment is necessary because it increases predictability for licensees that a members-
only raffle, which involves selling tickets as part of a multi-component package, will result in a
net profit for the licensee. By raising the maximum price of a raffle ticket from $25.00 to
$100.00 for raffle packages containing multiple components, the proceeds of the raffle are far
more likely to exceed the fair market value of the awarded prizes.

-1-

6100879.1
6102067.1



PETITION FOR AMENDMENT

The text of the rule as it currently exists is as follows:
WAC 230-11-087
Other pricing plans for members-only raffles

(1) Licensees may sell multiple tickets to enter one or more drawings as a package if
the total price of the package does not exceed twenty-five dollars.

(2) Licensees may include tickets to enter a raffle as a part of a package that includes
dues, entertainment, or other fund-raising activities if:

(a) The package discloses the value of each component of the package to the
purchaser; and

(b) The value of each individual raffle ticket does not exceed twenty-five dollars.

The proposed amended rule is as follows:
WAC 230-11-087
Other pricing plans for members-only raffles

(1) Licensees may sell multiple tickets to enter one or more drawings as a package if
the total price of the package does not exceed twenty-five dollars.
(2) Licensees may include tickets to enter a raffle as a part of a package that includes
dues, entertainment, or other fund-raising activities if:
(a) The package discloses the value of each component of the package to the
purchaser; and
(b) The value of each individual raffle ticket does not exceed sweatyfive one
hundred dollars.

At least three reasons directly support the proposed rule change. First, the amendment increases
licensee predictability that a raffle conducted pursuant to WAC 230-11-087 will ultimately be
profitable. In DU’s case, this issue is acutely observed when conducting the DU sponsor board
raffles. These raffles typically involve the sale of a ticket as part of a package pursuant to WAC
230-11-087, with winners usually receiving a firearm. Historically, the package included an
opportunity for DU members to pay a portion of their existing dues or pledged support. The
relatively small number of tickets purchased for the sponsor board raffles, combined with the
relatively high value of the prizes awarded, results in the individual sponsor board raffle
potentially being unprofitable. The proposed rule change is designed to address the issue for DU
and other similarly-situated charitable or nonprofit organizations

Second, amending the provision as specified above promotes regulatory conformity in that it

brings the amended WAC 230-11-087 into conformity with the $100.00 maximum raffle ticket

price limitation found at WAC 230-11-014. Such an amendment simplifies the rules applicable

to raffles, thereby assisting licensees in ensuring compliance. Additionally, such an amendment
2-

61008791
6102067.1



PETITION FOR AMENDMENT

. e ¢ e —————— e o P AT

facilitates the legislative authorization and intent found in RCW 9.46.010 and 9.46.0311
regarding raffle activities for nonprofit organizations.

Third, an increase in the maximum value of raffle tickets sold as part of a package is overdue, at
least in part, as a standard adjustment for inflation. The $25.00 limitation was first imposed in
1998, and, based upon research conducted to date, does not appear to have been adjusted since
that date.

The effect of this rule change will be (continued):

The effect of the proposed rule change is that a raffle ticket may be sold for $100.00 under WAC
230-11-087 as part of a package that includes other component, such as dues. This change
would likely increase the revenue received from the raffle, thereby increasing the likelihood that
the raffle will ultimately be profitable in light of the firearms (or other prizes) that are awarded.

The rule is not clearly or simply stated (continued):

DU believes the rule, as currently drafted, is sufficiently clear and simply stated. The proposed
amendment to WAC 230-11-087 seeks only to change the specific dollar amount specified under
the rule.

Additional factors under RCW 34.05.330:

RCW 34.05.330 encourages petitioners seeking repeal or amendment of an administrative rule to
address a series of issues. The considerations identified in RCW 34.05.330, and DU’s responses,
are as follows:

(1) Whether the rule is authorized.
DU response: DU believes that the proposed amendment to the rule is
authorized pursuant to RCW 9.46.070 and other existing statutory provisions.

(2)  Whether the rule is needed.
DU response: As articulated above, DU believes the amended rule is

necessary to promote predictability for licensees, promote regulatory conformity with
WAC 230-11-014, and reflect a periodic adjustment for inflation.

(3)  Whether the rule conflicts with or duplicates other federal, state, or local laws.
DU response: DU is unaware of any conflicts or duplication created by the
proposed amended WAC 230-11-087.

(4)  Whether alternatives to the rule exist that will serve the same purpose at less cost.

DU response: DU has researched and proposed a regulatory interpretation
under the existing version of WAC 230-11-087 that would address the concerns stated
in this Petition for Amendment. Consultations with WSGC staff have occurred, and it
is believed that the proposed amended WAC 230-11-087 satisfactorily addresses the
concerns identified herein.

-3-

6100879.1
6102067.1



PETITION FOR AMENDMENT

e B .. P O e e —— R T e e~

(5)  Whether the rule applies differently to public and private entities.
DU response: WAC 230-11-087 applies only to members-only raffles
conducted by nonprofit or charitable organizations.

(6)  Whether the rule serves the purposes for which it was adopted.
DU response: The proposed amended WAC 230-11-087 supports the
legislative authorization and intent articulated at RCW 9.46.010 and RCW 9.46.031 1.

(7 Whether the costs imposed by the rule are unreasonable.
DU response: Any costs associated with the proposed amended WAC 230-11-
087 are believed to be minimal or non-existent.

(8)  Whether the rule is clearly and simply stated.
DU response: As articulated above, DU believes the existing WAC 230-11-
087 is clearly and simply stated, and seeks only to amend the specified maximum
value of the raffle ticket. DU believes the proposed amended rule is clearly and
simply stated.

(9)  Whether the rule is different than a federal law applicable to the same activity or
subject matter without adequate justification.
DU response: DU is unaware of any substantive difference with federal laws
or regulations on this subject matter.

(10)  Whether the rule was adopted according to all applicable provisions of law.
DU response: DU does not contend the existing version of WAC 230-11-087
was improperly adopted.

Conclusion

Thank you for your consideration. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions
or concerns. | may be reached at (425) 891-0964 or majike@msn.com. Alternatively, you may
contact Hunter Abell at Williams Kastner & Gibbs at (206) 253-2885.

Very truly yours,

AN Gt

Scott Eisenhauer
State Chairman
Ducks Unlimited Washington

cc:  John Tierney
Dave Marrone
Hunter Abell

61008791
6102067.1



STATE OF WASHINGTON

GAMBLING COMMISSION

P.O. Box 42400 ° Olympia, Washington 98504-2400 e (360) 486-3440 ¢ TDD (360) 486-3637 ¢ FAX (360) 486-3627

June 28,2017

TO: COMMISSIONERS:
Bud Sizemore, Chair
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair
Kelsey Gray, Ph.D.
Christopher Stearns
Ed Troyer

FROM: Tina Grifﬁ;ﬂ,/Assistant Director of the Licensing, Regulation, and Enforcement
Division

SUBJECT: Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation Inc.’s Request to Exceed $ 300,000 Limit in
Raffle Prizes Paid During License Year 2017-2018

Background:
Our rules require licensees to get your approval prior to offering raffle prizes that exceed

$300,000 in a license year, WAC 230-11-067.

To seek that approval, the licensee must submit a raffle plan that includes:
(a) The organization's goals for conducting raffles; and
(b) A brief overview of the licensee's mission and vision including the type of programs
supported by the licensee and clients served; and
(c) Plans for selling raffle tickets; and
(d) Brief overview of prizes awarded; and
(e) Estimated gross gambling receipts, expenses, and net income for the raffles; and
(f) Any other information that we request or any information the licensee wishes to submit.

Request for Your Approval:
The Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation, Inc. is seeking to offer raffle prizes over $300,000 for

their license year ending February 26, 2018. Their raffle plan includes all of the required
information, which is attached.

Staff recommends you approve the Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation, Inc. to exceed the annual
raffle prize limit of $300,000 for their license year ending February 26, 2018.




Page 2 of 2
June 28, 2017

Attachments: :
e Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation Inc.’s Request to Exceed $ 300,000 Limit in Raffle
Prizes Paid During License Year 2017-2018.

e WAC 230-11-067, Requesting commission approval prior to offering raffle prizes
exceeding forty thousand dollars per prize or three hundred thousand dollars in a license

year.



Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation Inc.
WA Raffle Plan —Request to Exceed $ 300 K Limit in Raffle Prizes Paid During License

Year. 2017-2018

e (1) The organization's goals for conducting raffles

The Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation conducts raffles in the state of Washington and
other states around the country to raise funds to support our mission. RMEF’s goal is to continue
- fundraising efforts in the state of Washington in order to support additional land and habitat

projects.

e (2) A brief overview of the licensee's mission and vision including the type of programs
supported by the licensee and clients served

The mission of the Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation is to ensure the future of elk, other
wildlife, their habitat and our hunting heritage.

In support of our mission, the RMEF is committed to: conserving, restoring and
enhancing natural habitats; promoting the sound management of wild elk, which may be hunted
or otherwise enjoyed; restoring elk to their native ranges; and educating members and the public
about habitat conservation and our hunting heritage

Acres Protected and Enhanced
More than 7.1 million acres

Number of Acres Opened and/or Secured for Public Access for Hunting and Other

Outdoor Recreation
More than 1.1 million acres opened and/or secured

Number of Permanent Land Protection, Habitat Stewardship, Elk Restoration,
Conservation Education and Hunting Heritage Projects
More than 10,469 projects

Areas Where RMEF has helped Restore Long-Absent Elk Populations
Kentucky — Eastern coalfields

Missouri — Peck Ranch Conservation Area

North Carolina — Great Smoky Mountains National Park

Ontario — Various locations

Tennessee — Cumberland Plateau

Virginia — Buchanan County

West Virginia — Tomblin Wildlife Management Area

Wisconsin — Chequamegon-Nicolet National Forest

Number of Members: More than 222,000
Number of Chapters: More than 500 in the United States
Number of Volunteers More than 11,000



Please see attached list of program services RMEF has provided in WA in the last two years.

e (3) Plans for selling raffle tickets

The Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation chapters in Washington sell raffle tickets to the
public, in face to face transactions by volunteers throughout the state. Each chapter typically
conducts numerous raffles which are drawn at an annual event, called the Big Game Banquet, as
well as other smaller events and raffles that may occur from time to time. RMEF will also sell
raffle tickets at various businesses in each chapter’s area, at Big Game Banquets and at other
events. Advertising for chapter events will take place via email, on RMEF’s website, through
RMEF’s bi-monthly magazine, Bugle, and through a variety of local publications and signage.

e (4) Brief overview of prizes awarded

Various merchandise including firearms, sporting goods, equipment, home goods, gift
certificates, hunting and fishing trips.

e (5) Estimated gross gambling receipts, expenses, and net income for the raffles

Estimated gross gambling receipts: $ 760,000.00
Estimated Prizes Paid (Including donated prizes): $ 365,000.00
Estimated Net Income (Gross gambling receipts less prizes paid): $ 395,000.00

o (6) Any other information that we request or any information the licensee wishes to
submit.

Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation legal staff have recently held a statewide meeting with
chapter chairs, state chairs and volunteers in order to provide training on the importance of
complying with Washington charitable gaming laws, record keeping requirements and the
conduct of charitable raffles. RMEF staff and volunteers remain committed to conducing raffles
in Washington, in a lawful and transparent manner.



WAC 230-11-067: Requesting commission approval prior to offering raffle prizes exceed... Page 1 of 1

WAC 230-11-067

Requesting commission approval prior to offering raffle prizes
exceeding forty thousand dollars per prize or three hundred thousand

dollars in a license year.

(1) The commissioners may vote to approve a licensee to exceed raffle prize limits if a
licensee shows good cause in writing.

(2) Prior to offering raffle prizes that exceed forty thousand dollars per prize, the licensee
must submit a raffle plan to us that includes at least the following information:

(a) The organization's goals for conducting the raffle; and

(b) A brief overview of the licensee's mission and vision including the type of programs
supported by the licensee and clients served; and

(c) Specific details of the raffle rules including:

(i) Date of the drawing; and

(i) Cost of raffle tickets; and

(iii) Prizes available; and

(iv) Security of prizes; and

(v) Plans for selling raffle tickets; and

(vi) Description of how the licensee protects the integrity of the raffle; and

(d) An explanation of how the proceeds from the raffle will be used; and

(e) A plan to protect the licensee in the event of low ticket sales and other risks; and

(f) An explanation of how the licensee will purchase the prize(s) for the raffle; and

(9) A projected budget including:

(i) Estimated gross gambling receipts, expenses, and net income for the raffle; and

(i) Minimum number of projected ticket sales to break even; and

(iii) Corresponding sales and prize levels with projected revenues and expenses for each
level; and

(iv) Minimum and maximum prizes available; and

(h) Any other information that we request or any information the licensee wishes to submit.

(3) Prior to offering raffle prizes that exceed three hundred thousand dollars in a license
year, the licensee must submit a raffle plan that includes:

(a) The organization's goals for conducting raffles; and

(b) A brief overview of the licensee's mission and vision including the type of programs
supported by the licensee and clients served; and

(c) Plans for selling raffle tickets; and

(d) Brief overview of prizes awarded; and

(e) Estimated gross gambling receipts, expenses, and net income for the raffles; and

(f) Any other information that we request or any information the licensee wishes to submit.

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0277. WSR 12-05-067 (Order 677), § 230-11-
067, filed 2/15/12, effective 3/17/12. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 10-11-086
(Order 668), § 230-11-067, filed 5/17/10, effective 7/1/10.]

http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-11-067 6/28/2017



	Meeting Agenda
	May Meeting Minutes
	House-Banked Public Card Rooms License Report
	Jamestown Amendment
	Jamestown Power Point
	Tab 4 Petition Ducks
	Tab 5



